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May 29, 2007
Dear NeoMagic Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of NeoMagic Corporation (the
“Company”), which will be held on July 12, 2007 at 10:00 a.m., local time, at the offices of our outside legal
counsel, Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, P.C., 650 Page Mill Road, Palo Alto, California.

Thi booklet includes the Notice of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders and the Proxy Statement. The
Proxy Statement describes the business to be transacted at the Annual Meeting and also provides important
information about the Company and the items to be voted upon that you should consider when you vote your
shares. Also included with this booklet is a copy of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 28, 2007. We encourage you to read the Annual Report. It includes information on the
Company’s operations, markets, products and services, as well as the Company's audited financial statements.

At this meeting, among other things, you will be asked to consider and vote upon the election of six
directors! All six of the nominees are currently directors of the Company. Your Board of Directors recommends
that you vote FOR all of the nominees.

In addition, you will be asked to ratify the Audit Committee’s appointment of Stonefield Josephson, Inc. as
the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending January 27, 2008.
Stoneﬁelld Josephson, Inc. has audited the Company’s financial statements since fiscal 2006. Your Board of
Directors recommends that you vote FOR this proposal.

You will also be asked to approve an amendment to the Company’s 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(the “2006 Plan™) to provide for an increase in the number of shares of Common Stock available for issuance
under the 2006 Plan by 100,000. This plan allows eligible employees of the Company to purchase shares of the
Compan)"’s common stock through payroll deductions. Your Board of Directors has approved this amendment
and recommends that you vote FOR this proposal.

You will also be asked to approve an amendment to the Company’s 2003 Stock Plan (the “2003 Plan™) to
provide for an increase in the number of shares of Common Stock available for issuance under the 2003 Plan by
500,000.} This plan permits the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights and stock purchase rights to
eligible employees, non-employee directors and consultants in order for us to continue to attract and retain
outstanding and highly skilled individuals. Your Board of Directors has approved this amendment and
recomnmends thal you vote FOR this proposal.

Finilly, you will be asked to consider such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

Wheéther or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, it is important that your shares of common stock be
represended and voted at the Annual Meeting. Accordingly, after reading the enclosed Notice of Annual Meeting
and acco}npanying Proxy Statement, please complete, date and sign the enclosed proxy card and mail it promptly
in the en{felope provided.

Very truly yours,

b

Douglas B Young
President and Chief Executive Officer




NEOMAGIC CORPORATION

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
to be held July 12, 2007

To the Stockholders of NeoMagic Corporation:

Notife is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”) of NeoMagic
Corporatipn, a Delaware corporation (the “Company™), will be held on July 12, 2007 at 10:00 a.m., {ocal time, at
the ofﬁceTv. of our outside legal counsel, Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, P.C., 650 Page Mill Road, Palo Alto,
California.

At the Annual Meeting, stockholders will be asked:
1. To elect six directors;

2. To ratify the appointment of Stonefield Josephson, Inc. as the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm for the fiscal year ending January 27, 2008;

3. To increase the number of shares available for issuance under the Company’s 2006 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan by 100,000,

4. T? increase the number of shares available for issuance under the Company’s 2003 Stock Plan by
500,000; and

5. To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting and any adjournment of
the Annuall Meeting.

The foregoing items of business are more fully described in the Proxy Statement accompanying this Notice
of Annual|Meeting. Stockholders of record as of the close of business on May 25, 2007 are entitled to notice of
and to vott at the Annual Meeting and any adjournment thereof. A complete list of stockholders entitled to vote
will be available at the Secretary’s office, 650 Page Mill Road, Palo Alto, California, 94304-1050 for ten days
prior to the Annval Meeting.

IT IS IMPORTANT THAT YOUR SHARES ARE REPRESENTED AT THIS MEETING. EVEN IF
YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING, WE HOPE THAT YOU WILL PROMPTLY
COMPLETE, DATE, SIGN AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY. THIS WILL NOT LIMIT
YOUR RIGHTS TO ATTEND OR VOTE AT THE ANNUAL MEETING.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

/s/ Michael I. Danaher

Michael J. Danaher
Secretary

Santa Clara, California
May 29, 2007




NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
3250 Jay Street
Santa Clara, California 95054

PROXY STATEMENT
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Matters to be Considered

At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the *Annual Meeting”), the stockholders of NeoMagic Corporation
(the “Cor“npany") will be asked to: (i) elect six directors, (ii) ratify the appointment of Stonefield Josephson, Inc.
as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending January 27, 2008,
(i) approve an amendment to the Company’s 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan to increase the number of
shares reserved thereunder by 100,000, and (iv) approve an amendment to the Company’s 2003 Stock Plan to
increase tlhe number of shares reserved thereunder by 500,000. The Board of Directors knows of no matters that
are to be ibroughl before the Annual Meeting other than as set forth in the Notice of the Annual Meeting. If any
other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, the person named in the enclosed form of proxy or their
substitutes will vote in accordance with their best judgment on such matters.

This!Proxy Statement and the accompanying form of Proxy are first being mailed on or about June 6, 2007
to all stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting,

Date, Time, Place, Record Date and Shares Entitled to Vote

The enclosed proxy is solicited on behalf of the Company’s Board of Directors for use at the Annual
Meeting u,:) be held on July 12, 2007, at 10:00 a.m., local time, or any continuation or adjournment thereof, for the
purposes set forth herein and the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Annual Meeting
will be held at the offices of our outside legal counsel, Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, P.C., 650 Page Mill
Road, Pal| Alto, California. The telephone number at this address is (650) 493-9300.

The Company’s principal executive offices are located at 3250 Jay Street, Santa Clara, California 95054,

The (Ifompany has set May 25, 2007 as the record date (the “Record Date”). The stockholders of record at
the close of business on the Record Date are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting. As of the
close of b'us'mess on the Record Date, the Company had 12,304,648 shares of common stock outstanding and
entitled to vote, with each share entitled to one vote. The last sale price reported on Nasdaq for the Company’s
Common Stock on the Record Date was $3.09 per share.

Quorum

The quorum requirement for holding the Annual Meeting and transacting business is that holders of a
majority of the shares of NeoMagic Common Stock outstanding on the Record Date must be present in person or
represented by proxy. Both abstentions and broker non-votes are counted as present or represented for the
purpose of determining the presence of a quorum.

Vote Required

In the election of directors, the six persons receiving the highest number of “FOR” votes at the Annual
Meeting will be elected. All other proposals require the affirmative “FOR” vote of a majority of those shares
present in|person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on those proposals at the Annual Meeting (the
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“Votes Cast”). If a stockholder holds shares beneficially in “street name” (shares held in a brokerage account or
by another nominee) and does not provide the stockholder’s broker with voting instructions, such shares may
constitute “broker non-votes.” Generally, broker non-votes occur on a matter when a broker is not permitted to
vote on that matter without specific instructions from the beneficial owner and such instructions are not given. In
tabulating the voting result for any particular proposal, shares that constitute broker non-votes on a particular
matter are not considered 10 be Votes Cast with respect to that matter. Thus, broker non-votes will not affect,the
outcome of any matter being voted on at the meeting, assuming that a quorum is obtained. Abstentions are
considered to be Votes Cast and therefore have the same effect as votes against the malter, l.
In the election of directors, a stockholder may elect to cumulate votes. Cumulative voting permits:the
stockholder to allocate among the director nominees, in the stockholder’s discretion, a total number of votes
equal to the number of director positions to be filled multiplied by the number of shares such stockholder hqlds.
For example, if a stockholder owns 100 shares of stock, and there are six directors to be elected at the Annual
Meeting, the stockholder could allocate 600 “FOR” votes (6 times 100) among as few as one or as many as six of
the nominees to be voted on at the Annual Meeting. However, no stockholder shall be entitled to cumulate votes
for any candidate unless the candidate’s name has been properly placed in nomination prior to the voting and' the
stockholder, or any other stockholder, has given notice at the meeting prior to the voting of the intention to

cumulate votes, On all other maiters, each share has one vote. ’

Voting and Revocation of Proxies ;

To vote by proxy, stockholders should complete, date, sign and promptly return the accompanying form of
proxy in the envelope provided. Shares of common stock represented by properly executed proxies received by; the
Company and not revoked will be voted at the Annual Meeting in accordance with the instructions contained
therein. If instructions are not given, your shares will be voted in accordance with the recommendations of the
Board (FOR all of the Company’s nominees to the Board, FOR ratification of the independent registered public
accounting firm, FOR the amendment of the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, FOR amendment of the 2003
Stock Plan, and in the discretion of the proxy holders on any other matters that properly come before the meeting).

Any proxy signed and returned by a stockholder may be revoked at any time before it is voted. It ma)Fr be
revoked by filing a written notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date with the Secretary
of the Company at the Company’s principal offices, located at 3250 Jay Street, Santa Clara, California 95054, or
it may be revoked by attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person. Attendance at the Annual Meeting;wi]l
niot in and of itself constitute revocation of a proxy. ;

b

Deadline for Receipt of Proposals or Nominations by Stockholders

Pursuant to the Company’s Bylaws, any proposals of stockholders of the Company or nominations for
director that are intended to be presented by such stockholders at the Company’s 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders must be received in writing by the Secretary of the Company at our principal executive ofﬁcel's no
later than February 8, 2008 (120 days before the anmversary of the mailing date of this proxy statement). Any
nominations for election to the board of directors at the next annual meeting received by the Company by such
date will be considered by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of our Board of Directors. '

!
|

Proxy Solicitation

The cost for this solicitation will be borne by the Company. The Company has retained the services of the
Altman Group to assist in the solicitation of proxies at an estimated fee of approximately $6,000, plus reimbursement
of reasonable costs and expenses. The Company may reimburse brokerage firms and persons representing beneficial
owners of shares for their expenses in forwarding solicitation materials to such beneficial owners. Original
solicitation of proxies by mail may be supplemented by telephone, telegram or personal solicitations by directors,
officers or employees of the Company. No additional compensation will be paid for any such services. |
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Basis of Presentation

The|Company’s fiscal year generally consists of a fifty-two week period ending on the Sunday closest to the
January month end. Fiscal year 2007 ended on January 28, 2007.

Annual Report/Form 10-K

Our|2007 Annual Report to stockholders, which includes our Annual Report on Form 10-K {without certain
exhibits which are excluded from our Annual Report to Stockholders pursuant to Rule 14a-3(b) of the Exchange
Act) for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2007, is being mailed concurrently with this proxy statement as one
document to all stockholders of record as of May 25, 2007. Those exhibits that are excluded from our Annual
Report to Stockholders as described above are available for the cost of photocopying. To receive a copy, please
write to: Investor Relations, NeoMagic Corporation, 3250 Jay Street, Santa Clara, CA 95054.
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PROPOSAL ONE—ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
|

A board of six (6) directors is nominated for election at the Annual Meeting. Unless otherwise instructed, the
proxy holders will vote the proxies received by them for the Company’s six nominees named below. All nominees
are currently directors of the Company. If any nominee of the Company is unable or declines to serve as a director
at the time of the Annual Meeting, the proxies will be voted for any nominee who shall be designated by the current
Board of Directors to fill the vacancy. It is not expected that any nominee will be unable or will decline to serve as a
director, If additional persons are nominated for election as director, or if any nominee becomes unable or declines
o serve as director, the proxy holders intend to vote all proxies received by them in such a manner and in
accordance with curnulative voting as will assure the election of as many of the nominees listed below as possible,
and in such event the specific nominees to be voted for will be determined by the proxy holders. The term of office
of each person elected as a director will continue until the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until a successor
has been duly elected and qualified. There are no arrangements or understandings between any director or execu"tive
officer and any other person pursuant to which such person is or was to be elected as a director or officer of the
Company. There are no family relationships among any executive officers and directors. .

i
Nominees for Directors

Set forth below is certain information regarding the nominees:

Name . Age Position !
DouglasR. Young ....................... 62 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Anil K.Gupta (1D(2)3) .. ..., ena .. 57 Director

Brett A. Mover ... .. i 49 Director !
Carl Stork (I{(2X3) .. oo oo 47 Director ;
Steve Valenzuela (12)(3) ................ 50 Director

SyedZaidi ............ ... . ..., 48 Chief Operating Officer and Director !

(1) Member of the Audit Committee !
(2) Member of the Compensation Committee I

(3) Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee |

Douglas R. Young has served as President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of the Company since
April 2005. Prior to his promotion to President and Chief Executive Officer, he was NeoMagic’s Vice President
of Worldwide Sales, having joined NecMagic in February 2004. Before joining NeoMagic, Mr. Young was
Senior Vice President of Worldwide Sales at Planetweb, Inc., a provider of embedded multimedia application
and browser software for consumer electronics devices, from August 1999 to October 2003. At Planetweb,
Mr. Young worked with customers such as Samsung, Sharp, Philips and other large OEMs. Mr. Young' has
managed sales in many different environments ranging between large systems enterprise sales to the ‘Fortune
500’ and ODM and OEM sales in the consumer electronics market. He has over 25 years experience working for
companies such as IBM, Storage Technology Corporation, Unilease Computer Corporation, Data General and
Hitachi Data Systems. He has worked in hardware and software sales, and he was President and CEO of a
computer and satellite leasing company. Mr. Young has a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Princeton Univetsity
and a Masters Degree in Business Administration from The Stern School of Business at New York University.

Dr. Anil K. Gupta has served as a Director of the Company since November 2000. Dr. Gupta is the Ralph
J. Tyser Professor of Strategy at the Robert H. Smith School of Business, University of Maryland at College Park
where he has served on the faculty since 1986, Dr. Gupta holds a B. Tech, degree from the Indian Institute of
Technology, an M.B.A. from the Indian Institute of Management, and a Ph.D. in business strategy from the
Harvard Business School. ‘

Brett A. Moyer has served as a Director of the Company since March 2007. Mr. Moyer has been president
and chief executive officer and a board member of Focus Enhancements, Inc., a provider of solutions in
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advanced, proprietary video and wireless video technologies, since September 2002 and from May 1997 to
Septembler 29, 2002, Mr. Moyer was their executive vice president and chief operating officer. From February
1986 to April 1997, Mr. Moyer worked at Zenith Electronics Corporation, Glenview, Hlinois, where he was most
recently {the vice president and general manager of Zenith’s Commercial Products Division. Mr. Moyer has also
served as vice president of sales planning and operations at Zenith where he was responsible for forecasting,
customel service, distribution, MIS and regional credit operations. Mr. Moyer has a Bachelor of Arts in
Economics from Beloit College in Wisconsin and a Masters of International Management with a concentration in
finance and accounting from The American Graduate School of International Management (Thunderbird).

Carl Stork has served as a Director of the Company since June 2002. Mr. Stork is chief executive officer
and a board member of Digital Domain, a full-service digital studio and production company, since May 2006.
He has allso been President of Ciconia & Co., LLC, a private investment firm since July 2002, and a partner in
Wyndcrest Holdings, LLC, a private investment and acquisition firm, since May 2000. Mr. Stork has been a
director ‘of Baby Universe (NASDAQ: POSH), an online retailer of brand-name baby, toddler and maternity
products, since October 2004. Mr. Stork was employed by Microsoft Corporation in a variety of management
positions from 1981 through 2002, most recently as General Manager of Hardware Strategy and Business
Development. He previously served as general manager of Windows 9% and technical assistant to Bill Gates.
Mr. Stork is a partner in the Baseball Club of Seattle, owner of the Seattle Mariners major league baseball team.
Mr. Stork serves on the board of several private companies including Stirling Bridge, Inc., Stream Cast (dba
Morpheus) Skyris, a subsidiary of Stirling Bridge, Inc., and Intermed Advisors, Inc. Mr. Stork holds an MBA
from the|University of Washington and a BA in Physics from Harvard University.

Steve Valenzuela has served as a Director of the Company since June 2005. Mr. Valenzuela has been the
Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Rainmaker Systems, a provider of outsourced sales and
marketing services, since September 2004. Mr. Valenzuela was Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial
officer f(%)r the Thomas Kinkade Company, formerly Media Arts Group, a publisher and distributor of the works
of Thomas Kinkade, from February 2003 to September 2004. Mr. Valenzuela was Senior Vice President and
Chief Fi‘lmncia] Officer for Silicon Access Networks, a network semiconductor company, from September 2000
to July 2002. He was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for PlanetRx from February 1999 to
August 2000. Prior to PlanetRx, Mr. Valenzuela served as the Chief Financial Officer for LinkExchange from
August 1998 to February 1999. Mr. Valenzuela holds an MBA from Santa Clara University and a BS degree in
Accounting from San Jose State University.

Syed Zaidi has been Chief Operating Officer and has served as a Director of the Company since February
2007. Frlpm January 2006 to February 2007, Mr. Zaidi was Vice President of Corporate Engineering and from
May 2000 to January 2006, Mr. Zaidi was Vice President of Santa Clara Engineering. Mr. Zaidi joined
NeoMagic’s engineering team in June 1995 and worked in engineering management until his promotion to Vice
Prcsidenl in 2000. Prior to joining NeoMagic, Mr. Zaidi worked at Sierra Semiconductor, where he was
responsible of systems engineering for Multimedia products. He has also worked at Advance Micro Research
where hI designed and developed UNIX based multi-user systems, multiple Video and Graphic ASICs for
Multimedia products. Mr. Zaidi holds a Bachelor of Electrical & Electronics Engineering from Leeds University,
England lind a BSET from Indiana State University.

Vote Required

Din?ctors will be elected by a plurality vote of the shares of the Company’s Common Stock present or
represent]ed and entitled to vote on this matter at the meeting. Accordingly, the candidates receiving the highest
number of affirmative votes of shares represented and voting on this proposal at the meeting will be elected
directors|of the Company. Votes withheld from a nominee and broker non-votes will be counted for purposes of
determining the presence or absence of a quorum but, because directors are elected by a plurality vote, will have
no impact once a quorum is present. -

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the above-named nominees.

5
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PROPOSAL TWO—RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed Stonefield Josephson, Inc. as the independent
registered public accounting firm to (i) andit the financial statements of the Company for the fiscal year end_ing
January 27, 2008, and (i) to render other services as required of them, and is seeking ratification by 'the
stockholders of this appointment. Stonefield Josephson, Inc. first audited the Company’s financial statements for
fiscal 2006.
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A representative of Stonefield Josephson, Inc. is expected to be present at the Annual Meeting. The
representative will have an opportunity to make a statement if such representative desires to do so, and will be
available to respond to appropriate questions by stockholders. !

Stockholder ratification of the selection of Stonefield losephson, Inc. as our independent registered puE]ic
accounting firm is not required by our Bylaws or otherwise. The Audit Committee is submitting the selection of
Stonefield Josephson, Inc. to the stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice and because
the Audit Committee values stockholders’ views on our independent auditors. |

If the stockholders fail to ratify the selection, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether or not to ret;ain
the firm. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee in its discretion may direct the appointment of a
different independent accounting firm at any time during the year if it determines that such an appomlment
would be in the best interests of our stockholders.

Fees Billed by Stonefield Josephson, Inc. and Ernst & Young LLP for fiscal years 2007 and 2006 :
The table below sets forth the aggregate fees billed during fiscal years ended January 28, 2007 and
January 29, 2006 for audit and other services provided by Stonefield Josephson, Inc. and Emst & Young, LLP

These fees do not reflect all fees incurred, only fees actuaily billed,
[

Fiscal Year
{in thousands) 2007 2006 (1) |
ARAILFEEs (2) . vt e e e $413 $482 ‘
Audit-Related Fees . . .. .. . e $ — $ — '
Tax Fees (3) ot i e et e e $244 $ 14 ‘
AN Other Fees ... ... .. i e e $158 $ 3
077 O 3815 $499

|

|
(1) Fees billed include those billed by Ernst & Young, LLP (former principal accountants) and Stonef‘ield
Josephson, Inc.

|
(2) Audit fees include fees associated with the annual audit, reviews of the Company’s quarterly financial
statements, statutory audits required for the international subsidiaries, permitted accounting consultauons

and review of regulatory filings, '

(3) Stonefield Josephson, Inc. does not provide tax-related services. '

i

Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Services ‘

Under the Audit Committee charter, the Audit Committee must pre-approve all audit and permitted non—aildit
services, including the fees and terms thereof, to be performed by our independent registered public accounting
firm, subject to the de minimis exceptions for non-audit services prescribed in federal securities laws and
regulations. The Audit Committee shall have the sole authority to approve the hiring and firing of the independent
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registered public accounting firm, ail audit engagement fees and terms and ali non-audit engagements, as may be
permissible, with the independent auditors. In the past two fiscal years, the Audit Committee has pre-approved all
audit and|non-audit fees paid to Stonefield Josephson, Inc. and Ernst & Young LLP.

The| Audit Committee has determined that the provision of services described above is compatible with
maintaining Stonefield Josephson, Inc.’s independence.

Prior Accountants

On July 22, 2005, the Company engaged Stonefield Josephson, Inc. (“SJ7) as its new independent registered
public accounting firm to audit the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ending
January 29, 2006, and to perform procedures related to the financial statements included in the Company’s
quarterly!reports on Form 10-Q, beginning with the quarter ending July 31, 2005. The Audit Committee and the
Board of| Directors approved the decision to engage SI. During the fiscal years ended January 30, 2005 and
January 25, 2004 and through July 22, 2005, the Company did not consult with SJ regarding either (i) the
applicatign of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or proposed, or the type of audit
opinion that might be rendered on the Company’s financial statements, and neither a written report was provided
to the Company nor was oral advice provided that 8J concluded was an important factor considered by the
Company, in reaching a decision as to the accounting, auditing or financial reporting issue; or (ii) any matter that
was either the subject of a disagreement, as that term is defined in Item 304(a){1)(v) of Regulation S-K and the
related instructions to Item 304 of Regulation S-K, or a reportable event, as that term is defined in
Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K.

On July 22, 2005, the Company dismissed Ernst & Young LLP (“E&Y™) as the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm. The Audit Commiitee and the Board of Directors elected to dismiss E&Y.

During the fiscal year ended January 28, 2007, there were no disagreements with SJ on any matter of
accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure. Had there been
any disagreements of the type referred to in this paragraph during the fiscal year ended January 28, 2007 that
were not :resolved to the satisfaction of SJ, then SJ would have had to make a reference to the subject matter of
such disagreements in connection with its reports on the financial statements for such periods. During the fiscal
years ended January 31, 2005 and 2004 and through July 22, 2005, there were no disagreements with E&Y on
any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure.
Had there been any disagreements of the type referred to in this paragraph during the fiscal years ended
January 3[1, 2005 and 2004 and through July 22, 2005, that were not resolved to the satisfaction of E&Y, then
E&Y would have had to make a reference to the subject matter of such disagreements in connection with its
reports on the financial statements for such periods.

Vote Required
The ratification of Stonefield Josephson, Inc. will require approval by a majority of the Votes Cast. Broker

non-votes|will only be counted for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a quorum.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors recommend a vote FOR the ratification
of the appointment of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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PROPOSAL THREE—APPROVAL OF THE 2006 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Our 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan was previously adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors'and
approved by its stockholders. The stockholders are being requested at this Annual Meeting to approve an
amendment to the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan to increase by 100,000 the number of shares that may be
issued under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. As of January 28, 2007, only 291,641 shares of Common
Stock remained available for issuance under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Our Board of Directors
believes that the number of shares of Common Stock that remain available for issuance will be insufficient to
achieve the purposes of the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan over the term of the plan unless the additiéma]
shares are authorized and approved by the stockholders. w

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Plan as set forth in Appendix A.

Purpose

The purpose of the Plan is to provide employees with an opportunity to purchase Common Stock through
accumulated payroll deductions. The 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan qualifies as an “employee stock
purchase plan” under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code. The provisions of the Plan, accordingly. are
construed s0 as to extend and limit Plan participation in a uniform and nondiscriminatory basis consistent with
the requirements of Section 423 of the Code.

Eligibility to Participate

Most employees of the Company and its participating subsidiaries are eligible to participate in the 2:006
Employee Stock Purchase Plan. However, an employee is not eligible if he or she has the right to acquire five
percent or more of the voting stock of the Company or of any subsidiary of the Company or, unless the
Committee provides otherwise, if he or she normally is scheduled to work less than or equal to twenty hours per
week or five months per calendar year. Approximately 65 employees are currently eligible to participate in the
2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. .

t
Administration, Amendment and Termination ]

The compensation committee of the Board of Directors (the “Committee”) administers the 2006 Empl(:)yee
Stock Purchase Plan. The members of the Committee serve at the pleasure of the Board. Subject to the terms of
the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the Committee has all the discretion and authority necessary or
appropriate to control and manage the operation and administration of the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
The Committee may make whatever rules, interpretations, and computations, and take any other actions to
administer the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan that it considers appropriate to promote the Company’s best
interests, and to ensure that the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan remains qualified under Section 423 of the
Internal Revenue Code. The Committee may delegate one or more of ministerial duties in the administration of
the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. !

The Committee or the Company’s Board of Directors may amend or terminate the 2006 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan at any time and for any reason. However, as required by Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code
or other applicable law, rule, or regulation, the Company’s stockholders must approve cenain material

amendments.
]

Number of Shares of Commton Stock Availabte under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

291,641 shares of Common Stock are reserved for issuance under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
Upon any stock split, stock dividend or other change in the capital structure of the Company, appropriate
adjustments will be made in the number, kind and purchase price of the shares available for purchase under the
2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. I




Enrollment and Contributions

Eliglible employees voluntarily elect whether or not to enroll in the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
The 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan currently allows employees (o join an offering period of twenty-
four months. Employees who have joined the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan automatically are re-enrolled
for additional rolling twenty-four month offering periods; provided, however, that an employee may cancel his or
her panijipation at any time (subject to 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan rules).

Employees contribute to the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan through payroll deductions. Participaiing
employees generally may contribute not less than 1% up to and not exceeding 10% of their eligible compensation
through dfter-tax payroll deductions. From time to time, the Committee may establish a different maximum
permitledl contribution percentage, change the definition of eligible compensation, or change the length of the
offering periods (but in no event may any offering period exceed 27 months). After an offering period has begun,
an employee may increase or decrease his or her contribution percentage (subject to 2006 Employee Stock
Purchase [Plan rules).

Purchasi of Shares

Each twenty-four month offering period generally contains four purchase periods of approximately six
months duration. On the last business day of each six-month purchase period, the Company uses the payroll
deductions of each participating employee to purchase shares of Common Stock for such employees. The price of
the shares equals 85% of the lower of (1) the stock’s market value on the first day of the offering period, or
(2) the stack market's value on the date of purchase. Market value under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
means the closing bid price on the NASDAQ Global Market for the day in question. However, in any single year,
no employee may purchase more than $25,000 of Common Stock {(based on market value at the beginning of the
applica‘ble; offering period). The maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be purchased by a
single employee on any purchase date equals 10,000 shares.

Termination of Participation

Participation in the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan terminates when a participating employee’s
employmé'nt with the Company or any participating subsidiary ceases for any reason, the employee withdraws
from the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or the Company terminates or amends the 2006 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan such that the employee no longer is eligible to participate.

Termination of the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan will continue in effect for a term of ten years from the date of
adoption unless terminated sooner by action of the Company’s Board of Directors.

Securities| Underlying Awards

On May 25, 2007, the per share closing price of the Company’s common stock was $3.09 as reported on the

Nasdaq Global Market.

Number of Shares Purchased by Certain Individuals and Groups

Given that the number of shares of common stock that may be purchased under the 2006 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan is determined, in part, on the stock’s market value on the first and last day of the purchase period
and given that participation in the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan is voluntary on the part of employees, the
actual number of shares that may be purchased by any individual is not determinable. For illustrative purposes,
the following table sets forth the number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock that were purchased in

9

=
-
=
-
s
o
=
£
=
=
=
=
=
=
-




2007, under the now terminated 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. No shares have been purchased under the
2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan,

Dollar Value of Shares Aggregate Number of Shares .
Parchased Under the Plan in Purchased Under the Planin |
the Fiscal Year Ended the Fiscal Year Ended
Name January 28, 2007 (1) January 28, 2007
DouglasR. Young ..............cc.ov.... n/a 0 !
Scott Sullinger . ...........c..vveini.n. n/a 0 .
JeffreyBlanc .......... ... ... ... ... n/a 0 |
SyedZaidi ......... ... ... .. .. ..., nfa 0
DecprajPuar . .......... . ... L. n/a 0 l
All current executive officers, '
asagroup(2) .. ... $ 2,628 591 |
All directors who are not executive officers,
asagroup (2} ..o e nfa 0 '
All employees who are not executive officers, :
asagroup(3) ... e $706,312 161,503 '

(1) Aggregate dollar value is based upon the closing fair market value of the Company’s common stock of
$3.14 and $5.75 on June 9, 2006 and December 8, 2006, respectively.

(2) Executive officers include former officers of the Company.

(3) Directors who are not employees of the Company are not eligible to participate in either the 1997 Emplo:yec
Stock Purchase Plan or the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. .

Tax Aspects I

|
Based on management’s understanding of current federal income tax laws, the tax consequences of; the
purchase of shares of Common Stock under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan are as follows: |

An employee will not have taxable income when the shares of Common Stock are purchased for him or her,
but the employee generally will have taxable income when the employee sells or otherwise disposes of siock
purchased through the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. [

For shares that the employee does not dispose of until more than 24 months after the applicable enrollment
date and more than 12 months after the purchase date (the “holding period™), gain up to the amount of the
discount (if any} from the market price of the stock on the enrollment date (or re-enrollment date) is taxed as
ordinary income (as the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan offering periods are currently structured, this would
be up to 15% of the fair market value of the shares on the enroliment date). Any additional gain above that
amount is taxed at long-term capital gain rates. If, after the holding period, the employee sells the stock for less
than the purchase price, the difference is a long-term capital loss. Shares sold within the holding period are taxed
at ordinary income rates on the amount of discount received from the stock’s market price on the purchase date.
Any additional gain (or loss) is taxed to the stockholder as capital gain {or loss). The purchase date begins the
period for determining whether the gain (or loss} is short-term or long-term. .

The Company may deduct for federal income tax purposes an amount equal to the ordinary income an
employee must recognize when he or she disposes of stock purchased under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase
Plan within the holding period. The Company may not deduct any amount for shares disposed of after the
holding period. -
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Vote Required

The!increase in the number of shares available for issuance under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
will require approval by a majority of the Votes Cast. Broker non-votes will only be counted for purposes of
determinjng the presence or absence of a quorum.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the approval of the increase
in the number of shares available for issuance under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

PROPOSAL FOUR—AMENDMENT TO THE 2003 STOCK PLAN

Our{ 2003 Stock Plan was previously adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors and approved by its
stockholders. Employees have participated in that plan since October 1, 2003. The 2003 Stock Plan, as of
January 28, 2007, has reserved for issuance an aggregate of 1,363,605 shares of the Company’s Common Stock
(“Commbn Stock™), adjusted for the August 2005 reverse stock split. The stockholders are being requested at this
Annual Meeting to approve an amendment to the 2003 Stock Plan to increase by 500,000 the number of shares
that may| be issued under the 2003 Stock Plan. As of January 28, 2007, only 286,024 shares of Common Stock
remained available for issuance under the 2003 Stock Plan. Our Board of Directors believes that the number of
shares of Common Stock that remain available for issuance will be insufficient to achieve the purposes of the
2003 Stgck Plan over the term of the plan unless the additional shares are authorized and approved by the
stockholders.

Summary of the 2003 Stock Plan

The] following paragraphs provide a summary of the principal features of the 2003 Stock Plan (the “Plan™)
and its aperation. The following summary is gualified in its entirety by reference to the Plan as set forth in
Appendix B.

Background and Purpose of the Plan

The| Plan permits the grant of the following types of incentive awards: (1) stock options, (2) stock
appreciation rights, and (3) stock purchase rights (individually, an “Award™), The Plan is intended to increase
incentivés and to encourage share ownership on the part of eligible employees, non-employee directors and
consultants who provide significant services to us. The Plan also is intended to further our growth and
profitability.

Administration of the Plan

The| Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors (the “Committee”) administers the Plan. The
members of the Committee must qualify as “non-employee directors” under Rule 16b-3 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and as “outside directors” under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code (so that the
Company can receive a federal tax deduction for certain compensation paid under the Plan).

Subject to the terms of the Plan, the Committee has the sole discretion to select the employees,
non-employee directors and consultants who will receive Awards, determine the terms and conditions of Awards
(for example, the exercise price and vesting schedule, including acceleration of vesting), and interpret the
provisions of the Plan.

The| Committee may delegate any part of its authority and powers under the Plan 1o one or more directors
and/or olfﬁcers of the Company, but only the Committee itself can make Awards to participants who are
executive officers of the Company. The Company will obtain stockholder approval of any Plan amendment to the
extent nelcessary and desirable to comply with Applicable Laws.

11




Plan and Qutstanding Awards '

If an Award expires or is cancelled without having been fully exercised or vested, the unvested or cancelled
shares generally will be returned to the available pool of shares reserved for issuance under the Plan. Also, if we
experience a stock dividend, reorganization or other change in our capital structure, the Committee has discretion
to adjust the number of shares available for issuance under the Plan, the outstanding Awards, and the per-person
limits on Awards, as appropriate to reflect the stock dividend or other change.

Eligibility to Receive Awards

The Committee selects the employees, nom-employee directors and consultants who will be granted Awards
under the Plan. The actual number of individuals who will receive an Award under the Plan cannot be determined
in advance because the Committee has the discretion to select the participants. i

Stock Options

A stock option is the right to acquire shares of the Company’s Common Stock (“Shares™) at a fixed exercise
price for a fixed period of time. Under the Plan, the Committee may grant nonqualified stock options and/or
incentive stock options (which entitle employees, but not the Company, to more favorable tax treatment). The
Committee will determine the number of Shares covered by each option, subject to certain limitations, but during
any fiscal year of the Company, no participant may be granted options covering more than 400,000 Shares extept
an additional 200,000 Shares may be granted to a participant in connection with his or her initial employment.
{All share amounts have been adjusted in recognition of the reverse stock split that occurred in August 2005.),

The exercise price of the Shares subject to each option is set by the Committee but cannot be less than 100%
of the fair market value on the date of grant of the Shares covered by incentive stock options or nonqualified
options intended to qualify as “performance based” under Section 162(m) of the Code, unless nonqualified
options are otherwise so qualified. No more than 20% of the Shares reserved for issuance under the Plan may be
issued pursuant to nonqualified stock options (together with stock appreciation rights and stock purchase rights,
both discussed below) with an exercise price less than 100% of the fair market value of the Shares covered by
such an option on the date of grant.

An option granted under the Plan cannot generally be exercised until it becomes vested. The Committee
establishes the vesting schedule of each option at the time of grant. Options become exercisable at the times ’and
on the terms established by the Committee.

The exercise price of each option granted under the Pian must be paid in full at the time of exercise. The
Committee also may permit payment through the tender of Shares that are already owned by the participant, or
by any other means, which the Committee determines to be consistent with the purpose of the Plan. The

participant must pay any taxes the Company is required to withhold at the time of exercise. |
|

Stock Appreciation Rights

Awards of stock appreciation rights may be granted in connection with all or any part of an option, either
concurrently with the grant of an option or at any time thereafter during the term of the option, or may be granted
independently of options. No participant may be granted stock appreciation rights covering more than 400,000
Shares in any fiscal year of the Company, except an additional 200,000 Shares may be granted to a participarit in
connection with his or her initial employment. (All share amounts have been adjusted in recognition of the
reverse stock split that occurred in August 2005.) '

1

The Committee determines the terms of stock appreciation rights, except that no more than 20% of the Shares
reserved for issuance under the Plan may be issued pursuant to stock appreciation rights (together with nonstatutory

|
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stock optitlms, discussed above, and stock purchase rights, discussed below) with an exercise price less than 100% of
the fair market value of the Shares covered by such a stock appreciation right on the date of grant.

A stock appreciation in connection with an option will entitle the participant to exercise the stock
appreciatil)n right by surrendering to the Company a portion of the unexercised related option. The participant
will receive in exchange from the Company an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of the Shares
on the date of exercise of the stock appreciation right covered by the surrendered portion of the related option
over the exercise price of the Shares covered by the surrendered portion of the related option. When a stock
appreciation right granted in connection with an option is exercised, the related option, to the extent surrendered,
will cease|to be exercisable. A stock appreciation right granted in connection with an option will be exercisable
until, and will expire no later than, the date on which the related option ceases 10 be exercisable or expires.

Stock appreciation rights may also be granted independently of options. Such a stock appreciation right will
entitle the|participant, upon exercise, to receive from the Company an amount equal to the excess of the fair
market value of the Shares on the date of exercise over the exercise price of the Shares covered by the exercised
portion ofi the stock appreciation right. A stock appreciation right granted without a related option will be
exercisable, in whole or in part, at such time as the Committee will specify in the stock appreciation right
agreement!

The Cfompany's obligation arising upon the exercise of a stock appreciation right may be paid in Shares or
in cash, orlany combination thereof, as the Committee may determine.

Stock Purchase Rights

Stock|Purchase Rights are Awards of restricted Shares that vest in accordance with the terms and conditions
establishedI by the Committee. The Committee will determine the number of restricted Shares to any participant.
Also, the total number of Shares subject to Stock Purchase Rights (together with nonstatutory stock options and
stock appreciation rights, both discussed above) may not exceed 20% of the Shares reserved for issuance under
the Plan.

In determining whether a Stock Purchase Right should be made, and/or the vesting schedule for any such
Award, the Committee may impose whatever conditions to vesting as it determines to be appropriate. For
example, he Committee may determine to grant a Stock Purchase Right only if the participant satisfies
performance goals established by the Committee.

Change of|Control

In the|event of a merger of the Company with or into another corporation or a “change of control” of the
Company, the successor corporation will either assume or provide a substitute award for each outstanding stock
option and [stock appreciation right. If the successor corporation refuses to assume or provide a substituie award,
the Committee will provide at least 15 days notice that the option or stock appreciation right will immediately
vest and become exercisable as to all of the Shares subject to such Award and that such Award will terminate
upon the e)!piration of such notice period.

In the|event of a merger of the Company with or into another corporation or a “change of control” of the
Company, any Company repurchase or reacquisition right with respect to restricted Shares acquired pursuant to a
Stock Purchase Right or other Award will be assigned to the successor corporation. In the event any such
Company repurchase or reacquisition right is not assigned to the successor corporation, such Company
repurchase ot reacquisition right will lapse and the participant will be fully vested in such restricted Shares.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION _
i
The following table shows the number of shares of common stock that could be issued upon exercise of

outstanding options, the weighted average exercise price of the outstanding options and the remaining sh:ares
available for future issuance as of January 28, 2007, )

(O

)

YVote Required

Number of Shares

(A) (B) Remaining Available for
Number of Shares to be Weighted Average Future Issuance Under
Issued Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation
Outstanding Options,  Outstanding Options, Plans (Excluding Shares
Plan Category Warranis and Rights Warrants and Rights  Reflected in Column A)
Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders .. ................... 1,170,982 $5.80 577,665(1)
Equity compensation plans not approved ’
by stockholders .................. 1,085,591 $7.73 77,396(2)
Total ... oo i i 2,256,573 $6.73 655,060 :

Includes 286,024 shares available for future issuance under our 2003 Stock Option Plan, as amerided,
generally used for grants to officers and directors. Also includes 291,641 shares available under our 2006
Employee Stock Purchase Plan. '

Shares availabie under our 1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan are used for grants to employees other,than
officers and directors except as provided within the plan. For a description of the 1998 Plan, see Note 4 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part II of this Form 10-K, which informali:on is
incorporated by reference into this Item 5 of Part II of this Form 10-K. This plan was not previously
required to be approved by stockholders. Due to regulatory changes, going forward, all material changes to
the plan require stockholder approval. l

The increase in the number of shares available for issuance under the 2003 Stock Plan will require approval

by a majority of the Votes Cast. Broker non-votes will only be counted for purposes of determining the presence
or absence of a quorum.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the approval of the '
increase in the number of shares available for issuance under the 2003 Stock Plan.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The lfollowing table sets forth certain information with respect to beneficial ownership of our Common Stock,
as of May 1, 2007, for (i) all executive officers listed in the Summary Compensation Table, (ii) each of our current
directors, |(iii) all of our current directors and executive officers as a group, and (iv) each person who is known by
the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the Company’s Common Stock. Unless otherwise
indicated,| the principal address of each of the stockholders below is c/o NeoMagic Corporation, 3250 Jay Street,
Santa Clara, CA 95054. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and
Exchangel Commission (the “SEC™) based on voting and investment power with respect to the securities. Except as
indicated by footnote, each person identified in the table possesses sole voting and investment power with respect to
all shares|of Common Stock shown held by them. The number of shares of Common Stock outstanding used in
calculating the percentage for each listed person includes shares of Common Stock underlying options and
outstanding warrants held by such person that are exercisable within 60 calendar days of May 1, 2007, but excludes
shares of Common Stock underlying options and or warrants held by any other person.

Beneficial Ownership Table

Number of

Name, of Beneficial Owner Shares Percent (1)
DOURIES YOUNZ (2) -+« e v e ee e e e e e e et e e 122,540 *
Scott Sullinger (3) ..o 21,980 *
Syed|Zaidi (4) .. ..o 127,455 *
Deepraj Puar (5) ..o oo 112,510 *
Jeffrey BIANC (6) - .- oet et eeie e 0 *
ANl GUpta (7) .ot 67.599 *
Car] Stork £8) ...\ 66,764 *
Steve Valenzuela (9) ... oot e 20,208 *
BrettMoyer (10) .. ... o 0 *
All clirrent executive officers and directors as a group (11 persons) (11} .. .. 550,089 4.08%
Raffles Associates, LP. (12) ... oo e 901,991 6.68%
Entities affiliated with Special Situations (13} ...t 2,157,398 15.98%

(N Basc&i on 12,304,648 shares ouistanding as of May 1, 2007.

2) Inclui es options to purchase an aggregate of 116,240 shares that are exercisable within 60 days of May 1,
2007

(3) Includes options to purchase an aggregate of 21,980 shares that are exercisable within 60 days of May 1,
2007/ Mr. Sullinger resigned from the Company effective March 6, 2007.

4) Im:lu| es options 1o purchase an aggregate of 117,433 shares that are exercisable within 60 days of May 1,
2007,

(5) Includes options to purchase an aggregate of 106,772 shares that are exercisable within 60 days of May 1,
2007,

(6) Mr. Blanc resigned from the Company on August 11, 2006. Based on Securities and Exchange Commission
filings, Mr. Blanc holds no shares of the Company’s stock.

(7) Includes options 1o purchase an aggregate of 65,099 shares that are exercisable within 60 days of May 1,
2007, Mr. Gupta’s son is owner of 500 shares of common stock, which are included in the total shares
owned.

(8) Includes options to purchase an aggregate of 61,124 shares that are exercisable within 60 days of May 1,
2007.

(9) Includes options to purchase an aggregate of 20,208 shares that are exercisable within 60 days of May I,
2007.
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(10) Mr. Moyer joined the Board of Directors on March 5, 2007, |

{11} Includes options to purchase an aggregate of 519,593 shares held by executive officers and directors that are
exercisable within 60 days of May 1, 2007,

(12) This information is based on the Schedule 13G (Amendment No. 1) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on January 25, 2007. Raffles Associates, L.P. is located at One Metrotech Center North,
Brooklyn, NY 11201. Includes warrants to purchase 100,000 shares of common stock that are'net
exercisable commencing on June 6, 2007. !

(13) This information is based on the Schedule 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 10, 2007. Special Situations is located at 527 Madison Avenue, Suite 2600, New York, NY 10(|)22.
Austin W. Marxe and David M. Greenhouse share sole voting and investment power over (i) 234,698 shares
of Common Stock and Warrants to purchase 83,500 shares of Common Stock owned by Special Situations
Private Equity Fund, L.P., (ii) 600,100 shares of Common Stock and Warrants 1o purchase 218,000 shares
of Common Stock owned by Special Situations Fund III QP, L.P., (iii} 103,600 shares of Common Stock
and Warrants to purchase 38,000 shares of Common Stock owned by Special Situations Technology Fund,
L.P. and (iv) 644,000 shates of Common Stock and Warrants to purchase 235,500 shares of Common Stock
owned by Special Situations Technology Fund II, L.P. Includes warrants to purchase 575,000 shares of
common stock detatled in this footnote that are net exercisable commencing on June 6, 2007.

* lessthan 1%

[

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS I

[
The Company has transactions from time to time in the ordinary course of business with corporations and
institutions, or their subsidiaries, for which certain of our non-employee directors of the Company servb as
directors or officers. For those companies that have non-employee directors with the Company, management
believes these common directors have no direct or indirect material interest in transactions in which the Company

engages with those companies,

Raffles Associates, L.P., a greater than 5% stockholder, acquired 200,000 shares of common stock and
warrants to purchase 100,000 shares of common stock from the Company in a registered direct offering, which
closed on December 6, 2006. Each unit, consisting of one share and a warrant to purchase 1/2 share, was
acquired at a purchase price of $4.58 per unit. The exercise price of the warrants, subject to the terms of the
agreement, is $5.20 per share. |

Entities affiliated with Special Situations, a greater than 5% stockholder, acquired 1,150,000 shares of
common stock and warrants to purchase 575,000 shares of common stock from the Company in the same
registered direct offering at the same prices.

The Company follows the guidelines of SFAS 57, Related Party Disclosures, to identify and disclose related
party transactions for employees and directors of the Company. The Company’s Board of Directors approveés all

related party transactions with an involved director recusing themselves from the approvai process.
1

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

During fiscal year ended January 28, 2007, the Section 16 officers, directors and greater than 10%
stockholders of the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on a timely basis all required
Forms 3, 4, and 5 pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, The Company has reliéd on
the written representations of its officers and directors and copies of the reports filed by officers, directors and
greater than 10% stockholders with the Securities and Exchange Comrmission in providing this information. '
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BOARD MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors held 18 meetings during the fiscal year ended January 28, 2007. Each incumbent
director attended at least 75% of the aggregate meetings of the Board and meetings of the Board committees on
which they served held during the tast fiscal year at a time when they were serving as a director. The Board also
approved certain actions by unanimous written consent.

Director Independence

The ' oard determines the independence of each director and nominee for election as a director observing all
criteria for independence as set forth in the NASDAQ Global Market listing standards and applicable rules of the
Securities|and Exchange Commission (the “Commission™).

The Board has determined that a majority of our Board is independent according to the applicable rules of
the Comn{ission and the listing standards of the NASDAQ Global Market. In making the determinations as to
which melrnbers of the Board are independent, the Board considered the fact that certain of these independent
directors, as disclosed in their biographies set forth under “Proposal One—Election of Directors”, are associated
with othericompanies in the semiconductor indusiry. In reviewing these relationships, the Board determined that,
absent a dlirect conflict {in which the Board may require refusal or other similar procedures); such relationships
do not impede any such director’s ability to act independently on behalf of the Company and its stockholders,
The Board has determined that, except Douglas R. Young and Syed Zaidi, who are executive officers of the
Company,|each of the current directors has no material relationship with NeoMagic Corporation (either directly
or as a partner, stockholder or officer of an organization that has a material relationship with NeoMagic
Corporati&n) and is independent within the meaning of the applicable rules of the Commission and the listing
standards of the NASDAQ Global Market.

Committees

The Board of Directors has an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee, and a Nominating and
Corporate 'Governance Committee. Each of these committees operates under a written charter adopted by the
Board. Alll of the committee charters are available on NeoMagic Corporation’s website at
http://www .neomagic.com/about/corporate_governance.asp. Membership on these committees is limited to
independent non-employee directors.

Audit Committee

The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Valenzuela, Dr. Gupta and Mr. Stork. Each member
of the Aud{it Committee is “independent” under the NASDAQ rules for audit committee member qualifications.
Mr. Valenzuela serves as Chair of the Audit Committee and fulfills the Audit Committee financial expert role as
defined inlltem 407(d)(5)(ii) of Regulation S-K. The functions of the Audit Committee include reviewing
NeoMagic’is auditing, accounting, financial reporting and system of internal controls, overseeing the work of the
independent registered public accounting firm, and approving audit and non-audit services provided by the
independent registered public accounting firm. During the fiscal year ended January 28, 2007, the Audit
Committee| met four times. Additional information relating to the Audit Committee appears below under the
heading “Audit Committee Report™.

Compensation Commiltee

The Compensation Committee currently consists of Mr. Stork, Dr. Gupta and Mr. Valenzuela. Mr. Stork is
Chair of the Compensation Committee. The Committee is responsible for determining the compensation of the
chief executive officer (the “CEO”) without management present. With respect to the compensation of the other
executive o!fﬁcers and vice presidents (the “Executives”), the CEO provides input and makes recommendations
to the Committee, but the Committee decides the compensation to be paid to such Executives.

17




R
=
2

‘=

S

f—

B

]

[

-0

.4
-
o]
P
-~
s

|

The Compensation Committee is also responsible for administering our stock plans and other incentive
plans, except to the extent those responsibilities have been retained by the board. See “Compensation Committee
Report” below. During the last fiscal year, the Compensation Commitiee met once. Many functions of the

Compensation Committee were performed by the Board of Directors acting as a committee of the whole. !
[

Nominating and Corporate Governance Commilttee :

!

The current members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are Dr. Gupta, Mr. Stork and
Mr. Valenzuela. The functions of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee include assisting the Board
by identifying prospective director nominees and recommending to the Board the director nominees for the next
annual meeting of stockholders, developing and recommending to the Board the governance principles applicable to
the Company, overseeing the evaluation of the Board, and recommending to the Board director nominees for 'each
committee. During the last fiscal year, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee did not meet.
Functions of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee were performed by the full Board of Directors.

|
Director Qualifications

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee (or, during fiscal 2007, the Board) utilizes a variety
of methods for identifying and evaluating candidates for director. In evaluating the gqualifications o’f the
candidates, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitiee (or the Board) considers many factors,
including issues of character, judgment, independence, expertise, diversity of experience, length of service, other
commitments and the like. It evaluates such factors, among others, and does not assign any particular weighting
or priority to any of these factors. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee (or the Board) also
considers each individual candidate in the context of the current perceived needs of the Board as a whole. While
no specific minimum qualifications for director candidates have been established, the Nominating and
Governance Committee believes that candidates and nominees must reflect a Board that is comprised of diréctors
who (i) are predominantly independent, (i) are of high integrity, (iii) have qualifications that will increase overall
Board effectiveness and (iv) meet other requirements as may be required by applicable rules, such as financial
literacy or financial expertise with respect to Audit Committee members. ,

Identification and Evaluation of Nominees for Directors ,

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee (or the Board) regularly assesses the appropriate size
of the Board, and whether any vacancies on the Board are expected due to retirement or otherwise, If vacancies are
anticipated, or otherwise arise, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee (or the Board) considers
various potential candidates for director. Candidates may come to the attention of the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee through current members of the Board, professional search firms, stockholders or, other
persons. These candidates are evaluated at regular or special meetings of the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee {or the Board), and may be considered at any point during the year. {

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider proberly submitted stockl:loldcr
recommendations for candidates for the Board. In evalvating such recommendations, the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee considers the qualifications discussed above and seeks to achieve a balance of
knowledge, experience and capability on the Board. .
|
Mr. Brett Moyer and Mr. Syed Zaidi were recommended for appointment to the Board by Douglas Young,

the Company’s Chief Executive Officer.

Stockholder Proposals

For stockholder proposals to be considered for possible inclusion in our 2008 proxy statement, the written proposal
must be received by cur Corporate Secretary, at our corporate offices at 3250 Jay Street, Santa Clara, California 95054,
t
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no later than February 8, 2008. If the date of next year’s annual meeting is moved more than 30 days before or after the
amliversa(ly date of this year’s Annual Meeting, the deadline for inclusion of stockholder proposals in our proxy
statement |is instead a reasonable time before NeoMagic begins to print and mail its proxy materials. All stockholder
proposals will also need to comply with SEC regulations, in particular Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, regarding the inclusion of stockholder proposals in any company-sponsored proxy material,

Nomination of Director Candidates

A stockholder may propose director candidates for consideration by submitting them to the Board’s
Nominati'ng and Corporate Governance Committee. Such proposals should be sent directly to the Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee, c/o Chief Financial Officer, NeoMagic Corporation, 3250 Jay Street,
Santa Clz}ra, CA 935054. In addition, the stockholder must give notice to the Corporate Secretary, and such notice
must be received within the time period described above under “Stockholder Proposals.” Any such nomination
should in¢lude the following:

{1) [nominee’s name, age, nationality, business and residential address;
(2) [nominee’s principal occupation and employment;

(3) ithe class and number of shares of stock of the Company owned beneficially or of record by nominee;
and

(4) |any other information required to be disclosed in the proxy statement.

The |stockholder’s notice must also include the following information for the stockholder giving the notice
and the beneficial holder, if any, on whose behalf the nomination or proposal is being made:

(1} !their names and addresses;
(2} ithe class and number of shares of stock of the Company owned beneficially and of record by them;

(3) a description of any arrangements or understandings between them and each proposed nominee and
any other persons (including their names) pursuant to which the nominations are being made;

(4) |a representation that they intend to appear in person or by proxy at the at the annual meeting to
nominate the person named in the notice;

(5) |a representation as to whether they are part of a group that intends to deliver a proxy statement or
solicit proxies in support of the nomination; and

(6) |any other information that would be required to be included in the proxy statement.

If such stockholder director nomination is made in accordance with instructions set forth above, the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors will apply the same criteria in
evaluating the nominee as it would any other board nominee candidate and will recommend to the Board of
Directors| whether or not the stockholder nominee should be included as a candidate for election in our proxy
statement. The nominee and nominating stockholder must be willing to provide any information reasonably
requested, by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee in connection with its evaluation. The Board of
Directors|shall make the final determination whether or not a nominee will be included in the proxy statement and
card for Tection.

Stockholder Communications with the Board

Stockholders and interested parties may communicate with the board of directors or any individual director by
writing t¢ them by mail ¢/o NeoMagic Corporation, 3250 Jay Street, Santa Clara, CA 95054, The Chief Executive
Officer or the Chief Financial Officer will receive the correspondence and forward it to the presiding director or to
any individual director or directors to whom the communication is directed. The Chief Executive Officer and the
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Chief Financial Officer review, sort and summarize all communications received prior to their presentation to, the
presiding director or to whichever director(s) the communication is addressed. If such communications are not a

proper matter for board attention, such individuals will direct such communication to the appropriate department;
I

Policy on Director Attendance at Annual Meetings I
|

Although we do not have a formal policy regarding attendance by members of the Board at our ansual
meetings of stockholders, directors are encouraged to attend annual meetings of NeoMagic Corporation
stockholders. At the annual meeting of stockholders held on July 12, 2006, Mr. Young was the only director who
attended.

Code of Ethics

The Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Ethics that is applicable to its directors, officers, ;ind
employees, The Code of Ethics is available ont the Company’s website at www.neomagic.com. [

!

|

f

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
The Audit Committee operates under a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors. The Abdit
Committee’s primary role is to assist the Board of Directors in its general oversight of our financial reporting,
internal control, and audit functions, The Audit Committee provides advice, counsel and direction. to
management and the auditors on the basis of the information it receives and discussions with management and
the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements of the Company for|the
fiscal year ended January 28, 2007 with our management and management represented to the Audit Committee
that our consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The Audit Committee has discussed with Stonefield Josephson, Inc., the Company’s independ:ent
registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2007, the matters required to be discussed
by Statement of Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended (SAS 61, Communications with Audit Committee), In
addition, the Audit Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from Stonefield Josephson, I;nc.
as required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussion with Audit
Committees), and the Audit Committee has discussed with the independent registered public accounting firmithe
auditors’ independence from management and the Company, including the matters in the written dlsclosures
required by the Independence Standards Board, and considered the compatibility of non-audit services with ‘the

auditors’ independence.
t

The Audit Committee discussed with the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm the

. . . . . . . . |
overall scope and plans for their respective audits. The Audit Commitiee meets with the independent registered
public accounting firm, with and without management present, to discuss the results of their examinations, and

the overall quality of the Company’s financial reporting. ’

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended to the
Board of Directors (and the Board has approved) that the audited financial statements be included in the Anuual
Report on Form }0-K for the year ended January 28, 2007 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission;.

The foregoing report has been furnished by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of NeoMaglc
Corporation.

Steve Valenzuela, Chairman
Anil Gupta o |
Carl Stork
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Administrlation and Oversight

The q,‘ornpensation Committee is comprised solely of independent directors. The responsibilities of the
Compensation Committee inciude an annual review of our chief executive officer (the “CEQ™) and the other
executive officers of the Company in relation to their performance and establishing (a) their annual base salary,
{b) their an'nual incentive bonus, including the specific goals and amount, (c) their equity compensation, (d) their
employment agreements, severance arrangements, and change-in-control agreements/provisions, and (e) any
other benefits, compensation or arrangements. Compensation for the CEO is determined without the CEO
present. For the compensation to other executive officers, the CEO provides input and makes recommendations
to the Compensation Committee, but the Compensation Committee decides the compensation to be paid. The
Compcnsatlion Committee also reviews its own performance on an annual basis and makes a recommendation to
the full board with regards to the board’s compensation, including retainer, meeting fees, and stock grants. The
Compensation Committee may form and delegate authority to subcommittees when appropriate.

The Compensation Committee has the sole authority to retain and terminate any compensation consultant to
be used by{the Company to assist in the evaluation of CEQ or executive officer compensation and has authority
to obtain advice and assistance from internal or external legal, accounting or other advisors. During fiscal 2007,
no external consultants were retained to participate in the determination of executive or director compensation.

Executive Compensation Objectives and Policies

The Company's compensation programs and policies applicable to its executive officers are administered by
either the Gompensation Committee or the Board of Directors. The Compensation Committee may, from time to
time, include Douglas Young, CEO and President, in its meetings. Mr. Young provides the Compensation
Committee| with valued criteria the Compensation Committee deems pertinent when establishing performance
goals and (I)bjectives for executive officers. The Compensation Committee meets without the chief executive
officer when the Compensation Committee sets the personal goals and objectives of the chief executive officer.
The pn'rlcilpal objective of our compensation programs is to attract, retain and motivate highly talented
individuals) who will deliver competitive financial returns to our stockholders in the short-term, while
accomplishing our long-term plans and goals. We believe that this philosophy should apply to all our employees,
with a more significant level of variability and compensation generally at risk as an employee’s level of
responsibility increases.

Compensation Philosophy

The Board of Directors has adopted a management compensation program based on the following
compensation principles:

* The|Company provides the level of total compensation necessary to attract and retain the best executives
in its industry.

+ Compensation is linked to performance and to the creation of stockholder value.
+ Compensation balances rewards for short-term versus long-term results.

» Compensation programs include features that encourage executives to make a long-term career
commitment to the Company and its stockholders.

» Plans include measurements based on continuous growth and performance relative to peer companies.

We believe that our compensation should be designed to reward performance, both individual and corporate.
With satisf:ltctory corporate performance, we attempt to deliver a competitive reward package comprised of base
pay, variable pay, long-term incentives and other benefits.

21




s

hd
=
o
£
%
-
e
-
70}
:’.
Z
o
=P

Compensation Methodology |

The Company strives to provide a comprehensive executive compensation program that is both innovative
and competitive, in order to attract and retain superior executive talent. Each year the Compensation Committee
of the Board of Directors or the Board of Directors reviews market data and assesses the Company’s compétitive
position in each component of executive compensation, including base salary, annual incentive compensation and
long-term incentives. Market data may be provided by outside consultants or the Company’s Human Resqurces
department.

|
The descriptions below of the components of compensation contain additional detail regarding
compensation methodology. Compensation decisions regarding individual executives may also be based on
factors such as individual performance, level of responsibility or unique skills of the executives.

Components of Compensation

The Company’s basic compensation package for executive officers consists of three elements: i) base
salary; (ii) annual incentive compensation; and (iii) long-term incentives in the form of stock options granted
pursuant to the Company’s stock plans. Certain executive officers also have change-in-control and severance
agreements. See “Employment Agreements” below. Other elements of compensation include an emp]oyee; stock
purchase plan, a defined contribution 401(k) plan and medical and life insurance benefits, all of which are
available to employees generally. .

Each element of compensation has a different purpose. Salary is intended to provide a baseline amount of
regularly paid cash compensation that is sufficiently competitive to attract and retain executives. Cash incentive
payments are mainly designed to reward past performance that is over and above the baseline on a periodic
{typically annual) basis. Stock options are primarily designed to provide a strong incentive for superior long-term
future performance and are directly linked to stockholders’ interests because the value of the awards will in%:rease
or decrease based upon the future price of the Company’s Common Stock.

Base Salary !

Base salaries for fiscal 2007 were determined by the Board of Directors, The Board of Directors reviews
salaries recommended by the Chief Executive Officer for executive officers other than the Chief Executive
Officer. In conducting its review, the Board of Directors takes into consideration the overall performance of the
Company, the Chief Executive Officer’s evaluation of individual executive officer performance, the level of
expertise, responsibility and experience of executives and from time-to-time independent compensation surveys,
such as the Radford Survey for High Technology Companies. Final decisions on base salary adjustmeflts for
executives other than the Chief Executive Officer are made in conjunction with the Chief Executive Ofﬁcef.

b

The Board of Directors independently determines the base salary for the Chief Executive Officer by:
(i) examining the Company’s performance against its preset goals, (ii) examining the Company’s performance
within the semiconductor industry, (iii) evaluating the overall performance of the Chief Executive Officer, and
{iv) comparing, the base salary of the Chief Executive Officer to that of other chief executive officers lin the
semiconductor industry. In May 2006, the Company entered into employment agreements with the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer due to the critical nature of their positions.

Annual Incentive Compensation

Annual incentive compensation consists of a cash-based bonus program. The annual incentive compensation
provides for payment of cash bonuses to executive officers that are directly related 1o the gross revenues of the
Company, as well as accomplishing specific milestone achievements, such as production-reiated events.
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The| table below sets forth (i) the name of each executive officer of the Company who had a Bonus
Agreemelnt with the Company that was effective on July 30, 2006 and (i) the maximum amount that each such
execulive officer could receive pursuant to the Bonus Agreement should such executive officer meet all the
performalnce targets for such executive officer set forth in his individual Bonus Agreement

Maximum Amount

Payable Under the
Name Bonus Agreement
DOUE YOURE . .ot eeteta et et eee et e e $75,000
SCOtt SUlIMEET . ..o e $40,000
Sved Zaidi . ..ot $40,000
Deepraj Puar ........ ... .ot $30,000

In a.lddition, the Board of Directors from time to time may authorize the Company to pay individuals a
discretionary bonus based on the individual employee’s overall performance.

Bechwse the specified performance goals for fiscal 2007 were not met, the Board approved no incentive
compensation for the executive officers for fiscal year 2007. However, Douglas R. Young was awarded a
$30,000 bonus for the fiscal year ended January 29, 2006, which was paid in fiscal year ended January 28, 2007.
Syed Zaidi received a $1,000 net of tax bonus in recognition of his contributions for a patent issuance.

Stock Options

Long-term incentives are provided through stock option grants to employees, including the Named
Executive Officers. The number of shares subject to each stock option grant is based on the employee’s current
and anticipated future performance and ability to affect achievement of strategic goals and objectives. The
Company grants options in order to directly link a significant portion of each employee’s total compensation to
the long—'term interests of stockholders. Since options are generally granted at the fair market value of the
Company’s Common Stock and vest over a multi-year period, employees will only receive value from the
options to the extent that they remain employed by the Company and the Company's Common Stock price
increases during the term of the options, thus generating returns for both stockholders and executives.

In the fiscal year ended January 28, 2007, all stock options granted to employees had an exercise price equal
to the closing price of the common stock on Nasdaq on the date of the grant, which was the date that the
Compenslation Committee took action to grant the options. The Board believes these option grants were essential
to enable it to retain and attract its workforce. The Compensation Committee from time 1o time grants options
with a fufure grant date and an exercise price equal to the future grant date fair market value.

Other Benefits

We do not have any special benefit programs for our executive officers. Like all of our full-time employees,
our execlitives are eligible to participate in our employee stock purchase plan, our 401(k) plan, and other health
and welfre insurance programs. We believe we offer a competitive package of health and weifare programs.

Retention Bonus Arrangements

On January 13, 2006, the Company entered into retention bonus agreements with Douglas Young and Scott
Sul]ingeriin recognition of their value and importance to the success of the Company. Under the agreements, if the
officer left the Company before July 1, 2006, the officer was required to repay the bonus to the Company. If the
officer remained at the Company through July 1, 2006, the officer’s obligation to repay the bonus terminated. The
amounts of retention bonuses awarded are included in the “Bonus” column of the Summary Compensation Table.
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Proxy Statement:

Employment Agreements

We currently have employment agreements with Douglas Young and had an employment agreement with
Scott Sullinger as of Janvary 28, 2007. We discuss these employment agreements, along with their severance and
change in control provisions, below.

|

The Company is party to an employment agreement with Mr. Young, its President and Chief Executive
Officer. Pursuant to the agreement, dated May [, 2006, Mr. Young serves on an “at-will” basis and is entitled to
receive an annual base salary of $260,000, subject to annual review by the Compensation Commzittee. Mr. Yo‘ung
is also eligible to receive bonuses in such amounts and based wpon such performance criteria as the
Compensation Committee of the Board determines in its discretion following consultation with Mr, Ym:mg.
Mr. Young is also entitled to receive stock options, restricted stock or other equity awards pursuant to any plans
or arrangements the Company may have in effect from time to time, at the discretion of the Compensation
Committee. In addition, the Agreement entitles Mr. Young to receive a lump-sum payment upon a changp of
control equal to twelve (12) months’ base salary and to participate in 401(k) retirement, deferred compensation,
and life, medical, dental, disability and other welfare benefit plans maintained by the Company.

|

The Agreement provides for certain severance payments and benefits to Mr. Young in the event of
termination. If Mr. Young's employment with the Company is terminated by the Company for any reason other
than “cause”, death, or disability, or if Mr. Young resigns from his employment for “good reason”, he shall
generally be entitled to (A) a lump-sum payment in an amount equal to six months of base saiary, (B) Company-
paid coverage for Mr. Young and his eligible dependents under the Company’s benefit plans for 12 months
following such termination, and (C) up to six months to exercise any options he holds to purchase vested shares
under the Company’s then current equity plans. If Mr. Young's employment with the Company is terminated for
cause, death or disability then (A} all payments of compensation will terminate, (B) all vesting will terminate
immediately with respect to Mr. Young’s outstanding equity awards, and (C) Mr. Young will be eligible for
severance benefits in accordance with the Company’s established policies for such type of termination, if any, as
then in effect. If Mr, Young’s employment is terminated by the Company or its successors without “cause” or
Mr. Young terminates his own employment for “good reason” following or in connection with a Change in
Control, including but not limited to, a termination within 60 days of such Change in Control, the Agrecrilent
provides for the same severance payments described above, except that in lieu of a lump-sum severance payment
equal to six months’ base salary, he will receive a lump-sum payment in an amount equal to twelve {12) months’
base salary and all of his outstanding equity awards will vest in full, All of the severance payments and benefits
are conditioned on Mr. Young signing a general release of claims against the Company. Mr. Young is subject to
non-competition covenants for one year following his termination of employment for any reason.

The Company was party to an employment agreement with Mr. Sullinger, its then Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer, prior to his resignation and termination in March 2007. Pursuant to the agreement,
dated May 1, 2006, Mr. Sullinger served on an “at-will” basis and was entitled to receive an annual base salary of
$225,000, subject to annual review by the Compensation Committee. Mr. Sullinger was also eligible to receive
bonuses in such amounts and based upon such performance criteria as the Compensation Committee of the Board
determined in its discretion following consultation with Mr, Sullinger. Mr. Sullinger was also entitled to receive
stock options, restricted stock or other equity awards pursuant to any plans or arrangements the Company had in
effect from time to time, at the discretion of the Compensation Committee. In addition, the agreement entitled
Mr. Sullinger o receive a lump-sum payment upon a change of control equal to twelve (12) months’ base salary
and to participate in 401(k) retirement, deferred compensation, and life, medical, dental, disability and other
welfare benefit plans maintained by the Company.

{

The Agreement provides for certain severance payments and benefits to Mr. Sullinger in the event of
termination. If Mr, Sullinger’s employment with the Company is terminated by the Company for any reason
other than “cause” death, or disability, or if Mr. Sullinger resigns from his employment for “good reason’” he
shall generally be entitled to (A) a lump-sum payment in an amount equal to six months of base salary,
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(B) Company-paid coverage for Mr. Sullinger and his eligible dependents under the Company’s benefit plans for
12 months| following such termination, and (C) up to six months to exercise any options he holds to purchase
vested shares under the Company’s then current equity plans. If Mr. Sullinger’s employment with the Company
is terminated for cause, death or disability then (A) all payments of compensation will terminate, (B) all vesting
will terminate immediately with respect to Mr. Sullinger’s outstanding equity awards, and (C) Mr. Sullinger will
be eligible for severance benefits in accordance with the Company’s established policies for such type of
termination, if any, as then in effect. If Mr. Sullinger’s employment is terminated by the Company or its
successors|without “cause” or Mr. Sullinger terminates his own employment for “good reason” following or in
connection with a Change in Control, including but not limited to, a termination within 60 days of such Change
in Control! the Agreement provides for the same severance payments described above, except that in lieu of a
lump-sum !severance payment equal to six months’ base salary, he will receive a lump-sum payment in an
amount equal to nine (9) months’ base salary and ail of his outstanding equity awards will vest in full. All of the
severance payments and benefits are conditioned on Mr. Sullinger signing a general release of claims against the
Company. |[Mr. Sullinger is subject to non-competition covenants for one year following his termination of
employment for any reason.

The term “Change in Control” means the occurrence of any of the following events:

(1

i)

(iii)

any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended) is or becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under said Act), directly

indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 50% or more of the total voting power
répresented by the Company's then outstanding voting securities; or

the date of the consummation of a merger or consolidation of the Company with any other corporation
that has been approved by the stockholders of the Company, other than a merger or consolidation

hich would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto
ct ntinuing to represent (either by rermaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of
the surviving entity) more than fifty percent (50%) of the total voting power represented by the voting
securities of the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately after such merger or
consolidation; or

the date of the consummation of the sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all the
Company’s assets.

The term “Cause” for purposes of these agreements means:

®

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

the willful failure by Employee to substantially perform Employee’s material duties under this
Agreement other than a failure resulting from the Employee’s Disability,

mployee's conviction of or plea of nofo contendere to the commission of any felony or gross
misdemeanor, but only if such event significantly harms the Company’s reputation or business;

any fraud, misrepresentation or gross misconduct by Employee that is materially injurious to the
mpany;

a|material and willful violation by Employee of a federal or state law or regulation applicable to the
business of the Company which is materially injurious to the Company, and

Employee’s willful breach of a material provision of this Agreement. The Company will not terminate
Employee’s employment for Cause without first providing Employee with written notice specifically
1denufym0 the acts or omissions constituting the grounds for a Cause termination and, with respect to
chauses (i3, (iii) and (v), a reasonable cure period of not less than thirty (30) business days following
such notice. No act or failure to act by Executive will be considered “willful” unless committed without
good faith and without a reasonable belief that the act or omission was in the Company’s best interest,
ag determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.
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The term “Good Reason™ for purposes of these agreements means Employee’s resignation within thirty

(30) days following the expiration of any Company cure period (discussed below) following the occurrence of
one or more of the following, without the Employee’s consent: '

(i) the assignment to Employee of any duties, or the reduction of the Employee’s duties, either of vslfhich
results in a material diminution of the Employee’s position or responsibilities with the Company in
effect immediately prior to such assignment, or the removal of the Employee from such position and
responsibilities; provided, however, that a reduction in position or responsibilities solely by virtue of a
Change in Contro! shall not constitute “Good Reason” unless such reduction resulis in the removal of
Employee from the most senior management position of the Company’s business; ‘

(ii) areduction of more than ten percent of Employee’s Base Salary in any one year,; :
(i1i) the relocation of Employee 10 a facility that is more than twenty-five (25) miles from Employee’s

current location;
(iv} the failure of the Company to obtain assumption of this Agreement by any successor; and '
(v} the willful breach by the Company of a material provision of this Agreement. Employee will not r;esign
for Good Reason without first providing the Company with written notice of the acts or omissions
constituting the grounds for “Good Reason” and a reasonable cure period of not less than thirty
(30) days following the date of such notice. '
[

Section 162(m) Policy

It is the Company’s policy generally to qualify compensation paid to executive officers for deductibility
under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code. Section 162(m) generally prohibits the Company from
deducting the compensation of executive officers that exceeds $1.000,000 unless that compensation is baséd on
the satisfaction of objective performance goals. The Company’s 2003 Stock Plan and the annual incentive bonus
programs are generally structured to qualify awards under such plans as performance-based compensation a:nd to
maximize the tax deductibility of such awards. However, the Company reserves the discretion to pay
compensation to its executive officers that may not be deductible. In particular, the discretionary bonuses paid
during fiscal 2007 to executive officers were not performance-based. In addition, any below market option will
not gualify as performance-based compensation. Because no executive officer’s compensation exceeded $1
million in fiscal 2006, the Company did not lose any tax deductions under Section 162(m). !
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Summary Compensation Table

The tlLllowing table sets forth information concerning the compensation paid to or earned by the Company’s

1 M M : £ M an
current and former executive officers listed in the table (the “Named Executive Officers”) for the fiscal year

ended January 28, 2007.
Non-Equity
Option  Incentive Plan All Other
Salary Bonus Awards  Compensation Compensation Total
Name and Peincipal Position Year %) %) S (1]] (3 (1) ($)

Douglas R Young

Presido:nI and Chief

Executive Officer .......... 2007 $260,000 $30,000 $122,247 0 $21,821  $434,068
Scott Sullinger

Former Vice President

Finance and Chief

Financial Officer 2) ........ 2007 $225,000 0 § 80,254 1] $ 4,429  $309,683
Syed Zaidi

Chief Operating Officer . ... .. 2007 $220,000 $ 1,556 § 98,371 0 $13,630  $333,557
Deep Puar

Vice President, Operations ... 2007 $217,308 0 $135477 0 $21,863  $374,648

Jeffrey Blanc (4)
Vice President,
Worldwide Sales and

Corporate Communications . .. 2007 $114,794 0 %1193 0 $14,655 $141,383
(1) Includ .:s premiums paid for health and life insurance and health club subsidies.
(2) Mr. Sullinger resigned from his position in March 2007,
(4) Mr. Blanc resigned from his position in August 2006. All Other Compensation includes vacation payout,
severance pay and health benefit payments.
(5) Represents the dollar amount recognized by the Company for financial reporting purposes under FAS 123R,

disreg%rding forfeitures. Assumptions made are disclosed in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in the Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2007.
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Stock Awards .

|
There were no grants or vesting of stock awards made by the Company to any Named Executive Officer

during the fiscal year ended January 28, 2007, and there were no unvested stock awards outstanding at fiscal
2007 year end. '

Grants of Option Awards !

We currently award stock options under our 2003 Stock Plan and 1998 Stock Option Plan. The 2003 VIS[ock
Plan was approved by stockholders. The 1998 Stock Option Plan was not required to be approved by
stockholders. Beginning with fiscal year 2004, as a result of regulatory changes, all material changes to both
plans require stockholder approval. The Compensation Committee issued stock options in May 2006 as part of
the Company’s annual stock option grant. Additional stock options were issued in December 2006 in lieu of
increases in salary. All options granted to Named Executive Officers during fiscal 2007 were granied under the
2003 Stock Plan. The stock options are iniended to align the imerest of the executive officers with 1hf')se of
stockholders. The stock options are also designed to attract and retain the Named Executive Officers, and to
motivate thern to achieve the corporate objectives. A Named Executive Officer generally forfeits any unvested
stock option upon ceasing employment. 4

The following tables provide information concerning options to purchase the Company’s Commeon'Stock
granted to, held by or exercised by each of the Named Executive Officers during the fiscal year ‘ended
Yanuary 28, 2007. :

Grants of Plan-Based Awards ‘
For Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2007 |

All Other Stock Exercise or '
Awards: All Other Option Base Price of Grant Datg

Number of Awards: Number Option Fair Value of
Shares of Stock of Securities Awards Stock and
or Units Underlying Options ($ per Option '
Name Grant Date #) {# share) (1) Awards (2)
Douglas R. Young .... 05/10/2006 -0- 60,000 $4.83 $217,800
12/18/2006 -0- 435,000 $6.56 521 2,796
Scott Sullinger ....... 05/10/2006 -0- 55,000 $4.83 $199,650
12/18/2006 -0- 40,000 $6.56 $189,152
SyedZaidi ........... 05/10/2006 -0- 40,000 $4.83 $143,200
12/18/2006 -0- 70,000 $6.56 $331,01 t§
DeeprajPuar ......... 05/10/2006 -0- 25,000 $4.83 $ 90,75()
12/18/2006 -0- 35,000 $6.56 $165,508
Jeffrey Blanc . ........ 05/10/2006 -0- 35,000 $4.83 $127,0SQ

(1) The exercise price of all options was equal to the closing market price on the date of grant. '

(2) Represents the full grant date fair value, as determined under FAS 123R, of the option without regard to
vesting.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at January 28, 2007
Option Awards W
Number of Securities Number of Securities o
Underlying Underlying Option =
Unexercised Options (#) Unexercised Options (¥) Exercise Option =
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Price ($) Expiration Date §
Douglas Young ....... 14,867 23,333 6y §$ 215 5/4/2015 A=
i 34,999 45,001 (7y $ 240 4/21/2015
16,000 0 3y %465 1/26/2015
10,000 50,000 (4 $ 4.83 5/10/2012
938 44,062 (5) $ 6356 12/18/2012
16,000 0 3y  $21.50 2122014
Scott[Sullinger (1} .. ... 6,000 18,125 @ §$205 5/18/2015
9,167 45,833 4y $ 483 5/10/2012
10,000 0 3 $5.10 12/8/2014
333 39,167 (5) % 656 12/18/2012
SyedZaidi ........... 10,000 0 (3) § 135 3/15/2007
7,500 15,708 @& $ 205 5/18/2015
6,667 33,333 4 §$ 4.83 5/10/2012
10,000 0 (3) $ 500 5/30/2010
1,458 68,542 (5) $ 6.56 12/18/2012
20,000 0 (3) S$12.90 11/6/2013
14,600 0 (3) $13.95 9/18/2013
20,000 )] (3) 51485 5/30/2010
20,000 0 (3} $16.00 5/15/2012
Deepraj Puar ......... 5,738 0 3) $ 135 371572007
4,875 15,708 (8) $ 2.05 5/18/2015
1,667 1,000 (9 §$ 275 772272015
4,167 20,833 4y § 483 510/2012
729 34,271 (5) % 6.56 12/18/2012
20,000 0 ) $1290 11/6/2013
36,000 0 (3) $13.95 9/18/2013
15,000 0 (3) $16.00 5/15/2012
14,001 0 (3) $i6.10 8/15/2010
Jeffrey Blanc (2) ... ... — 0 $ — —

(1) Any outstanding options held by Mr. Sullinger that are not exercised by June &, 2007 will be cancelled. i

(2) All of|[Mr. Blanc’s unexercised outstanding options were cancelled on November 9, 2006 and November 11, ‘
2006 in connection with his termination on August 11, 2006,

(3) Theseloptions are fully vested as of January 28, 2007. . ‘

(4) These|options represent option awards made in fiscal 2007. The options vest at the rate of 1/48% monthly
beginning on June 10, 2007 and continuing monthly thereafter until May 10, 2010. The options have a life
of 6 years from the date of grant,

(5) These |options represent option awards made in fiscal 2007. The options vest at the rate of 1/48® monthly
beginning January 18, 2007 and continuing monthly thereafter until December 18, 2010. The options have a
life of |10 years from the date of grant.

(6) These ‘options represent option awards made in fiscal 2006. The options vest at the rate of 1/48% monthly
beginr$ng June 5, 2005 and continuing monthly thereafter until May 5, 2009. The options have a life of 10
years from the date of grant,
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(7) These options represent option awards made in fiscal 2006. The options vest at the rate 25% on the first
anniversary of the grant date and 1/48% monthly thereafier. The initial vest day was Aprii 21, 2006 and the
options are fully vested on April 21, 2009. The options have a life of 10 years from the date of grant. |

(8) These options represent option awards made in fiscal 2006. The options vest at the rate of 1/48% monthly
beginning June 30, 2003, and continuing monthly thereafter uatil May 31, 2009. The options have a life of
10 years from the date of grant.

{9) These options represent option awards made in fiscal 2006. The options vest at the rate of 1/24%h mon'thly
beginning August 22, 2003, and continuing monthly thereafter until July 22, 2007. The options have a life of
10 vears from the date of grant.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested For Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2007

Option Awards :

Number of Shares !

. Acquired on Value Realized

Name Exercise (#) on Exercise (§) ,
Douglas R. YOURE . ...ovvvei i 4,300 $14,145 '
Scott Sullinger .. ... ... 1,500 $ 4,050
SyedZaidi ... ... . . —_ —
DeeprajPuar .. ... ... ... e 6,387 $21,573
Jeffrey BIANC . ......ovviiiiiiiaaaiiaa e 5,000 $ 8487

Pension Benefits |

The Company does not have any pension benefit plans that are required to be reported, !

i

Nenqualified Deferred Compensation |

The Company does not have any nonqualified deferred compensation plans that are required to be reporied.

|
Potential Payments upon Termination of Employment or Change of Control ;

In the tables below, we summarize the estimated payments that would be made to each of our Named
Executive Officers upon a termination of employment in various circumstances. The actual amounts to be paid
can only be determined at the time of a change in control or executive’s termination,

|

Date of Triggering Event: The table assumes that any triggering event (i.e. termination, resignation,
Change in Control, death or disability) took place on January 28, 2007 with base salaries in effect at the end of
fiscal year 2007 being used for purposes of any severance payout calculation except as noted.

Price Per Share of Common Stock: Calculations requiring a per share stock price are made on the basis of
the closing price of $4.34 per share of our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on January 26,
2007, the last trading day of our fiscal year ending January 28, 2007,

'

Equity Acceleration upon a Change of Control or Merger: The Board of Directors of the Company, in
its discretion, can provide for acceleration of the vesting of all other outstanding options or awards ar any.time,
including upon a Change of Control.
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Under the 2003 Stock Plan, the 1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan, and the 1993 Stock Option Plan, upon
a merger ofjthe Company with or into another corporation, or the sale of substantially all of the assets of the
Company, each outstanding option and stock purchase right shall be assumed or an equivalent option or right
substituted by the successor corporation or a parent or subsidiary of the successor corporation. If the successor
corporation refuses 1o assume or substitute for the option or stock purchase right, the optionee shall fully vest in
and have the right to exercise the option or stock purchase right as to all of the optioned stock, including shares
as to which lit would not otherwise be vested or exercisable, The Board of Directors, in its sole discretions, may
authorize any vesting acceleration or waiver of forfeiture restrictions, and any restriction or limitation regarding
any option or the shares of Common Stock relating thereto.

“Cause!” for purposes of the Company’s agreements with Douglas Young and Scott Sullinger, means:

(i) the willful failure by Employee to substantially perform Employee’s material duties under this
Agreement other than a failure resulting from the Employee’s Disability,

T - .y
(ify Employee’s conviction of or plea of nolo contendere to the commission of any felony or gross
misdemeanor, but only if such event significantly harms the Company’s reputation or business;

(iii) any fraud, misrepresentation or gross misconduct by Employee that is materially injurious to the
Campany;

(iv) a material and willful violation by Employee of a federal or state law or regulation applicable to the
buiness of the Company which is materially injurious to the Company, and

(v) Employee’s willful breach of a material provision of this Agreement. The Company will not terminate

Employee’s employment for Cause without first providing Employee with written notice specifically

_ idcl'ntifying the acts or omissions constituting the grounds for a Cause termination and, with respect to

clauses (i), (iii) and (v), a reasonable cure period of not less than thirty (30) business days following

such notice. No act or failure to act by Executive will be considered “willful” unless committed without

goL)d faith and without a reasonable belief that the act or omission was in the Company’s best interest,
as determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.

“Change in Control,” for purposes of the Company’s agreements with Douglas Young and Scott Sullinger,
means:

(i) any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as lamended) is or becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under said Act), directly
or{indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 50% or more of the total voting power
represented by the Company’s then outstanding voting securities; or

(ii) theI date of the consummation of a merger or consolidation of the Company with any other corporation
1ha{t has been approved by the stockholders of the Company, other than a merger or consolidation
whlich would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto
continuing to represent (either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of
the surviving entity) more than fifty percent (50%) of the total voting power represented by the voting
securities of the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately after such merger or
consolidation; or

(iii) the date of the consummation of the sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all the
Company’s assets.
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The table below presents estimates of the amounts of compensation payable to each Named Executive
Officer with whom the Company has an employment agreement containing provisions with respect 1o a change
in control and termination of the executive. For a description of these agreements, see “Compensation Discussion
and Analysis—Employment Agreements.” The Company provides a standard severance package to all
employees, including the Named Executive Officers, upon termination. '

oI |

Douglas Young Scott Sullinger )

Termination Termination i

Without  With Cause Without  With Cause I
Cause or or Due to Following Cause or or Due to Following

Change in  For Good Death or Change in Changein For Good Death or Change in
Control Reason  Disability (3)  Control Control Reason  Disability (3)  Control

UNEARNED
COMPENSATION !
(payment contingent

on termination) |

Cash Severance ...... $260,000 $130,000  $20,000  $260,000 $112,500 $168,750  $17,308  $168,750
Equity :
Acceleration of
Vesting of '
Unexercisable ‘
Options (1) .... 489,030 — — 489,030 — 372958 — 372,958
Total ........... 489,030 — — 489,030 — 372958 — 372,958
Benefits—Health (2) .. 26,145 26,145 3,586 26,145 5,616 5,616 770 5,616
Towal ........... $775,175  $156,145  $23,586  §$775,175 $118,116 $547,324 518,078  $547,324

(1) Unexercisable option amounts are based upon option vesting acceleration FAS 123(R) expense, iAs of
January 26, 2007, the fair market value of the common stock was $4.34 per share, and the potential gain on
accelerated vesting of options based on intrinsic value was $138,401 and 341,506 for Messrs. Young and
Sullinger, respectively. '

(2) Health includes health, dental, vision, and life. 1

|
(3) Payments made for termination with cause are standard Company severance payments that are paid to all
)

employees.

:

Director Compensation For Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2007 '

Change in !

Pension Value !

& 1

Non-Equity Nonqualified .

Fees Earned  Stock Option  Incentive Plan Deferred Al Other ]

orPaidin Awards Awards Compensation Compensation Compensation  Total
Name Cash (8) (1) (3) ($)(2) % Earnings ($) )

Brian Dougherty 3) ...... 5,500 0 1,571 0 0 0 . 701
Dr. AnilGupta .......... 34,500 0 49,685 0 0 0 84,185
Brett Moyer{(4) .......... 0 0 0 0 0 0 , 0
CarlStork .............. 35,500 0 49,685 0 0 0 85,185
Steve Valenzuela ........ 43,500 0 28,524 0 0 0 72,024
Douglas Young (5) ....... 0 0 0 0 0 0 ; 0
Syed Zaidi(6) ........... 1] 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0

(1} This column includes annual retainer and meeting fees earned in fiscal 2007 regardless of when paid. :
i

(2) This column includes the compensation cost recognized for financial statement reporting purposes under
FAS 123(R) for fiscal year 2007 with respect to stock options that vested in fiscal 2007. The expense is
based upon a Black-Scholes model amortized over the vesting period of the options (excluding estimated
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forfeiture adjustments). We have described the assumptions made in this valuation in the Form 10-K for the
year ended January 28, 2007. The total FAS 123 (R) grant date value of options granted in fiscal year 2007
without regard to vesting for each of the then incumbent non-employee directors was $141,302 each.
Mr. Dougherty did not receive a stock option grant in fiscal year 2007. At fiscal year end, options to
purchase the indicated number of shares were outstanding and held by each director: Dougherty, 0; Gupta,
87.641; Moyer, 0; Stork, 83,666, Valenzuela, 52,083; Young, 255,200; and Zaidi, 227,808,

(3) Mr. Dougherty resigned from the Board of Directors effective March 21, 2006.
(4) Mr. Moyer was appointed to the Board of Directors effective March 5, 2007.

(5) Mr. \"oung is a Named Executive Officer and his compensation is set forth in the Summary Compensation
Table. Mr. Young did not receive any additional compensation in connection with his service as a director.

(6) Mr. : idi was appointed to the Board of Directors effective February 23, 2007. Mr. Zaidi is a Named
ExecPtive Officer and his compensation is set forth in the Summary Compensation Table. Mr. Zaidi did not
receiye any additional compensation in connection with his service as a director.

Directors of the Company who are not also emptoyees of the Company receive a quarterly retainer of
$4,000 for service on the Board. Directors of the Company who serve on the Audit Committee receive a
quarterly {'etainer of $2,000 and the Chair of the Audit Committee receives a supplementary $2,000 quarterly
retainer. In addition, each non-employee director receives $1,000 for each Board meeting attended in person and
$500 per }neeting attended telephonically. Directors are not compensated for attendance at commitiee meetings
other than the Audit Committee. The Company also reimburses the directors for their reasonable out-of-pocket
expenses related to their attendance at Board and ali committee meetings.

The non-employee directors are entitled to receive stock option grants under the provisions of the
Companyjs 2003 Stock Plan [and its predecessor. A non-employee director joining the Board for the first time is
granted an option to purchase 20,000 shares, The exercise price for nonstatutory options granted to non-employee
directors is the closing price per share of common stock on Nasdaq on the date of grant. In addition, discretionary
stock options are annually granted to non-employee directors. During fiscal 2007, each of the non-employee
directors, iMessrs. Gupta, Stork, and Valenzuela, were granted options to purchase 15,000 and 20,000 shares that
vest at the rate of 1/24% monthly for two years and had an exercise price equal to $4.83 and $6.56, respectively,
the closing price per share on the date of grant. The terms of the options granted may not exceed ten years. All
options granted will vest according to their individual vesting period subject to such member’s continued service
as a director of the Company. Upon a merger of the Company with or into another corporation or a “change of
control” of the Company, excluding a financing, all options granted to non-employee members of the Board of
Directors will vest in full.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee is comprised entirely of independent directors. No current or past executive
officer or employee serves on our Compensation Commitiee. There are no Compensation Commitiee interlocks.
Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis with
our management. In reliance on the discussion with management, the Compensation Committee recommended to
the Board of Directors (and the Board approved) that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in

the Annuhl Report on Form 10-K and this proxy statement for the year ended January 28, 2007 and this proxy
staternent|filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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The foregoing report has been furnished by the Compensation Commitiee of the Board of Directors of NeoMagic
Corporation. :

Carl Stork, Chairman
Anil Gupta
Steve Valenzuela

ANNUAL REPORT
furnished to stockholders concurrently herewith.

|
:
[
|
|
|
|
|
~ [
A copy of the Company’s Annual Report to Stockholders for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2007 is being
I
|
I
|

OTHER MATTERS [

I
The Company knows of no other business that will be presented at the Annual Meeting, For a descripti%m of
the advance notice requirements for stockholder business, see “Annual Meeting of Stockholders—Deadline for
Receipt of Proposals or Nominations by Stockholder.” No stockholder provided such advance notice.

Accordingly, no other substantive business may be brought before the Annual Meeting by a stockholder. :

i
Whether or not you intend to be present at the Annual Meeting, we urge you to return your signed proxy

promptiy. |

|
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

fs/ Michael J. Danaher

Michael J. Danaher
Secretary

Santa Clara, California
May 29, 2007
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APPENDIX A
NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
2006 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The following constitutes the provisions of the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of NeoMagic
Corporation

1. Purpose. The purpose of the Plan is to provide Employees with an opportunity to purchase Common Stock
through adgumulated payroll deductions. The Company’s intention is to have the Plan qualify as an “‘employce
stock purchase plan” under Section 423 of the Code. The provisions of the Plan, accordingly, will be construed
50 as 10 e‘xtend and limit Plan participation in a uniform and nondiscriminatory basis consistent with the
requirements of Section 423 of the Code.

2. Definitions.

|
(a) “‘flldminislrator” means the Board or any committee designated by the Board to administer the Plan
pursuant tc‘ Section 14.

(b) *Beard” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

(c) “Change of Control’ means the occurrence of any of the following events:

(i.) Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act} becomes the
“beneficial owner” {as defined in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the
Company representing fifty percent (50%) or more of the total voting power represented by the Company’s
then ontstanding voting securities; or

(1i) The consummation of the sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of the
Company’s assets; or

(i1} The consummation of a merger or consolidation of the Company, with any other corporation, othet
than a merger or consolidation which would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding
immediately prior thereto continuing to represent {(either by remaining outstanding or by being converted
into voting securities of the surviving entity or its parent) at least fifty percent (50%) of the total voting
power|represented by the voting securities of the Company, or such surviving entity or its parent outstanding
immediately after such merger or consolidation.

{(iv) A change in the composition of the Board occurring within a two (2)-year period, as a result of
which |fewer than a majority of the Directors are Incumbent Directors. “Incumbent Directors”™ means
Direct?rs who either (A) are Directors as of the effective date of the Plan (pursuant to Section 23 hereof), or
(B) ar¢ elected, or nominated for election, to the Board with the affirmative votes of at least a majority of
those Incumbent Directors at the time of such election or nomination {but will not include an individual
whose |election or nomination is in connection with an actual or threatened proxy contest relating to the
election of Directors of the Company).

(d) “que" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Any reference to a section of the Code
herein will Tc a reference to any successor or amended section of the Code.

(e) “Common Stock” means the common stock of the Company.
(f) “Company™ means NeoMagic Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

(g) “Campensation” means an Employee’s base straight time gross earnings, but exclusive of payments for
overtime, shift premium, incentive compensation, incentive payments, bonuses and other compensation.
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i
(h) “Designated Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary that has been designated by the Administrator from ume
to time in its sole discretion as eligible to participate in the Plan.

[
{1) “Director” means a member of the Board. '
t

(j) “Employee” means any individual who is a common law employee of an Employer and is customarily
employed for at least twenty (20} hours per week and more than five {3} months in any calendar year by the
Employer. For purposes of the Plan, the employment relationship will be treated as continuing intact whilée the
individual is on sick leave or other leave of absence that the Employer approves. Where the period of l:eave
exceeds ninety (90) days and the individual’s right to reemployment is not guaranteed either by statute or by
contract, the employment relationship will be deemed to have terminated on the ninety-first (915t} day of isuch
leave. The Administrator, in its discretion, from time to time may, prior to an Enrollment Date for all optio:ns to
be granted on such Enrollment Date, determine (on a uniform and nondiscriminatory basis) that the definition of
Employee will or will not include an individual if he or she: (1) has not completed at least two years of service
since his or her last hire date (or such lesser period of time as may be determined by the Administrator in its
discretion), (2) customarily works not more than 20 hours per week (or such lesser period of time as may be
determined by the Administrator in its discretion}, (3) customarily works not more than five (5) months per
calendar year (or such lesser period of time as may be determined by the Administrator in its discretion), (4)is an
officer or other manager, or (5) is a highly compensated employee under Section 414(q) of the Code. '

(k) “Employer” means any one or all of the Company and its Designated Subsidiaries.
(1) “Enrollment Date” means the first Trading Day of each Offering Period.

(m) “Exchange Act’ means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including the rule$ and

regulations promulgated thereunder. ‘
: !

(n) “Exercise Date” means the last Trading Day prior to the commencement of the June and December
Offering Period commencement dates each year. The Administrator, in its discretion, from time to time may,
prior to an Enrollment Date for all options to be granted on such Enroliment Date, determine (on a uniform and
nondiscriminatory basis) when the Exercise Dates will occur during an Offering Period. |

1

(o) “Fair Market Value” means, as of any date, the value of Common Stock determined as follows:

(i) If the Common Stock is listed on any established stock exchange or a national market system,
including without limitation the Nasdaq National Market or The Nasdaq SmallCap Market of The Nasdaq
Stock Market, its Fair Market Value will be the closing sales price for the Common Stock (or the closing
bid, if no sales were reported) as quoted on such exchange or system on the date of determination, as

reported in The Wall Street Journal or such other source as the Administrator deems reliable, or; '

(ii) If the Common Stock is regularly quoted by a recognized securities dealer but selling prices are not
reported, its Fair Market Value will be the mean of the closing bid and asked prices for the Common Stock
on the date of determination, as reported in The Wall Street Journal or such other source as the
Administrator deems reliable, or; ,

I

(iii) In the absence of an established market for the Common Stock, its Fair Market Value will be
determined in good faith by the Administrator. '
[

(p) “Offering Periods” means the period of time the Administrator may determine prior to Enrollment: Date,
for options to be granted on such Enrollment Date, during which an option granted under the Plan may be
exercised, not to exceed twenty-seven (27) months. Unless the Administrator provides otherwise, Offfering
Periods will have a duration of approximately twenty-four (24) months, commencing on the first Trading Dlay on
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or after the|second Friday in June and December of each year and terminating on the last Trading Day prior to the
June and December Offering Period commencement date approximately twenty-four (24)months later. The
Administr:Tor may change the duration and timing of Offering Periods pursuant to Section 4 of this Plan.

)] “Parent” means a “parent corporation,” whether now or hereafter exlstmg, as defined in Section 424(e)
of the Code.

(r) “Plan” means this 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

(s) “Purchase Period” means the period during an Offering Period which shares of Common Stock may be
purchased on a participant’s behalf in accordance with the terms of the Plan. Unless and until the Administrator
provides otherw15e the Purchase Period will mean the approximately six {6) month period commencing on one
Exercise Date and ending with the next Exercise Date, except that the first Purchase Period of any Offering
Period will commence on the Enrollment Date and end with the next Exercise Date.

()] “Purchase Pnce” shall be determined by the Administrator (on a uniform and nondiscriminatory basis)
prior to an Enro]lment Date for all options 1o be granted on such Enrollment Date, subject to compliance with
Section 423 of the Code (or any successor rule or provision or any other applicable law, regulation or stock
exchange rule) or pursuant to Section 20. Unless and until the Administrator provides otherwise, the Purchase
Price will ¢qual eighty-five percent (85%) of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the
Enrollment Pate or on the Exercise Date, whichever is lower, provided however; that the Purchase Price may be
adjusted by the Administrator pursuant to Section 20.

() “Subsm’wry means a “subsidiary corporation,” whether now or hereafter existing, as defined in
Section 424]0 of the Code.

(v) “Trading Day” means a day on which the U.S. national stock exchanges and the Nasdaq System are
open for trading.

3. Eligibility.
(a) Offe!r'ing Periods. Any individual who is an Employee as of the Enrollment Date of any Offering Period
will be eligible to participate in such Offering Period, subject to the requirements of Section 5.

(b) Limjtations. Any provisions of the Plan to the contrary notwithstanding, no Employee will be granted an
option under the Plan (i) to the extent that, immediately after the grant, such Employee (or any other person
whose stockwould be attributed to such Employee pursuant to Section 424(d) of the Code) would own capital
stock of the Company or any Parent or Subsidiary of the Company and/or hold outstanding options to purchase
such stock possessing five percent {5%) or more of the total combined voting power or value of all classes of the
capital stock\of the Company or of any Parent or Subsidiary of the Company, or (ii} to the extent that his or her
rights to purchase stock under all employee stock purchase plans (as defined in Section 423 of the Code) of the
Company or|any Parent or Subsidiary of the Company accrues at a rate which exceeds twenty-five thousand
dollars ($25,000) worth of stock (determined at the Fair Market Value of the stock at the time such option is
granted) for each calendar year in which such option is outstanding at any time.

4. Offering Periods. The Plan will be implemented by consecutive overlapping Offering Periods with a new
Offering Period commencing on the first Trading Day on or after the second Friday in June and December of
each year and terminating on the last Trading Day ‘prior to the Offering Period commencement date
approximatel} twenty-four (24) months later, or on such other date as the Administrator will determine, and
continuing thereafter until terminated i in accordance with Section 20. The Administrator will have the power to
change the dhratlon of Offering Periods (including the commencement dates thereof) with respect to future
offerings witout stockholder approval if such change is announced prior to the scheduled beginning of the first
Offering Peridd to be affected thereafter.
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5. Participation. An Employee who is eligible to participate in the Plan pursuant to Section 3(a) may become
a participant by (i) submitting to the Company’s payroll office (or its designee), on or before a date prescribed by
the Administrator prior to an applicable Enrollment Date, a properly completed subscription agreement
authorizing payroll deductions in the form provided by the Administrator for such purpose, or (ii) following an

electronic or other enrollment procedure prescribed by the Administrator. *

6. Payroll Deductions, |

(a) At the time a participant enrolls in the Plan pursuant to Section 5, he or she will elect to have payroll
deductions made on each payday during the Offering Period in an amount of at least one percent (1%) up to {and
not exceeding) ten percent (10%) of the Compensation which he or she receives on each such payday. A
participant’s subscription agreement shall remain in effect for successive Offering Periods unless terminated as
provided in Section 10 hereof. l

{b) Payroll deductions authorized by a participant will commence on the first payday followirig the
Enrollment Date and will end on the last payday in the Offering Period to which such authorization is applicable,

unless sooner terminated by the participant as provided in Section 10. '
[

(c) All payroll deductions made for a participant will be credited to his or her account under the Plém and
will be withheld in whole percentages only. A participant may not make any additional payments mto such
account,

]

(d) A participant may discontinue his or her participation in the Plan as provided in Section 10, or may
increase or decrease the rate of his or her payroli deductions during the Offering Period by (i) properiy
completing and submitting to the Company’s payroll office (or its designee), on or before a date prescribed by
the Administrator prior to an applicable Exercise Date, a new subscription agreement authorizing the change in
payroll deduction rate in the form provided by the Administrator for such purpose, or (ii) following an elettronic
or other procedure prescribed by the Administrator. If a participant has not followed such procedures to change
the rate of payroll deductions, the rate of his or her payroll deductions will continue at the originally elected rate
throughout the Offering Period and future Offering Periods (unless terminated as provided in Section 10). The
Administrator may, in its sole discretion, limit the nature and/or number of payroll deduction rate changes that
may be made by participants during any Offering Period. Any change in payroll deduction rate made pursuant to
this Section 6(d) will be effective as of the first full payroll period following five (5) business days after the date
on which the change is made by the participant (unless the Administrator, in its sole discretion, elects to process
a given change in payroll deduction rate more quickly). '

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent necessary to comply with Section 423(b)(8) of the Code and
Section 3(b), or if the Administrator reasonably anticipates a participant has contributed a sufficient amount to
purchase a number of shares of Common Stock equal to or in excess of the applicable limit for such Purchase ar
Offering Period (as set forth in Section 7 or as established by the Administrator), a participant’s payroll
deductions may be decreased to zero percent (0%) at any time during a Purchase Period. Subject to
Section 423(b)(8) of the Code and Section 3(c) hereof, or for participants who have had their contrilbutions
reduced due to the applicable limits on the maximum number of shares that may be purchased in any Purchase or
Offering Period, payroll deductions will recommence at the rate originally elected by the participant effective as
of the beginning of the first Purchase Period which is scheduled to end in the following calendar year, unless
terminated by the participant as provided in Section 10.

(f) At the time the option is exercised, in whole or in part, or at the time some or all of the Company’s
Common Stock issued under the Plan is disposed of, the participant must make adequate provision for the
Company’s federal, state, or other tax withholding obligations, if any, which arise upon the exercise of the option
or the disposition of the Common Stock. At any time, the Company may, but will not be obligated to, withhold

[
A-4 .




from the participant’s compensation the amount necessary for the Company to meet applicable withholding
obligations) including any withholding required to make available to the Company any tax deductions or benefits
attributable to the sale or early disposition of Common Stock by the Employee.

7. Grant of Option. On the Enrollment Date of each Offering Period, each Employee participating in such
Offering Penod will be granted an option to purchase on each Exercise Date during such Offering Period (at the
applicable Purchase Price) up to a number of shares of Common Stock determined by dividing such participant’s
payroll deductions accumulated prior to such Exercise Date and retained in the participant’s account as of the
Exercise Date by the applicable Purchase Price; provided that in no event will a participant be permitted to
purchase during each Purchase Period more than ten thousand (10,000) shares of Common Stock (subject to any
adjustment [pursuant to Section 19), and provided further that such purchase will be subject to the limitations set
forth in Sections 3(b) and 13. The Employee may accept the grant of such option with respect to any Offering
Period under the Plan, by electing to participate in the Plan in accordance with the requirements of Section 5. The
Administrator may, for future Offering Periods, increase or decrease, in its absolute discretion, the maximum
number of |shares of Common Stock that a participant may purchase during each Purchase Period of such
Offering Period. Exercise of the option will occur as provided in Section 8, unless the participant has withdrawn
pursuant to rection 10. The option will expire on the last day of the Offering Period.

8. Exercise of Option,

(a) UnLess a participant withdraws from the Plan as provided in Section 10, his or her option for the
purchase of| shares of Common Stock will be exercised automatically on the Exercise Date, and the maximum
number of flull shares subject to option will be purchased for such participant at the applicable Purchase Price
with the acqumulated payroll deductions in his or her account. No fractional shares of Common Stock will be
purchased; any payroll deductions accumulated in a participant’s account which are not sufficient to purchase a
full share will be retained in the participant’s account for the subsequent Purchase Period or Offering Period,
subject to earlier withdrawal by the participant as provided in Section 10. Any other funds lefi over in a
participant’s account after the Exercise Date will be returned to the participant. During a participant’s lifetime, a
participant’s option to purchase shares hereunder is exercisable only by him or her.

(b) Notwithstanding any contrary Plan provision, if the Administrator determines that, on a given Exercise
Date, the number of shares of Common Stock with respect to which options are to be exercised may exceed
(i) the numb{er of shares of Common Stock that were available for sale under the Plan on the Enrollment Date of
the applicable Offering Period, or (ii) the number of shares of Common Stock available for sale under the Plan on
such Exercise Date, the Administrator may in its sole discretion provide that the Company will make a pro rata
allocation ofi the shares of Common Stock available for purchase on such Enrollment Date or Exercise Date, as
applicable, iL) as uniform a manner as will be practicable and as it will determine in its sole discretion to be
equitable among all participants exercising options to purchase Common Stock on such Exercise Date, and either
(x) continurrr:] all Offering Periods then in effect, or (y) terminate any or all Offering Periods then in effect
pursuant to Section 20. The Company may make pro rata allocation of the shares of Common Stock available on
the Enrollment Date of any applicable Offering Period pursuant to the preceding sentence, notwithstanding any
authorization of additional shares of Common Stock for issuance under the Plan by the Company’s stockholders
subsequent 6 such Enrollment Date.

9. Delivery. As soon as administratively practicable after each Exercise Date on which a purchase of shares of
Common Stdck occurs, the Company will arrange the delivery to each participant, as appropriate, the shares
purchased upon exercise of his or her option in a form determined by the Administrator (in its sole discretion)
and pursuant|to rules established by the Administrator. No participant will have any voling, dividend, or other
stockholder rights with respect to shares of Common Stock subject to any option granted under the Plan until
such shares have been purchased and delivered to the participant as provided in this Section 9.

A-5




=
=
=
&
wh
=
=
- 5
~ =
¥
Bl
= o
s =
D
S
= =
-
< =
=
=
s
=3
=
=
~

[
10. Withdrawal. |
(a) Under procedures established by the Administrator, a participant may withdraw all but not less than all
the payroli deductions credited to his or her account and not yet used to exercise his or her option under thé Plan
at any time by (i) submitting to the Company’s payroll office (or its designee) a written notice of withdra\:wal in
the form prescribed by the Administrator for such purpose, or (ii) following an electronic or other withdrawal
procedure prescribed by the Administrator. All of the participant’s payroll deductions credited to his or her
account will be paid to such participant as prompily as practicable after the effective date of his or her
withdrawal and such participant’s option for the Offering Period will be automatically terminated, and no further
payroll deductions for the purchase of shares will be made for such Offering Period. If a participant withdraws
from an Offering Period, payroll deductions will not resume at the beginning of the succeeding Offering Penod
unless the participant re-enrolls in the Plan in accordance with the provisions of Section 5. '
(b) A participant’s withdrawal from an Offering Period will not have any effect upon bhis or her eligibility to
participate in any similar plan which may hereafter be adopted by the Company or in succeeding Offering
Periods which commence after the termination of the Offering Period from which the participant withdraws:.

11. Termination of Employment. Upcn a participant’s ceasing to be an Employee, for any reason, he or she
will be deemed to have elected to withdraw from the Plan and the payroll deductions credited to such
participant’s account during the Offering Period but not yet used to purchase shares of Common Stock under the
Plan will be returned to such participant or, in the case of his or her death, to the person or persons entitled
thereto under Section 15, and such participant’s option will be automatically terminated. The preceding sentence
notwithstanding, a participant who receives payment in lieu of notice of termination of empioyment v'vill be
treated as continuing to be an Employee for the participant’s customary number of hours per week of
employment during the period in which the participant is subject to such payment in lieu of notice. T

12. Interest. No interest will accrue on the payroll deductions of a participant in the Plan.

13. Stock. !

{a) Subject to adjustment upon changes in capitalization of the Company as provided in Section 19, the
maximum number of shares of Common Stock which will be made available for sale under the Plan will be
100,000 shares of Common Stock, plus the number of Shares which have been reserved but not issued under the
Company’s 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “1997 ESPP”) as of December 9, 2006. I

(b) Shares of Common Stock to be delivered to a participant under the Plan will be registered in the name of

the participant or in the name of the participant and his or her spouse. :
[

14. Administration. The Board or a committee of members of the Board who will be appointed from time to
time by, and will serve at the pleasure of, the Board, will administer the Plan. The Administrator will have full
and exclusive discretionary authority to construe, interpret and apply the terms of the Plan, to determine
eligibility, to adjudicate all disputed claims filed under the Plan and to establish such procedures that it deems
necessary for administration of the Plan (including, without limitation, to adopt such procedures and sub-plans as
are necessary or appropriate to permit the participation in the Plan by employees who are foreign natmnals or
employed outside the United States). The Administrator, in its sole discretion and on such terms and conditions
as it may provide, may delegate to one or more individuals all or any part of its authority and powers uqder the
Plan. Every finding, decision and determination made by the Administrator (or its designee) will, to the full
extent permitted by law, be final and binding upon all parties. |

15. Designatien of Beneficiary. 1

(a) A participant may designate a beneficiary wheo is 1o receive any shares of Common Stock and cash, if
any, from the participant’s account under the Plan in the event of such participant’s death subsequent to an

|
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Exercise Date on which the option is exercised but prior to delivery to such participant of such shares and cash.
In addition,a participant may designate a beneficiary who is to receive any cash from the participant’s account
under the Plan in the event of such participant’s death prior to exercise of the option. If a participant is married
and the designated beneficiary is not the spouse, spousal consent will be required for such designation to be
effective.

{b) The participant may change such designation of beneficiary at any time by written notice. In the event of
the death of a participant and in the absence of a beneficiary validly designated under the Plan who is living at
the time ofj such participant’s death, the Company will deliver such shares and/or cash to the executor or
administrator of the estate of the participant, or if no such executor or administrator has been appointed (to the
knowledge j;f the Company), the Company, in its discretion, may deliver such shares and/or cash to the spouse or

to any one or more dependents or relatives of the participant, or if no spouse, dependent or relative is known to
the Company, then to such other person as the Company may designate.

(¢) All beneficiary designations under this Section 15 will be made in such form and manner as the
Administrator may prescribe from time to time.

16. Transferability. Neither payroll deductions credited to a participant’s account nor any rights with regard to
the exercise of an option or to receive shares of Common Stock under the Plan may be assigned, transferred,
pledged or otherwise disposed of in any way (other than by will, the laws of descent and distribution or as
provided in [Section 15) by the participant. Any such attempt at assignment, transfer, pledge or other disposition
will be without effect, except that the Company may treat such act as an election to withdraw from an Offering
Period in actordance with Section 10

17. Use of Funds. The Company may use all payroll deductions received or held by the Company under the
Plan for any corporate purpose, and the Company will not be obligated to segregate such payroll deductions.
Until shares! of Common Stock are issued under the Plan (as evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of

the Compan!
unsecured ¢

18. Report
be given to

deductions,
balance, if a

19. Adjust

y or of a duly authorized transfer agent of the Company), a participant will only have the rights of an
reditor with respect to such shares,

s. Individual accounts will be maintained for each participant in the Plan. Statements of account will
participating Employees at least annually, which statements will set forth the amounts of payroll
the Purchase Price, the number of shares of Common Stock purchased and the remaining cash

ny.

ments, Dissolution, Liquidation or Change of Control.

(a) Adj{’ustmem‘s. In the event that any dividend or other disiribution (whether in the form of cash,
Common Stock, other securities, or other property), recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock split,
reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, repurchase, or exchange of Common Stock
or other sedurities of the Company, or other change in the corporate structure of the Company affecting the

Common S
appropriate
available un
and class of

ock such that an adjustment is determined by the Administrator (in its sole discretion) to be
Iin order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be made
der the Plan, then the Administrator will, in such manner as it may deem equitable, adjust the number
Common Stock which may be delivered under the Plan, the Purchase Price per share and the number

of shares off Common Stock covered by each option under the Plan which has not yet been exercised, and the

numerical li

(b) Dissolution or Liquidation.

Offering Pe
and will ter

mits of Sections 7.

In the event of the proposed dissolution or liquidation of the Company, the
iod then in progress will be shortened by setting a new Exercise Date (the “New Exercise Date™),
minate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed dissolution or liquidation, unless

provided otherwise by the Board. The New Exercise Date will be before the date of the Company’s proposed
dissotution or liquidation. The Board will notify each participant in writing, at least ten (10) business days prior
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to the New Exercise Date, that the Exercise Date for the participant’s option has been changed to the New
Exercise Date and that the participant’s option will be exercised automatically on the New Exercise Date, unless
prior to such date the participant has withdrawn from the Offering Period as provided in $ection 10.
i
{c) Change of Control. In the event of a Change of Control, each outstanding option will be assumed or
an equivalent option substituted by the successor corporation or a Parent or Subsidiary of the suctessor
corpotation. In the event that the successor corporation refuses to assume or substitute for the option, any
Purchase Periods then in progress will be shortened by setting a new Exercise Date (the *New Exercise I?ate”)
and any Offering Periods then in progress will end on the New Exercise Date. The New Exetcise Date will be
before the date of the Company’s proposed Change of Control. The Board will notify each participant in writing,
at least ten (10) business days prior to the New Exercise Date, that the Exercise Date for the participant’s optlon
has been changed to the New Exercise Date and that the participant’s option will be exercised automanca]ly on
the New Exercise Date, unless prior to such date the participant has withdrawn from the Offering Period as
provided in Section 10. I

20. Amendment or Termination.

(a) The Administrator, in its sole discretion, may amend, suspend, or terminate the Plan, or any part thereof,
at any time and for any reason. If the Plan is terminated, the Administrator, in its discretion, may elect to
terminate all outstanding Offering Periods either immediately or upon completion of the purchase of shares of
Common Stock on the next Exercise Date (which may be sooner than originally scheduled, if determined by the
Administrator in its discretion), or may elect to permit Offering Periods to expire in accordance with their'terms
(and subject to any adjustment pursuant to Section 19). If the Offering Periods are terminated prior to expil}ation,
all amounts then credited to participants’ accounts which have not been used to purchase shares of Common
Stock will be returned to the participants (without interest thereon, except as otherwise required under locall laws)
as soon as administratively practicable.

{b) Without stockholder consent and without limiting Section 20(a), the Administrator will be enlit!led to
change the Offering Periods, limit the frequency andfor number of changes in the amount withheld during an
Offering Period, establish the exchange ratio applicable to amounts withheld in 2 currency other than U.S.
dollars, permit payroll withholding in excess of the amount designated by a participant in order to adjust for
delays or mistakes in the Company's processing of properly completed withholding elections, establish
reasonable waiting and adjustment periods and/or accounting and crediting procedures to ensure that amounts
applied toward the purchase of Common Stock for each participant properly correspond with amounts withheld
from the participant’s Compensation, and establish such other limitations or procedures as the Administrator
determines in its sole discretion advisable which are consistent with the Plan.

(¢) In the event the Administrator determines that the ongoing operation of the Plan may result in
unfavorable financial accounting consequences, the Administrator may, in its discretion and, to the extent
necessary or desirable, modify, amend or terminate the Plan to reduce or eliminate such accounting consequence

including, but not limited to: |

(i) amending the Plan to conform with the safe harbor definition under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards 23R, including with respect to an Offering Period underway at the time; \

(ii) aliering the Purchase Price for any Offering Period including an Offering Period underway at the
time of the change in Purchase Price; |
|

(iii) shortening any Offering Period so that Offering Period ends on a new Exercise Date, mcludmg an
Offering Period underway at the time of the Board action: |
[
(iv) reducing the maximum percentage of Compensation a participant may elect to set aside as payroll
deductions; and
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(¥) reducing the maximum number of Shares a participant may purchase during any Offering Period or
Purchase Period.

Such medifications or amendments will not require stockholder approval or the consent of any Plan participants.

21. Notices. All notices or other communications by a participant to the Company under or in connection with
the Plan willl be deemed to have been duly given when received in the form and manner specified by the
Company at the location, or by the person, designated by the Company for the receipt thereof.

22. Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares. Shares of Common Stock wiil not be issued with respect to an option
under the Plan unless the exercise of such option and the issuance and delivery of such shares pursuant thereto
will compljl( with all applicable provisions of law, domestic or foreign, including, without limitation, the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, including the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, the Exchange
Act, and the requirements of any stock exchange upon which the shares may then be listed, and will be further
subject to the approval of counsel for the Company with respect to such compliance.

As a condition to the exercise of an option, the Company may require the person exercising such option to
represent and warrant at the time of any such exercise that the shares are being purchased only for investment
and without|any present intention to sell or distribute such shares if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company,
such a representation is required by any of the aforementioned applicable provisions of law.

23. Term of Plan. The Plan will become effective upon the earlier to occur of its adoption by the Board or its
approval byithe stockholders of the Company. It will continue in effect for a term of ten (10) years, uniess sooner
terminated under Section 20.

24. Automatic Transfer to Low Price Offering Period. To the extent permitted by any applicable laws,
regulations, lor stock exchange rules if the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock on any Exercise Date in an
Offering Period is lower than the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock on the Enrollment Date of such
Offering Pelriod, then all participants in such Offering Period will be automatically withdrawn from such
Offering Period immediately after the exercise of their option on such Exercise Date and automatically
re-enrolled in the immediately following Otfering Period.




APPENDIX B
NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
2003 STOCK PLAN

(1) Purposes of the Plan. The purposes of this 2003 Stock Plan are:
+ to attract and retain the best available personnel for positions of substantial responsibility,
+ 10 provide additional incentive to Employees, Directors and Consultants, and

¢ to promote the success of the Company’s business.

Options granted under the Plan may be Incentwe Stock Options or Nonstatutory Stock Options, as
determined Iby the Administrator at the time of grant. Stock Purchase Rights and Stock Appreciation Rights may
also be granted under the Plan.

(2) Definitions. As used herein, the following definitions will apply:

{a) “Administrator” means the Board or any of its Committees as will be administering the Plan, in
accordance with Section 4 of the Plan.

(b) “Applicable Laws™ means the requirements relating to the administration of stock option plans
under U.S. state corporate laws, U.S. federal and state securities laws, the Code, any stock exchange or
quotation system on which the Common Stock is listed or quoted and the applicable laws of any foreign
country or jurisdiction where Options or Stock Purchase Rights are, or will be, granted under the Plan.

(c) “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
(d) “Change in Control” means the occurrence of any of the following events:

(1) Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d} and 14(d) of the Exchange Act) becomes
the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of
sc?un'ties of the Company representing fifty percent. (50%) or more of the total voting power
represented by the Company’s then outstanding voting securities; or

{ii) The consummation of the sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of the
Company’s assets;

(iii) A change in the composition of the Board occurring within a two-year period, as a result of
which fewer than a majority of the directors are Incumbent Directors. “Incumbent Directors” means
dir!f:ctors who either (A) are Direcfors as of the effective date of the Plan, or (B) are elected, or
nominated for election, to the Board with the affirmative votes of at least a majority of the Incumbent
Directors at the time of such election or nomination (but will not include an individual whose election
or nomination is in connection with an actual or threatened proxy contest relating to the election of
dirbctors to the Company); or

(iv) The consummation of a merger or consolidation of the Company with any other corporation,
other than a-merger or consolidation which would result in the voting securities of the Company
oulj.standing immediately prior thereto continuing to represent (either by remaining outstanding or by
being converted into voling securities of the surviving entity or its parent) at least fifty percent
(50%) of the total voting power represented by the voting securities of the Company or such surviving
enuty or its parent outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation.

(e)|“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

(f) |"Committee” means a committee of Directors appointed by the Board in accordance with Section 4
of the Plan.
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{g) “Common Stock” means the common stock of the Company. |
(h) “Company” means NeoMagic Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

(i} “Consultant” means any natural person, including an advisor, engaged by the Company or a Parent
or Subsidiary to render services to such entity,

(j} "Director” means a member of the Board. ;
. . i
(k) “Disability” means total and permanent disability as defined in Section 22(e)(3) of the Code. ,

(Iy “Employee” means any person, including Officers and Directors, employed by the Company I‘or any
Parent or Subsidiary of the Company. A Service Provider will not cease to be an Employee in the case of
(i) any leave of absence approved by the Company or (ii) transters between locations of the Company or
between the Company, its Parent, any Subsidiary, or any successor. For purposes of Incentivc:Stock
Options, no such leave may exceed ninety days, unless reemployment upon expiration of such leave is
guaranteed by statute or contract. If reemployment upon expiration of a leave of absence approved by the
Company is not so guaranteed, then three (3) months following the 91st day of such leave any Incentive
Stock Option held by the Optionee will cease 1o be treated as an Incentive Stock Option and will be éreated
for tax purposes as a Nonstatutory Stock Option. Neither service as a Director nor payment of a director’s

fee by the Company will be sufficient to constitute “employment” by the Company. '
l

(m) “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
|

(n) “Fair Market Value” means, as of any date, the value of Common Stock determined as follows:
|

(i) If the Common Stock is listed on any established stock exchange or a national market §ystem,
including without limitation the Nasdaq National Market or The Nasdaq SmallCap Market of The
Nasdaq Stock Market, its Fair Market Value will be the closing sales price for such stock {or the
closing bid, if no sales were reported) as quoted on such exchange or system on the day of
determination, as reported in The Wall Street Journal or such other source as the Administrator:deems

reliable; '

(ii) If the Common Stock is regularly quoted by a recognized securities dealer but selling prices
are not reported, the Fair Market Value of a Share of Common Stock will be the mean between the
high bid and low asked prices for the Common Stock on the day of determination, as reported in The
Wall Street Journal or such other source as the Administrator deems reliable; or i

(iii) In the absence of an established market for the Common Stock, the Fair Market Value 'will be
determined in good faith by the Administrator.

(0) “Incentive Stock Option” means an Option intended to qualify as an incentive stock optien’ within
the meaning of Section 422 of the Code and the regulations promulgated thersunder. ,

(p) “Inside Director” means a Director who is an Employee.

i
(q) “Nonstatutory Stock Option” means an Option not intended to qualify as an Incentive Stock
Option.
{r) “Notice of Grant” means a written or electronic notice evidencing certain terms and conditions of
an individual Option or Stock Purchase Right grant. The Notice of Grant is part of the Option Agreement.

(s) “Officer” means a person who is an officer of the Company within the meaning of Section 1;6 of the
Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. .

(t) “Option” means a stock option granted pursuant 1o the Plan. r

(u) “Option Agreement” means an agreement between the Company and an Optionee evidencing the
terms and conditions of an individual Option grant. The Option Agreement is subject to the terms and
conditions of the Plan. ‘
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(V) “Optioned Stock” means the Common Stock subject to an Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock
Appreciation Right.

(w) “Optionee” means the holder of an outstandmg Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock
Appreciation Right granted under the Plan.

(x) “Outside Director” means a Director who is not an Employee.

()}1) “Parent” means a “parent corporation,” whether now or hereafter existing, as defined in
Section 424{e) of the Code.

{z) “Plan"” means this 2003 Stock Plan.

(an) “Restricted Stock” means shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to a grant of Stock Purchase
Rights under Section 11 of the Plan or Shares of restricted stock issued pursuant to an Option.

(bb) “Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement” means a written agreement between the Company and the
Optionee evidencing the terms and restrictions applying to stock purchased under a Stock Purchase Right.
The Relstricted Stock Purchase Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and the Notice
of Grant.

(cc) “Rule 16b-3” means Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act or any successor to Rule 16b-3, as in effect
when discretion is being exercised with respect to the Plan.

(dd) “SAR Agreement” means an agreement between the Company and an Optionee evidencing the
terms and conditions of an individual SAR grant. The SAR Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions
of the Plan and the Notice of Grant.

(ee) “Stock Appreciation Right” or “SAR” means an award that pursuant to Section 12 is designated as
a SAR.

(ff) “Section 16{b)"” means Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.
(&) “Service Provider” means an Employee, Director or Consultant.

(hh) “Share” means a share of the Common Stock, as adjusted in accordance with Section 14 of the
Plan.

(il) “Srock Purchase Right” means the right to purchase Common Stock pursuant to Section 11 of the
Plan, as evidenced by a Notice of Grant.

(j) “Subsidiary” means a “subsidiary corporation”, whether now or hereafter existing, as defined in
Section]424(f) of the Code.

3. Stock Subject 1o the Plan. Subject to the provisions of Section 14 of the Plan, the maximum aggregate
number of Shares that may be optioned and sold under the Plan is 1,537,811 Shares plus (a) any Shares which
have been réserved but not issued under the Company’s Amended 1993 Stock Plan (the 1993 Plan”) as of the
date of stockholder approval of this Plan and (b) any Shares returned to the 1993 Plan as a result of termination
of options or repurchase of Shares issued under the 1993 Plan. The Shares may be authorized, but unissued, or
reacquired qommon Stock. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may not grant more than 20% of the
total Shares reserved for issuance hereunder pursuant to Options, Stock Purchase Rights or Stock Appreciation
Rights that have a per share exercise or purchase price that is less than Fair Market Value on the date of grant.

If an Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right expires or becomes unexercisable without
having been|exercised in full, the unpurchased Shares which were subject thereto will become available for
future grant or sale under the Plan (unless the Plan has terminated); provided, however, that Shares that have
actually been issued under the Plan, whether upon exercise of an Option or right, will not be returned to the Plan
and will not Pecome available for future distribution under the Plan, except that if unvested Shares of Restricted
Stock are repurchased by the Company, such Shares will become available for future grant under the Plan.
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4. Administration of the Plan,

(a) Procedure. |

|
(1) Multiple Administrative Bodies. Different Committees with respect to different groups of
Service Providers may administer the Plan. [

(ii) Section 162(m). To the extent that the Administrator determines it to be desirable to qualify
Options granted hereunder as “performance-based compensation™ within the meamng of
Section 162(m) of the Code, the Plan will be administered by a Committee of two or more 0utsnde
directors” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code.

(iii) Rule 16b-3. To the extent desirable to qualify transactions hereunder as exempt unde:r Rule
16b-3, the transactions contemplated hereunder will be structured to satisfy the requirements for
exemption under Rule 16b-3, i

(iv) Other Administration. Other than as provided above, the Plan will be administered by (A) the
Board or (B) a Committee, which committee will be constituted to satisfy Applicable Laws, !

(b) Powers of the Administrator. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, and in the case of a Committee,
subject to the specific duties delegated by the Board to such Committee, the Administrator will have the
authority, in its discretion: '

{i) to determine the Fair Market Value; ;

(ii) 10 select the Service Providers to whom Options, Stock Purchase Rights and Stock
Appreciation Rights may be granted hereunder; !

(iii) to determine the number of shares of Common Stock to be covered by each Option; Stock
Purchase Right and Stock Appreciation Right granted hereunder; !

(iv) to approve forms of agreement for use under the Plan;

(v) to determine the terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, of any
Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right granted hereunder. Such terms and
conditions include, but are not limited to, the exercise price, the time or times when Options! Stock
Purchase Rights and Stock Appreciation Rights may be exercised (which may be based on performance
criteria), any vesting acceleration or waiver of forfeiture restrictions, and any restriction or llmllauon
regarding any Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right or the shares of Common
Stock relating thereto, based in each case on such factors as the Administrator, in its sole dmcretlon
will determine; -

(vi) to construe and interpret the terms of the Plan and awards granted pursuant to the Plan; '

(vii) to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the Plan, including rules and
regulations relating to sub-plans established for the purpose of satisfying applicable foreign lawsi;

(viii) to modify or amend each Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right Csubject
to Section 16(c) of the Plan), including the discretionary authority to extend the post-termination
exercisability period of Options longer than is otherwise provided for in the Plan;

{(ix} to allow Optionees to satisfy withholding tax obligations by electing to have the Cdmpany
withhold from the Shares to be issued upon exercise of an Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock
Appreciation Right that number of Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the minimum amount
required to be withheld. The Fair Market Value of the Shares to be withheld will be dctermined: on the
date that the amount of tax to be withheld is to be determined. All elections by an Optionee to have
Shares withheld for this purpose will be made in such form and under such conditions'as the
Administrator may deem necessary or advisable; : ~




granted to

(x) to authorize any person to execute on behalf of the Company any instrument required to effect
the grant of an Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right previously granted by the
Administrator;

(xi) to make all other determinations deemed necessary or advisable for administering the Plan.

(c) Effect of Administrator’s Decision. The Administrator’'s  decisions, determinations and
interpretations will be final and binding on all Optionees and any other holders of Options, Stock Purchase
Rights or Stock Appreciation Rights.

5. Etigibr‘lity. Nonstatutory Stock Options, Stock Purchase Rights and Stock Appreciation Rights may be
ervice Providers. Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to Employees.

6. Limitations.

(a) Each Option will be designated in the Option Agreement as either an Incentive Stock Option or a
Nonstlatutory Stock Option. However, notwithstanding such designation, to the extent that the aggregate Fair
Markét Value of the Shares with respect to which Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for the first time
by the Optionee during any calendar year {under all plans of the Company and any Parent or Subsidiary)
exceeds $100,000, such Options will be treated as Nonstatutory Stock Options. For purposes of this
SCC[[C;I! 6(a), Incentive Stock Options will be taken into account in the order in which they were granted.
The Falr Market Value of the Shares will be determined as of the time the Option with respect to such
Shareg is granted.

(b) Neither the Plan nor any Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right will confer
upon an Optionee any right with respect to continuing the Optionee’s relationship as a Service Provider with
i
the Ccl)mpany, nor will they interfere in any way with the Optionee’s right or the Company’s right to
terminate such relationship at any time, with or without cause,

(¢) The following limitations will apply to grants of Options:

(i) No Service Provider will be granted, in any fiscal year of the Company, Options to purchase
ore than 400,000 Shares.

(i) In connection with his or her initial service, a Service Provider may be granted Options to
purchase up to an additional 200,000 Shares, which will not count against the limit set forth in
ubsection (i) above.

=
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(ii1) The foregoing limitations will be adjusted proportionately in connection with any change in
the Company’s capitalization as described in Section 14,

(iv) If an Option is cancelled in the same fiscal year of the Company in which it was granted
{other than in connection with a transaction described in Section 14), the cancelled Option will be
counted against the limits set forth in subsections (i) and (ii) above. For this purpose, if the exercise
price of an Option is reduced, the transaction will be treated as a cancellation of the Option and the
grant of a new Option.

7. Term of Plan. Subject to Section 20 of the Plan, the Plan will become effective upon its adoption by the

Board. It will continue in effect for a term of ten (10) years unless terminated earlier under Section 16 of the

Plan.

8. Term of Option. The term of each Option will be stated in the Option Agreement. In the case of an

Incentive Stock Option, the term will be ten (10) years from the date of grant or such shorter term as may be
provided in|the Option Agreement. Moreover, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to an Optionee

who,

at the time the Incentive Stock Option is granted, owns stock representing more than ten percent {10%) of

the total corlnbined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any Parent or Subsidiary, the term of
the Incentive Stack Option will be five (5) years from the date of grant or such shorter term as may be provided
in the Option Agreement.
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9. Option Exercise Price and Consideration.

(a) Exercise Price. The per share exercise price for the Shares o be issued pursvant to exercise 'of an
Option will be determined by the Administrator, subject to the following: .

(i) In the case of an Incentive Stock Option

(1} granted 1o an Employee who, at the time the Incentive Stock Option is granted,:owns
stock representing more than ten percent (10%) of the voting power of all classes of stock of the
Company or any Parent or Subsidiary, the per Share exercise price will be no less than 110% of
the Fair Market Value per Share on the date of grant.

(2) granted to any Employee other than an Employee described in paragraph (A) immec{iately
above, the per Share exercise price will be no less than 100% of the Fair Market Value per Share
on the date of grant. !

(ii) In the case of a Nonstatutory Stock Option, the per Share exercise price will be determined by
the Administrator. In the case of a Nonstatutory Stock Option intended to qualify as “performance-
based compensation” within the meaning of Section 162{m) of the Code, the per Share etercnsc price
will be no less than 100% of the Fair Market Value per Share on the date of grant.

(iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Options may be granted with a per Share exercise price of less
than 100% of the Fair Market Value per Share on the date of grant pursuant to a merger or, other
corporate transaction, .

|
{b) Waiting Period and Exercise Dates. At the time an Option is granted, the Administrator will fix the
period within which the Option may be exercised and will determine any conditions that must be ‘;atlsﬁed
before the Option may be exercised.

(c) Form of Consideration. The Administrator will determine the acceptable form of consideralibn for
exercising an Option, including the method of payment. In the case of an Incentive Stock Option, the
Administrator will determine the acceptable form of consideration at the time of grant. Such consideration

may consist entirely of: :
!

(i) cash; ,
{ii) check;
(iii) promissory note;

(iv) other Shares, provided Shares acquired directly or indirectly from the Company, (AI) have
been vested and owned by the Optionee for more than six (6) months on the date of surrender, and
(B) have a Fair Market Value on the date of surrender equal to the aggrepate exercise prlce 'of the
Shares as to which said Option will be exercised;

{v) consideration received by the Company under a cashless exercise program implemented 'by the
Company in connection with the Plan;

f

(vi) a reduction in the amount of any Company liability to the Optionee, including any liability
attributable to the Optionee’s participation in any Company-sponsored deferred compensation program
or arrangement;

{vii) any combination of the foregoing methods of payment; or :
|

(viii) such other consideration and method of payment for the issuance of Shares to the 'extent

permitted by Applicable Laws. :

I

10. Exercise of Option, I
(a) Procedure for Exercise; Rights as a Stockholder. Any Option granted hereunder will be exercisable
according to the terms of the Plan and at such times and under such conditions as determined by the
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Admili'listrator and set forth in the Option Agreement. Unless the Administrator provides otherwise, vesting
of Options granted hereunder will be suspended during any unpaid leave of absence. An Option may not be
exercised for a fraction of a Share.

An Option will be deemed exercised when the Company receives: (i) written or electronic notice of exercise
{in accordance with the Option Agreement) from the person entitled to exercise the Option, and (ii) full payment
for the Shafes with respect to which the Option is exercised. Full payment may consist of any consideration and
method of layment authorized by the Administrator and permitied by the Option Agreement and the Plan. Shares
issued upon exercise of an Option will be issued in the name of the Optionee or, if requested by the Optionee, in
the name oﬂ the Optionee and his or her spouse. Until the Shares are issued {as evidenced by the appropriate entry
on the books of the Company or of a duly authorized transfer agent of the Company}), no right to vote or receive
dividends o any other rights as a stockholder will exist with respect to the Optioned Stock, notwithstanding the
exercise of the Option. The Company will issue {or cause to be issued) such Shares promptly after the Option is
exercised. bllo adjustment will be made for a dividend or other right for which the record date is prior to the date
the Shares are issued, except as provided in Section 14 of the Plan.

Exercising an Option in any manner will decrease the number of Shares thereafter available, both for
purposes of the Plan and for sale under the Option, by the number of Shares as to which the Option is exercised.

(b) Termination of Relationship as a Service Provider. If an Optionee ceases 1o be a Service Provider,
other than upon the Optionee’s death or Disability, the Optionee may exercise his or her Option within such
period of time as is specified in the Option Agreement to the extent that the Option is vested on the date of
termination (but in no event later than the expiration of the term of such Option as set forth in the Option
Agreerﬁent). In the absence of a specified time in the Option Agreement, the Option will rernain exercisable
for threE (3) months following the Optionee’s termination. Unless otherwise provided by the Administrator,
if on the date of termination the Optionee is not vested as to his or her entire Option, the Shares covered by
the unvested portion of the Option will revert to the Plan. If after termination the Optionee does not exercise
his or her Option within the time specified by the Administrator, the Option will terminate, and the Shares
covered by such Option will revert 10 the Plan.

(c)| Disability of Optionee. If an Optionee ceases to be a Service Provider as a result of the Optionee’s
Disability, the Optionee may exercise his or her Option within such period of time as is specified in the
Option Agreement to the extent the Option is vested on the date of termination (but in no event later than the
expiration of the term of such Option as set forth in the Option Agreement). In the absence of a specified
time in the Option Agreement, the Option will remain exercisable for twelve (12) months following the
Optionee’s termination. Unless otherwise provided by the Administrator, if on the date of termination the
Optionee is not vested as to his or her entire Option, the Shares covered by the unvested portion of the
Option will revert to the Plan. If after termination the Optionee does not exercise his or her Optien within
the time{specified herein, the Option will terminate, and the Shares covered by such Option will revert to the
Plan.

(d) |Death of Optionee. If an Optionee dies while a Service Provider, the Option may be exercised
following the Optionee’s death within such period of time as is specified in the Option Agreement (o the
extent that the Option is vested on the date of death (but in no event may the option be exercised later than
the expilration of the term of such Option as set forth in the Option Agreement), by the Optionee’s
designal#d beneficiary, provided such beneficiary has been designated prior to Optionee’s death in a form
acceptable to the Administrator. If no such beneficiary has been designated by the Optionee, then such
Option may be exercised by the personal representative of the Optionee’s estate or by the person(s} to whom
the Option is transferred pursuant to the Optionee’s will or in accordance with the laws of descent and
distribution. In the absence of a specified time in the Option Agreement, the Option will remain exercisable
for twelve (12) mouths following Opticnee’s death. Unless otherwise provided by the Administrator, if at
the time of death Optionee is not vested as to his or her entire Option, the Shares covered by the unvested
portion of the Option will immediately revert to the Plan. If the Option is not so exercised within the time
specified|herein, the Option will terminate, and the Shares covered by such Option will revert 1o the Plan.
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11. Stock Purchase Rights. :
!

(a) Rights to Purchase. Stock Purchase Rights may be issued either alone, in addition to, or in tandem
with other awards granted under the Plan and/or cash awards made outside of the Plan. After the
Administrator determines that it will offer Stock Purchase Rights under the Plan, it will advise the offeree in
writing or electronically, by means of a Notice of Grant, of the terms, conditions and restrictions related to
the offer, including the number of Shares that the offeree will be entitled to purchase, the price to bé paid,
and the time within which the offeree must accept such offer. The offer will be accepted by executiqn of a

Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement in the form determined by the Administrator. |

(b) Repurchase Option. Unless the Administrator determines otherwise, the Restricted Stock Puli"chase
Agreement will grant the Company a repurchase option exercisable upon the voluntary or involuntary
termination of the purchaser’s service with the Company for any reason (including death or Disability). The
purchase price for Shares repurchased pursuant to the Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement will be the
original price paid by the purchaser and may be paid by cancellation of any indebtedness of the purchaser to
the Company. The repurchase option will lapse at a rate determined by the Administrator. \

(¢} Other Provisions. The Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement will contain such other terms,
provisions and conditions not inconsistent with the Plan as may be determined by the Administrator in its
sole discretion, !

(d) Rights as a Stockholder. Once the Stock Purchase Right is exercised, the purchaser will have the
rights equivalent to those of a stockholder, and will be a stockholder when his or her purchase is éntered
upon the records of the duly authorized transfer agent of the Company. No adjustment will be made for a
dividend or other right for which the record date is prior to the date the Stock Purchase Right is exercised,
except as provided in Section 14 of the Plan. |

12. Stock Appreciation Rights. Each SAR grant will be evidenced by a SAR Agreement that will speclify the
terms of the SAR, the conditions of exercise, the expiration date, and such other terms and condmons as the
Administrator, in its sole discretion, will determine. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the rules of Sections 9(c) and
10 of the Plan also will apply to SARs. Upon exercise of a SAR, an Optionee will be entitled to receive a
payment from the Company (at the discretion of the Administrator, in cash, in Shares of equivalent value, or in
some combination thereof) in an amount determined by multiplying (i) the difference between the Fair Market
Value of a Share on the date of exercise over the exercise price, by (ii) the number of Shares with respect 10
which the SAR is exercised. :

|

13. Transferability of Options, Stock Purchase Rights and Stock Appreciation Rights. Unless detérmined
otherwise by the Administrator, an Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right may not be sold,
pledged, assigned, hypothecated, transferred, or disposed of in any manner other than by will or by the laws of
descent or distribution and may be exercised, during the lifetime of the Optionee, only by the Optlonee If the
Administrator makes an Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right transferable, such Optlon
Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right will contain such additional terms and condmons as the
Administrator deems appropriate. ‘

|

14. Adjustments; Dissolution or Liquidation; Merger or Change in Control. |

(a) Adjustments. If any dividend or other distribution (whether in the form of cash, Shares, other
securities, or other property), recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock split, reorganization, merger,
consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, repurchase, or exchange of Shares or other securities of the
Company, or other change in the corporate structure of the Company affecting the Shares occurs, the
Administrator, in order to prevent diminution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits mtended to
be made available under the Plan, may (in its sole discretion) adjust the number and class of Shares that may
be delivered under the Plan and/or the number, class, and price of Shares covered by each outstanding
Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right, as well as the numerical Share 11mlts in
Section 6 of the Plan.
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(b) Dissolution or Liguidation. In the event of the proposed dissolution or liquidation of the Company,
the Administrator will notify each Optionee as soon as practicable prior to the effective date of such
proposed transaction. The Administrator in is discretion may provide for an Optionee to have the right to
exercise his or her Option or Stock Appreciation Right until ten (10) days prior to such transaction as to all
of the Optioned Stock covered thereby, including Shares as to which the Option or Stock Appreciation Right
would| not otherwise be exercisable. In addition, the Administrator may provide that any Company
repurchase option applicable to any Shares purchased upon exercise of an Option or Stock Purchase Right
will lapse as to all such Shares, provided the proposed dissolution or liquidation takes place at the time and
in the ;manner contemplated. To the extent it has not been previously exercised, an Option, Stock Purchase
Right or Stock Appreciation Right will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed
action.

(C) Merger or Change in Control. In the event of a merger of the Company with or into another
corporllition, or a Change in Control, each outstanding Option, Stock Purchase Right and Stock Appreciation
Right will be assumed or an equivalent option or right substituted by the successor corporation or a Parent
or Subisidiary of the successor corporation. If the successor corporation refuses to assume or substitute for
the Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right, the Optionee will fuily vest in and have the
right 10 exercise the Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right as to all of the Optioned
Stock, Iincluding Shares as to which it would not otherwise be vested or exercisable. If an Option, Stock
Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right becomes fully vested and exercisable in lieu of assumption or
substitution in the event of a merger or Change in Control, the Administrator will notify the Optionee in
writing or electronically that the Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right will be fully
vested and exercisable for a period of fifteen (15) days from the date of such notice, and the Option, Stock
Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right will terminate upon the expiration of such period.

For the purposes of this subsection (c), the Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right will
be considered assumed if, following the merger or Change in Control, the option or right confers the right to
purchase or|receive, for each Share subject to the Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right
immediately] prior to the merger or Change in Control, the consideration (whether stock, cash, or other securities
or property) or, in the case of a Stock Appreciation Right upon the exercise of which the Administrator
determines to pay cash, the fair market value of the consideration, received in the merger or Change in Control
by holders of Common Stock for each Share held on the effective date of the transaction {and if holders were
offered a choice of consideration, the type of consideration chosen by the holders of a majority of the outstanding
Shares); provided, however, that if such consideration received in the merger or Change in Control is not solely
common stock of the successor corporation or its Parent, the Administrator may, with the consent of the
successor corporation, provide for the consideration to be received upon the exercise of the Option, Stock
Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right, for each Share subject to the Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock
Appreciation Right, to be solely common stock of the successor corporation or its Parent equal in fair market
value to the per share consideration received by holders of Common Stock in the merger or Change in Centrol.

15. Date of Grant. The date of grant of an Option, Stock Purchase Right or Stock Appreciation Right will
be, for all purposes, the date on which the Administrator makes the determination granting such Option, Stock
Purchase Riéhl or Stock Appreciation Right, or such other later date as is determined by the Administrator.
Notice of theé determination will be provided to each Optionee within a reasonable time after the date of such
grant.

16, Amendment and Termination of the Plan.

(a)|Amendment and Termination, The Board may at any time amend, alier, suspend or terminate the
Plan.

(b)\Stockholder Approval. The Company will obtain stockholder approval of any Plan amendment to
the extent necessary and desirable to comply with Applicable Laws,
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(c) Effect of Amendment or Termination. No amendment, alteration, suspension or termination of the
Plan will impair the rights of any Optionee, unless mutually agreed otherwise between the Optionee and the
Administrator, which agreement must be in writing and signed by the Optionee and the Comipany.
Termination of the Plan will not affect the Administrator’s ability to exercise the powers granted to it
hereunder with respect to Options, Stock Purchase Rights and Stock Appreciation Rights granted und:er the
Plan prior to the date of such termination.

17. Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares. '

(a) Legal Compliance. Shares will not be issued pursuant to the exercise of an Option, Stock Purchase
Right or Stock Appreciation Right unless the exercise of such Option, Stock Purchase Right or 'Stock
Appreciation Right and the issuance and delivery of such Shares will comply with Applicable Laws and will
be further subject to the approval of counsel for the Company with respect to such compliance. '

'

(b) Investment Representations. As a condition to the exercise of an Option, Stock Purchase Right or
Stock Appreciation Right, the Company may require the person exercising such Option, Stock Purchase
Right or Stock Appreciation Right to represent and warrant at the time of any such exercise that the Shares
are being purchased only for investment and without any present intention to sell or distribute such Shares
if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, such a representation is required. '

18. Inability to Obtain Authority. The inability of the Company to obtain authority from any regulatory body
having jurisdiction, which authority is deemed by the Company’s counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance
and sale of any Shares hereunder, will retieve the Company of any liability in respect of the failure to issue or seil
such Shares as to which such requisite authority will not have been obtained. |

19. Reservation of Shares. The Company, during the term of this Plan, will at all times reserve and keep
available such number of Shares as will be sufficient to satisfy the requirements of the Plan. .

[

20. Stockholder Approval. The Plan will be subject to approval by the stockholders of the Company within
twelve (12) months after the date the Plan is adopted. Such stockholder approval will be obtained in the manner
and to the degree required under Applicable Laws. |
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

HonH

When {used in this discussion, the words "expects,” "anticipates,”" "believes” and similar expressions are
intended to| identify forward-looking statements. Such statements reflect management's current intentions and
expectations. However, actual events and results could vary significantly based on a variety of factors inciuding,
but not lim]lted to: customer acceptance of new NeoMagic products, the market acceptance of handheld devices
developed and marketed by customers that use our products, cur ability to execute product and technology
development plans on schedule, and our ability to access advanced manufacturing technologies in sufficient
capacity without significant cash pre-payments or investment. Examples of forward-looking statements include
statements about our expected revenues, our competitive advantage in our markets, the potential market for our
products, our expected production timelines, our customer base and our need for additional financing beyond the
next 12 molmhs. These statements are subject to significant risks and uncertainties, including those set forth
below unde[ Item 1A of Part I of this Form 10-K, that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
projected. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date herecof. We expressly disclaim any
obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements
contained berein, to reflect any changes in our expectations with regard thereto or any changes in events,
conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.

PART ]

Item 1. BUSINESS

General

We deliver semiconductor chips and software that provide solutions to enable new multimedia applications
for hand‘helq devices. Our solutions offer fow power consumption, small form-factor and high performance
processing. We demonstrated one of the first solutions used for H.264 video decoding in a mobile digital TV
phone, and ive are developing and delivering additional solutions for audio/video processing of the dominant
mobile digital TV standards, including ISDB-T, T-DMB and DVB-H. As part of our complete system solution,
we deliver a) suite of middleware and sample applications for imaging, video and audio functionality, and we
provide multiple operating system ports with customized drivers for our products. Qur product portfolio includes
semiconductor solutions known as Applications Processors as well as other System-On-Chips (SOCs). Our
ApplicationslProcessors are sold under the “MiMagic” brand name with a focus on enabling high performance
multimedia \{vithin a low power consumption environment. In mobile phones, our Applications Processors are
designed to work side-by-side with baseband processors that are used for communications functionality. Our
S0C product dedicated for the mobile digital TV market is marketed under the “NeoMobileTV” brand name.
Target customers for both our MiMagic products and our NeoMobileTV product include manufacturers of
mobile phones and handheld devices. The largest projected market opportunity for our products is in the mobile
phone marktj, where our products enable multimedia functionality.

We beli:eve that next-generation mobile phones and other handheld devices will continue to feature
increased multimedia functionality including: mobile TV, advanced camera applications, highly compressed
video using H.264 video standards, 3D graphics for gaming, and audio. Our strategy is to become a leading
provider of multimedia processing solutions by:

* Leveraging our core competencies in integrating logic, analog, and memory to support multimedia
applications on mobile phones and handheld devices with power-efficient, high performance, low-cost
solutions;

+ Offering multiformat solutions that support a full range of operating systems, basebands, wireless
protocols, and mobile TV broadcast formats;

» Providing high-performance, power-efficient solutions that use our proprietary Associative Processing
Array architecture,
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f
+ Continuing to build relationships with leading component, software and solutions providers to offer our

customers complete solutions; and, |

+ Focusing our sales efforts on several points in the sales channel including: original design manufacturers
design firms, contract manufacturers, original equipment manufacturers, network operators and v1rtual
network operators.

We have established relationships with third-party manufacturing partners to produce semiconiluctor
products for us. Pursuant to these relationships, we design the overall product, including the logic and analog
circuitry, and the manufacturing partners manufacture the wafers, assemble and test the products. ;

In the past, we provided graphics processor semiconductors to top notebook computer manufacturérs. In
April 2000, we began to exit the graphics processor market. However, the majority of our historical net sales
through the end of fiscal 2002 continued to come from these products. We do not expect to have revenue 1|'elaled
to these products in the future. We believe that we were one of the first companies to adopt large amounts of
on-chip memory for commercial applications. Many industry sources consider our graphics processors 10 be the
semiconductor industry’s first commercially successful embedded DRAM products. Currently, embedded
DRAM technology is used broadly in many applications. We believe that several companies have infringed on
our patents for embedded DRAM technology. In the third quarter of fiscal 2006, we completed a patent licensing
transaction with Sony Corporation where Sony paid NeoMagic $8.5 million for a license to our patents. We are
currently in discussions with multiple companies about taking a license to our embedded DRAM patents. *

1

NeoMagic Corporation was incorporated in California in May 1993 and subsequently reincorporated in

Delaware in February 1997, |

Products |

Product revenue was $0.6 million, $0.9 million and $2.5 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respe(f:tively,
representing 100%, 9% and 100% of total revenue. ,

MiMagic Products:

|

Qur primary product line is the MiMagic Applications Processor family. The MiMagic family of
Applications Processors incorporates an ARM processor and a multimedia engine for 3D graphics, stilt images,
audio, video and other multimedia capabilities. We introduced the first member of the MiMagic Applications
Processor family in July 2001. We have since phased out production of the MiMagic 1 and MiMagic 2
Applications Processors. Currently, the MiMagic 3 Applications Processor and the MiMagic 6+ Applications
Processor are in full production.

i

The MiMagic 6+ is our first product to include a new, proprietary technology architecture called Associative
Processor Array (APA). The APA multimedia engine uses a massively parallel approach to processmg
information. Most competitive architectures use a sequential approach to process data. To increase performancc_
sequential architectures rely on increased clock rates. These faster clock rates result in increased power
consumption and reduced battery life. Because APA operates on data in parallel, it is able to proce$s more
information per clock cycle than sequential approaches. With its ability to handle large amounts of data
simultaneously, the APA multimedia engine is able to efficiently process multimedia data such as images, video
and graphics, with low power consumption. One significant advantage of APA is that it is a programmable and
flexible architecture that can be configured to meet customers’ needs.

'
The MiMagic 6+ can process and support many different applications, including: digital mobile TV, Voice Over
IP (VolP), real-time Globa} Positioning System (GPS), digital still camera, video camcorder, audiolvidelo player
and 3D gaming.




NeoMobileTV Product:

During February 2006, the Company announced its new NeoMobileTV product. NeoMobileTV is a
complex System-On-Chip solution targeted to specifically address the market for mobile television on handheld
devices such as mobile phones. The NeoMobileTV solution offers the following features:

» Simple integration into existing feature phone platforms with little or no change to the system
architecture, ’

» Flexible video/audio deceding at low power and low clock frequencies {sub—100Mhz);

* QVGA, CIF and VGA decoding of mobile TV video formats such as H.264, Windows Media 9, MPEG-4,
and [DIVX at frame rates up to 30 frames per second;

= Simpltaneous decoding of selected audio formats for broadcast mobile TV including AMR, AAC,
HE-AAC, MP3 and BSAC;

* Support for ISDB-T, T-DMB and DVB-H mobile TV broadcast formats

The NloMobileTV p}oduct is currently being 'sampled.

Companion Chip Products:

Our cgmpanion chip products (NMC1110 and NMC1121) add 1O (input/output) functions to processors
made by other companies. Due to the age of these products and the small order volume for these products, we
discontinued these products during fiscal 2007.

Research and Development

We believe the timely development and introduction of new products are essential to maintaining our
competitive|position and our ability to capitalize on market opportunities. NeoMagic's research and development
efforts are focused on developing Integrated System-on-Chip semiconductor products for mobile phones and
other handheld devices. At the end of fiscal 2007, we had approximately 72 employees engaged in research and
developmen:l activities. Research and development expenses were $13.8 million, $12.4 million and $18.2 million,
in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively. None of our research and development is customer funded. We have
historically focused much of our personnel and resources on research and development. Our research and
development activities are focused on supporting customer programs based on the MiMagic 6+ and
NeoMobileTV products as well as on developing next generation products. We are also developing new
technologies| that will improve the quality of multimedia applications on low-power consumption mobile phones
and other handheld devices. We plan to continue innovating and improving the functionatity of our products. We
have offices|in India and Israel that support NeoMagic’s research and development effort.

Sales and Marketing

We primarily sell our products using our internal sales and marketing personnel, a global network of
distributors and sales representatives and our management team. In some cases, mobile phones and other
handheld devices are designed and manufactured by third-party Original Design Manufacturers (ODMs) on
behalf of the final brand name Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs). We focus on developing long-term
customer re!ationships with ODMs, brand name OEMSs as well as network operators and virtual network
operaters. We believe that this approach increases the likelihood of design wins, improves the overall quality of
support, andienables the timely release of customer products to market,

Our sal?s and marketing strategy is an integral part of our effort to become a leading supplier of applications
processors and multimedia SOC solutions to manufacturers of mobile phones and other handheld devices. To
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meet customer requirements and achieve design wins, our sales and marketing personnel work closety with our
customers, business partners and key industry trendsetters to define product features, performance, price, and
market timing of new products. We employ a sales and marketing organization with a high level of teLhmcal
expertise and product and industry knowledge to support a lengthy and complex design win process.
Additionally, we employ a highly trained team of application engineers to assist customers in designing, testing
and qualifying system designs that incorporate NeoMagic products as part of the pre-sale process. We b;elieve
that the depth and quality of this design support is key to improving our customers’ time-to-market deliveries and
maintaining a high level of customer satisfaction, which in turn encourages customers to use subsequent
generations of our products. :

The information regarding geographic distribution of sales and significant customers is incorporated by
reference to Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part II of this Form 10-K. Our
customer base can shift significantly from period to period as customer programs end and new programs do not
always replace ending programs. In addition, new customers are added from period to period.

Third Party Manufacturing

We have a relationship with one foundry, Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, to produce
our semiconductor wafers. We do not have a long-term agreement with this foundry. This relationship enal}les us
to concentrate our resources on product design, development, engineering, marketing and sales, where we believe
we have greater competitive advantages, and to eliminate the high cost of owning and operating a semiconductor
wafer fabrication facility. We depend on our wafer supplier to allocate to us a portion of their manufacturlng
capacity sufficient to meet our needs, to produce products of acceptable cost and quality at acceptable
manufacturing vields, and to deliver those products to us on a timely basis. Since, in our experience, the lead
time needed to establish a relationship with a new wafer fabrication partner is at least 12 months, and the
estimated time for a foundry to switch to a new product line ranges from four to nine months, we may have o
readily available alternative source of supply for specific products. In addition to time constraints, sw;tchlng
foundries would require a diversion of engineering manpower and financial resources to redesign our products so
that the new foundry could manufacture them. We cannot assure you that we can redesign our products to be
manufactured by a new foundry in a timely manner, nor can we assure you that we will not infringe on the
intellectual property of our current wafer manufacturer when we redesign our products for a new foundry, A
manufacturing disruption experienced by our manufacturing partner would have a material adverse effect bn our
business, financial condition and results of operations. Furthermore, if the transition to the next generation of
manufacturing technologies at our supplier is unsuccessful, our business, financial condition and results of
operations would be materially and adversely affected. In addition, our working capital requirements ¢an be
significant. Due to the long lead-time for manufacturing wafers and the just in time ordering by customers, the

Company may have to carry significant inventory,
1

We use other third-party subcontractors to perform assembly, packaging and testing of our products. We
work with these third-party subcontractors for advanced packaging capabilities. We do not have long-term
agreements with any of these subcontractors. As a result of our reliance on third-party subcontracfors to
assemble, test and provide advanced packaging for our products, we cannot directly control product delivery
schedules, which could lead to product shortages or quality assurance problems that could increase the costs of
manufacturing or assembling our products. Due to the amount of time normally required to qualify these
assembly and test subcontractors, shipments could be delayed significantly if we are required to find alternative
subcontractors. :
|
Competition

The market for applications processors and multimedia co-processors is intensely competitive 'and is
characterized by rapid technological change, evolving industry standards and declining average selling prices.
We believe that the principal factors of competition in this market are processing performance, price, features,
power consumption, size and customer support. Qur ability to compete successfully in the applications processor

|
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and multimedia co-processor market depends on a number of factors including, success in designing and
subcontracting the manufacture of new products that implement new technologies, product quality and reliability,
price, ramp of production of our products, customer demand and acceptance of more sophisticated muitimedia
functionality on mobile phones and other handheld devices, end-user acceptance of our customers’ products,
market acceptance of competitors’ products and general economic conditions. Qur ability to compete will also
depend on our ability to identify and ensure compliance with evolving industry standards and market trends.

We compete with both domestic and foreign companies, some of which have substantially greater financial
and other resources than us with which to pursue engineering, manufacturing, marketing and distribution of their
products. Qur principal competitors include Texas Instruments, Renesas, ST Microelectronics and Broadcom as
well as a number of vertically integrated electronics firms that are developing their own solutions, such as C&S5
technologiés and Nexilion. We may also face increased competition from new entrants into the market including
companies | currently at developmental stages. We believe we have significant intellectual property and
historically| demonstrated expertise in SOC technology. However, our inability to introduce timely new products
for our market, to support these products in customer programs, or to manufacture these products could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Intellectual Property

We rely in part on patents to protect our intellectual property. As of January 28, 2007, we had 28 issued
patents. These issued patents are scheduled to expire between June 2014 and November 2024, Additionally, we
have several patent applications pending. We cannot assure you that our pending patent applications, or any
future applications will be approved. Further, we cannot assure you that any issued patents will provide us with
significant (intellectual property protection or competitive advantages, that they will not be challenged by third
parties, or that the patents of others will not have an adverse effect on our ability to do business. In addition, we
cannot assure you that others will not independently develop similar products, duplicate our products or design
around any|patents that may be issued to us.

We also rely on a combination of mask work protection, trademarks, copyrights, trade secret laws, employee
and third—plarty nondisclosure agreements and licensing arrangements to protect our intellectual property. Despite
these efforts, we cannot assure you that others will not independently develop substantially equivalent
intellectuall properly or otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or intellectual property, disclose such
intellectual; property or trade secrets, or that we can meaningfully protect our intellectual property. As a general
matter, the|semiconductor industry has experienced substantial litigation regarding patent and other intellectual
property rights. A failure by us to meaningfully protect our intellectual property could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Since |April 2002, we have been working with The Consortium for Technology Licensing Ltd. to explore
opportunities to license or sell some of our patents. During the second quarter of fiscal 2007 and the first quarter
of fiscal 2006, we generated $1.0 million and $3.5 million, respectively, in gains from the sale ‘of patents that
related to legacy products that NeoMagic no longer sells. During the third quarter of fiscal 2006, we announced a
patent licensing transaction with Sony Corporation where Sony paid us $8.5 million for a non-exclusive license
to all of our patents. In the patent licensing transaction with Sony, we only provided Sony with a license to our
patents. We did not provide Sony with any intellectual “know-how” or other confidential information that could
help Sony l evelop products that could be competitive with NeoMagic’s products. As of April 28, 2007, we were
in discussions with multiple companies regarding on our embedded DRAM patents. The objective of our patent
licensing business is to enter into patent licensing agreements with companies that we believe have infringed or
are expected to infringe on our patents. In addition, we may decide to license or sell certain additional patents in
the future. [Licensing revenue was $8.5 million in fiscal 2006 representing 91% of our total revenue. There was
no licensing revenue in fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2005.




Long-Lived Assets

The vast majority of the Company’s long-lived assets, primarily property plant and equipment, are located
at our headquarters in Santa Clara, California. '
[
[
Seasonality !
Our business has not been seasonal to date. !
Government Contracts and Regulation |

We do not have government contracts and the demand for our products is not driven by government

regulation.
l

Environment I

We do not manufacture our own products and, therefore, do not have issues relating to the disposat of
hazardous materials and relating to emissions and discharges into the air and water.

Backlog !

|

Sales of our products are primarily made through standard purchase orders that are cancelable without
significant penalties. These purchase orders are subject to price renegotiations and to changes in quantities of
products and delivery schedules to reflect changes in customers' requirements and manufacturing availability.
Also, many of our customers are moving to “just in time” relationships with their vendors, whereby orders for
product deliveries are not provided to the supplier until just before the requested delivery. A large portion of our
sales is made through short lead-time orders. In addition, our actual shipments depend on the manufacturing
capacity of our suppliers and the availability of products from such suppliers.’ As a resuit of the foregoing factors,
we do not believe that backlog is a meaningful indicator of future revenue. i
|
Employees ;

As of January 28, 2007, we employed a total of 91 full-time employees, including 72 in research and
development, 4 in applications engineering, 3 in sales and marketing, 1 in manufacturing and 11 in finance,
information technology and administration. We also employ, from time to time, a number of temporary and part-
time employees as well as consultants on a contract basis. Our employees are not represented by a collective
bargaining organization.

Management

Executive Officers

The executive officers of the Company as of April 28, 2007 are as follows:

NAME A_GE POSITION :
Douglas R, Young 62 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director :
Syed Zaidi 48 Vice President, Corporate Engineering Chief )

Operating Ofticer
Deepra) Puar 61 Vice President Operations

H. Robert Newman 40  Acting Chief Financial Officer - ,

. . . . ) . !
There are no family relationships among the executive officers and directors of the Company.
|

Douglas R. Young has been President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of NeoMagic since April
2005. Before his promotion to President and Chief Executive Officer, he was NeoMagic’s Vice President of
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Worldwide, Sales, having joined NeoMagic in February 2004. Before joining NeoMagic, Mr. Young was Senior
Vice Pres?l'ient of Worldwide Sales at Planetweb, Inc., a provider of embedded multimedia application and
browser software for consumer electronics devices, from August 1999 to October 2003. At Planetweb,
Mr. Young worked with customers such as Samsung, Sharp, Philips and other large OEMs. Mr. Young has
managed sales in many different environments ranging between large systems enterprise sales to the 'Fortune
500" and ODM and OEM sales in the consumer electronics market. He has over 25 years experience working for
companies [such as [BM, Storage Technology Corporation, Unilease Computer Corporation, Data General and
Hitachi Da‘ta Systems. He has worked in hardware and software sales, and he was President and CEO of a
computer and satellite leasing company. Mr. Young has a Bachelors of Arts Degree from Princeton University

and a Mastfrs Degree in Business Administration from The Stern School of Business at New York University.

Syed Zaidi has been Chief Operating Officer and has served as a Director since February 2007. From
January 2006 to February 2007 Mr. Zaidi was Vice President of Corporate Engineering and from May 2000 to
January 2006, Mr. Zaidi was Vice President of Santa Clara Engineering. Mr. Zaidi joined NeoMagic's
engineering team in June 1995 and worked in engineering management until his promotion to Vice President in
2000. Before joining NeoMagic, Mr. Zaidi worked at Sierra Semiconductor, where he was responsible of systems
engineering for multimedia products. He has also worked at Advanced Micro Research where he designed and
developed |UNIX based muiti-user systems, multiple video and graphic ASICs for multimedia products.
Mr. Zaidi holds a Bachelor of Electrical & Electronics Engineering from Leeds University, England and a BSET
from lndiar%a State University.

Deepraj Puar, a co-founder of the Company, currently serves as the Company's Vice President of
Operalions.I Since the Company's inception in 1993, Mr. Puar has served in a variety of roles, including Vice
President of Technology. Mr. Puar has over 35 years of engineering and management experience in the
semiconductor industry, primarily in the area of memory design and logic integration technology. Mr. Puar
authored al) of the Company's key patents covering embedded DRAM technology. Prior to co-founding the
Company in 1993, Mr. Puar was employed by Cirrus Logic, Signetics/Philips and Texas Instruments. Mr. Puar
holds a B.TECH degree from the Indian Institute of Technology, Kanpur and a MSEE degree from Michigan
State University.

H. Robert Newman has been Chief Financial Officer (acting) of NeoMagic since March 2007. Before
assuming the interim position of Chief Financial Officer, he was NeoMagic’s Corporate Controller since
November |2004. Before becoming Corporate Controlter, Mr. Newman was NeoMagic's Senior Finance
Manager, from June 2000, when he joined NeoMagic. Before joining NeoMagic, Mr. Newman was Corporate
Accounting Manager at Conner Technology, a disk drive manufacturer. Before joining Conner Technology,
Mr. Newman held various financial positions at Toshiba America Electronic Components, Inc., a semiconductor
manufacturpr. Mr. Newman previously worked as an auditor at the accounting firm of Deloitte and Touche. He
has a bachdlor’s degree in Accountancy from the University of Notre Dame, where he gradvated cum laude, and
a Masters Degree in Business Administration from Santa Clara University. He has passed the Certified Public
Accountant{ exam.

Available Information

We file our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K
pursuant to| Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 with the SEC electronically. The public may
read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE,
Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by
calling the|SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet siie that contains reports, proxy and
informatiorﬁ statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. The address
of that site is http:/fwww.sec.gov.

You may obtain a free copy of our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and
current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports on the day of filing with the SEC on our website
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on the World Wide Web at http://www.neomagic.com, by calling the Investor Relations Department at our

corporate offices at (408) 988-7020 or by sending an e-mail message to ir@neomagic.com.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS ‘
We Expect to Continue to Incur Significant Losses and Consume Cash in Operations ,'

We have been incurring substantial losses and consuming cash in operations as we invest heavily in new
product development in advance of achieving significant customer sales. This is expected to continue through
January 27, 2008. Our ability to achieve cash flow breakeven is likely to depend on the success of our MlMaglc
6+ and NeoMobileTV products. Even if these new products are successful, we are likely to incur s:gmficant
additional losses and consume cash in operations during the fiscal ending January 27, 2008.

We Need Additional Capital

Given the long cycle times required to achieve design wins, convert customer design wins into prodaction
orders, and for customers to achieve volume shipments of their products, we are likely to require additional
working capital 1o fund our business. We believe that our existing capital resources will be sufficient to meet our
capital requirements through at least the end of our fiscal year ending January 27, 2008. However, we expect we
will need to raise additional capital to fund future operating activities beyond lJanuary 27, 2008. Our future
capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the rate of net sales growth, iming and extEI:m of
spending to support research and development programs in new and existing areas of technology, expansion of
sales and marketing support activities, and timing and customer acceptance of new products. Qur ability to rajse
capital and the terms of any financing will depend, in part, on our ability to establish customer engagements and
generate sates. As discussed below, revenue performance is difficult to forecast. We cannot assure you that
additional equity or debt financing, if required, will be available on acceptable terms or at all. i

[

Potential Nasdagq Stock Market Delisting

On February 28, 2005, we received a notice from the Nasdaq Stock Market that we were no longer in
compliance with the requirements for continued inclusion of our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market
pursuant to the Nasdaq’s Marketplace Rule 4450(a)(5) (the “Rule™) because our common stock had closed below
$1.00 per share for 30 consecutive business days. We were given 180 calendar days, or until August 29, 2003, to
regain compliance with the Rule. To regain compliance with the Rule, the closing bid price of our common, stock
had to be $1.00 per share or more for a minimum of 10 consecutive business days before August 29, 2005. To
regain compliance with the Rule, we effected a five-for-one reverse stock split on August 12, 2005 that brought
the closing bid price of our common stock above $1.00. The closing bid price of our common stock has s:tayed
above $1.00 since the reverse stock split occurred. .

[

In December 2006, the Company sold stock and warrants in a registered direct financing. Although the
common stock has been accounted for as equity, under accounting rules as interpreted by the SEC, the warrants
must be accounted for as a liability on the Company’s balance sheet. See Note 10 of Notes to Comohdaled
Financial Statements. Based on the Company’s internal estimate of results of operations over the balance of
fiscal 2008, accounting for the warrants as a liability may cause the Company’s stockholders’ equity to drop
below that required for continued listing on the Nasdaq Global Market by the end of the second guarter of fiscal
2008. The Company is exploring possible alternatives to avoid the delisting of its commen stock from the
Nasdaq Global Market. |

If we fail to comply with the continued listing requirements of the Nasdaq Global Market, including the
minimum bid price per share requirement and the minimum stockholders equity requirement, we may be delisted
from trading on such market, and thereafier trading in our common stock, if any, would be conducted through the
Nasdaq Capital Market, the over-the-counter market or on the Electronic Bulletin Board of the National
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Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. There is no guarantee that an active trading market for our common stock
will be maintained on the Nasdaq Global Market. You may not be able to sell your shares quickly, at the market
price or at all if trading in our stock is not active.

Our Revenues Are Difficult To Predict

For a variety of reasons, our revenues are difficult to predict and may vary significantly from quarter to
quarter. Our ability to achieve design wins depends on a number of factors, many of which are cutside of our
control, irLcluding changes in the customer’s strategic and financial plans, competitive factors and overall market
condition$. As our experience demonstrates, design wins themselves do not always lead to production orders
because the customer may cancel or delay products for a variety of reasons. Such reasons may include the
performance of a particular product that may depend on components not supplied by NeoMagic, market
condition’g, reorganizations or other internal developments at the customer and changes in customer personnel or
strategy. Even when a customer has begun volume production of a product containing our chips, volumes are
difficult th forecast because there may be no history to provide a guide, and because market conditions and other
factors rﬂay cause changes in the customer’s plans. Because of the market uncertainties they face, many
customers place purchase orders on a short lead-time basis, rather than providing reliable long-term purchase
orders or purchase forecasts.

The | difficulty in forecasting revenues increases the difficulty in forecasting our working capital
requirements. It also increases the likelihood that we may overproduce particular parts, resulting in inventory
charges, or underproduce particular parts, affecting our ability to meet customer requirements. The difficulty in
forecasting revenues also restricts our ability to provide forward-looking revenue and earnings guidance to the
financial markets and increases the chance that our performance does not match forecasts.

We have a Limited Customer Base

In ezllch of the last three fiscal years, three customers have accounted for over two-thirds of our product
revenue. !n fiscal 2007, the top three customers accounted for 34%, 21%, and 12%, respectively, of product
revenue. In addition, one licensee accounted for 100% of our licensing revenue in fiscal 2006. There was no
licensing revenue in fiscal 2007 and 2005. We expect that a small number of customers will continue to account
for a substantial portion of our product revenue for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the majority of our sales
were histl)rically made, and are expected to continue to be made, on the basis of purchase orders rather than
pursuant lto long-term purchase agreements. As a result, our business, financial condition and results of
operations could be materially adversely affected by the decision of a single customer to cease using our
products, or by a decline in the number of handheld devices sold by a single customer.

We May Lose Our Customer Base

Our ‘products are designed to afford the mobile phone and handheld device manufacturer significant
advantages with respect to product performance, power consumption and size. To the extent that other future
developments in components or subassemblies incorporate one or more of the advantages offered by our
products, the market demand for our products may be negatively impacted.

We FaTe Intense Competition in Our Markets

The market for Applications Processors is intensely competitive and is characterized by rapid technological
change, evolving industry standards and declining average selling prices. We believe that the principal factors of
competition in this market are video and 3D graphics performance, price, features, power consumption, size and
customer support. Our ability to compete successfully in the Applications Processor market depends on a number
of factors! including success in designing and subcontracting the manufacture of new products that implement
new technologies, product quality and reliability, price, ramp of preduction of our products, customer demand
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and acceptance of more sophisticated multimedia functionality on mobile phones and other handheld devices,
end-user acceptance of our customers’ products, market acceptance of competitors’ products and gerieral
economic conditions. Our ability to compete will also depend on our ability to identify and ensure compliance
with evolving industry standards and market trends.

We compete with both domestic and foreign companies, some of which have substantially greater financial
and other resources than us with which to pursue engineering, manufacturing, marketing and distribution of their
products. Our principal competitors include Texas Instruments, Renesas, ST Microelectronics and Broadcor as
well as a number of vertically integrated electronics firms that are developing their own solutions, such as C&S
technologies and Nexilion. We may also face increased competition from new entrants into the market, including
companies currently at developmental stages. We believe we have significant intellectual properties and have
historically demonstrated expertise in SOC technology. However, if we cannot timely introduce new products for
our market, support these products in customer programs, or manufacture these products, such inabilities could

have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.
I

Some of our current and potential competitors operate their own manufacturing facilities, Since we dc; not
operate our own manufacturing facility and may from time-to-time make binding commitments to purchase
products (binding purchase orders totaling $257,000 were outstanding as of January 28, 2007), we may not be
able to reduce our costs and cycle time or adjust our production to meet changing demand as rapidly as
companies that operate their own facilities, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations. In addition, if production levels increase the amount of binding purchase orders may incr‘éase

significantly. |

)
Uncertainty Regarding Future Licensing Revenue

In the third quarter of fiscal 2006, we collected gross licensing revenue of $8.5 million ($5.6 million net of
commissions and expenses) from the nonexclusive licensing of all of our patents to Sony Corporation of To}(yo,
Japan. We cannot assure you that we will be able to generate any future licensing revenue from our 2% patents or
from any future patents that we will own or have the right to license. The licensing agreement with Sony may be
the only licensing agreement that we ever complete. Furthermore, if we should in the future complete an
agreement to license our patents, we cannot assure you that the licensing revenue we receive from such licénse
will equal or exceed the licensing revenue we received from Sony.

We Depend on Qualified Personnel ‘

Our future success depends in part on the continued service of our key engineering, sales, marketing,
manufacturing, finance and executive personnel, and our ability to identify, hire and retain additional perso:nnel
to serve potential customers in our targeted markets. There is strong competition for qualified personnel in the
semiconductor industry, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to continue to attract and retain qualified
personnel necessary for the development of our business. We have experienced the loss of personnel both
through headcount reductions and attrition. In the past two years we have lost some of our execu:tive
management, including Jeffery Blanc (Vice President, Worldwide Sales) and Scott Sullinger (CFQ). We are
currently conducting a search for a new CFO and Vice President of Worldwide Sales. !

All our executive officers are employees “at will”. We have an employment contract with Douglas R.
Young, our chief executive officer, that allows us to terminate his employment at any time but requires us to
make severance payments depending upon the circumstances surrounding his termination of employment. We do
not maintain key person insurance on any of our personnel. If we are not able to maintain key personnel, if our
headcount is not appropriate for our future direction, or if we fail to recruit key personnel critical to our future
direction in a timely manner, this may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition'and
results of operations. |
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In addition, our future success will depend in part on our ability to identify and retain qualified individuals
to serve bn our board of directors. We believe that maintaining a board of directors comprised of qualified
members [is critical given the current status of our business and operations. Moreover, SEC and Nasdaq Global
Market rules require that three independent board members serve on our audit committee. Any inability on our
part to identify and retain qualified board members could have a material adverse effect on our business or could
lead to th delisting of our securities from the Nasdaq Global Market.

Our Products May be Incompatible with Evolving Industry Standards and Market Trends

Our ability to compete in the future will also depend on our ability to identify and ensure compliance with
evolving industry standards and market trends. Unanticipated changes in market trends and industry standards
could render our products incompatible with products developed by major hardware manufacturers and software
developers. As a result, we could be required to invest significant time and resources to redesign our products or
obtain license rights to technologies owned by third parties to comply with relevant industry standards and
market trends. We cannot assure you that we will be able to redesign our products or obtain the necessary third-
party licenses within the appropriate window of market demand. If our products are not in compliance with
prevailing market trends and industry standards for a significant period of time, we could miss crucial OEM and
ODM design cycles, which could result in a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

We Depend on New Product Development to Meet Rapid Market and Technological Change

NeoMagic is focused on providing high- -performance semiconductor solutions for sale to manufacturers of
mobile plllones and handheld devices. New product planning is focused on integrated SOC semiconductor
products for handheld devices that integrate multimedia technologies such as H.264 video compression, 3D
graphics dnd audio technologies. Our future business, financial condition and results of operations will depend to
a significant extent on our ability to develop new products that address these market opportunities. As a result,
we believé that we will need to continue to spend significantly for research and development in the future.

We must anticipate the features and functionality that consumers and infrastructure providers will demand,
mcorpomte those features and functionality into products that meet the exacting design requirements of
equ1pment manufacturers, price our products competitively and introduce new products to the market on a timely
basis. The success of new product introductions is dependent on several factors, including proper new product
definition] timely completion and introduction of new product designs, the ability to create or acquire intellectual
property, lhe ability of manufacturing partners to effectively manufacture new products, quality of new products,
differentiation of new products from those of our competitors and market acceptance of our products and the
products of our customers. We cannot assure you that the products we expect (o introduce will incorporate the
features and functionality demanded by mobile phone and handheld device manufacturers and consumers, will be
successfully developed, or will be introduced within the appropriate window of market demand. We cannot
assure you that customers who use our semiconductor products will achieve the levels of market success with
their own Iproducts that they may project to us.

We regularly incur costs to license or acquire technology from third parties. There is no guarantee of
realizing the anticipated value of such expenditures due to changes in other available technologies or market
demand. To the extent that we rely on licenses from third parties, there can be no assurance that we will continue
to obtain z{ll of the licenses we desire on the terms we consider reasonable or at all.

Because of the complexity of our products, we often have expetienced delays in completing development
and introduction of new products. If there are delays in production of current products, or in the completion of
developmém of future products, including the products currently under development for introduction over the
next 12 tb 18 months, our potential future business, financial condition, and results of operations will be
materially|adversely affected. In addition, the time required for competitors to develop and introduce competing
products may be shorter, their manufacturing yields may be better, and their production costs may be lower than
those experienced by us.
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We Depend on Third-Party Manufacturers to Produce Our Products

|

Our products require wafers manufactured with state-of-the-art fabrication equipment and techniques. We
currently use one third-party foundry for wafer fabrication. We expect that, for the foreseeable future, all of our
products will be manufactured at Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation on a purchase order by
purchase order basis. Since, in our experience, the lead time needed to establish a relationship with a new wafer
fabrication partner is at least 12 months, and the estimated time for a foundry to switch to a new product;line
ranges from four to nine months, we may have no readily available alternative source of supply for spet:lﬁc
products. In addition to time constraints, switching foundries would require a diversion of engineering manpower
and financial resources to redesign our products so that the new foundry could manufacture them. We cannot
assure you that we can redesign our products to be manunfactured by a new foundry in a timely manner, nor can
we assure you that we will not infringe on the intellectual property of our current wafer manufacturer Whel':l we
redesign our products for a new foundry. A manufacturing disruption experienced by our manufacturing partner,
the failure of our manufacturing partner to dedicate adequate resources to the production of our products, or the
financial instability of our manufacturing partner would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Furthermore, if the transition to the next generation of manufacturing
technologies by our manufacturing partner is unsuccessful, our business, financial condition and results of

operations would be materially and adversely affected. :
|

We have many other risks because we depend on a third-party manufacturer, including: reduced control
over delivery schedules, quality, manufacturing yields and cost; the potential lack of adequate capacity during
periods of excess demand,; limited warranties on wafers supplied to us; and potential misappropriation of our
intellectual property. We are dependent on our manufacturing partner to produce wafers wlith acceptable quality
and manufacturing yields, to deliver those wafers on a timely basis to our third party assembly subcontrat::tors
and to allocate a portion of their manufacturing capacity sufficient 1o meet our needs. Although our products are
designed using the process design rules of the particular manufacturer, we cannot assure you that| our
manufacturing partner will be able to achieve or maintain acceptable yields or deliver sufficient quantities of
wafers on a timely basis or at an acceptable cost. Additionally, we cannot assure you that our manufacturing
partner will continue to devote adequate resources to produce our products or continue to advance the process
design technologies on which the manufacturing of our products are based.

We Rely on Third-Party Subcontractors to Assemble and Test Our Products

Our products are assembled and tested by third-party subcontractors. We expect that, for the foreseeable
future, the vast majority of our products wiil be packaged and assembled at Amkor Technology on a purchase
order by purchase order basis. We do not have long-term agreements with any of these subcontractors. Such
assembly and testing is conducted on a purchase order basis. Because we rely on third-party subcontractors to
assemble and test our products, we cannot directly control product delivery schedules, which could lead to
product shortages or quality assurance problems that could increase the costs of manufacturing or assembly of
our products. Due to the amount of time normally required to qualify assembly and test subcontractors, product
shipments could be delayed significantly if we were required to find alternative subcontractors. Any problems
associated with the delivery, quality or cost of the assembly and test of our products could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. !

We May Encounter Inventory Excess or Shortage |

To have product inventory to meet potential customer purchase orders, we place purchase orders for wafers
from our manufacturer in advance of having firm purchase orders from our customers. We had binding orders for
wafers totaling $257,000 outstanding as of Januvary 28, 2007. If we do not have sufficient demand for our
products and cannot cancel our current and future commitments without material impact, we may expeﬁFnce
excess inventory, which will result in a write-off affecting gross margin and results of operations. If we cancel a
purchase order, we must pay cancellation penalties based on the status of work in process or the proximity of the
cancellation to the delivery date. We must place purchase orders for wafers before we receive purchase orders
from our own customers. This limits our ability to react to fluctuations in demand for our products, which can be
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unexpected and dramatic, and from time-to-time will cause us to have an excess or shortage of wafers for a
particular product. As a result of the long lead-time for manufacturing wafers and the increase in “just in time”
ordering by customers, semiconductor companies from time-to-time take charges for excess inventory. We did in
fact incur $uch charges in fiscal 2007 of $12,000, in fiscal 2006 of $0.2 million and in fiscal 2005 of $0.4 million.
Significant write-offs of excess inventory have had and could continue to have a malterial adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations. Conversely, failure to order sufficient wafers would cause us to
miss revenue opportunities and, if significant, could impact sales by our customers, which could adversely affect
our customer relationships and thereby materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations|

Our Manufacturing Yields May Fluctuate

Fabricating semiconductors is an extremely complex process, which typically includes hundreds of process
steps. Mi1 lite levels of contaminants in the manufacturing environment, defects in masks used to print circuits on
a wafer, variation in equipment used and numerous other factors can cause a substantial percentage of wafers to
be rejected or a significant number of die on each wafer to be nonfunctional. Many of these problems are difficukt
to diagnose and time consuming or expensive to remedy. As a result, semiconductor companies often experience
problems in achieving acceptable wafer manufacturing yields, which are represented by the number of good die
as a proportion of the total number of die on any particular wafer. We typically purchase wafers, not die, and pay
an agreed upon price for wafers meeting certain acceptance criteria. Accordingly, we bear the risk of the yield of
good die from wafers purchased meeting the acceptance criteria.

Semitonductor manufacturing yields are a function of both product design, which is developed largely by
us, and pr!)cess technology, which is typically proprietary to the manufacturer. Historicaily, we have experienced
lower yields on new products. Since low yields may result from either design or process technology failures,
yield problems may not be effectively determined or resolved until an actual product exists that can be analyzed
and tested!| to identify process sensitivities relating to the design rules that are used. As a result, yield problems
may not be identified until well into the production process, and resolution of yield problems would require
cooperation and communication between the manufacturer and us. This nsk is compounded by the offshore
location (Jf our manufacturers, increasing the effort and time required to identify, communicate and resolve
manufacturing yield problems. As our relationships with new manufacturing partners develop, yields could be
adversely {affected due to difficulties associated with adapting our technology and product design to the
proprietary process technology and design rules of each manufacturer. Any significant decrease in manufacturing
yields could result in an increase in our per unit product cost and could force us to allocate our available product
supply among our customers, potentially adversely impacting customer relationships as well as revenues and
gross margins. We cannot assure you that our manufacturers will achieve or maintain acceptable manufacturing
yields in tﬁe future.

Uncertainty and Litigation Risk Associated with Patents and Protection of Proprietary Rights

We rely in part on patents to protect our intellectual property. As of January 28, 2007, we had been issued
28 patentsl. These 28 issued patents are scheduled to expire between June 2014 and November 2024. In June
2006. we sold 4 patents to Samsung Electronics Co. Ltd. for net proceeds of $1.0 million. In April 2005, we sold
58 patents to Faust Communications, LLC for net proceeds of $3.5 million. The patents sold related to products
we no longer sell and not to products that we currently seli or plan to sell. We retained a worldwide,
non-exclusive license under the patents sold. The sales did not include several of our important patents covering
embedded DRAM technology nor any of the unique array processing technology used in our MiMagic 6+ and
NeoMobileTV products. Additionally, we have several patent applications pending. We cannot assure you that
our pending patent applications, or any future applications, will be approved. Further, we cannot assure you that
any issuet patents will provide us with significant intellectual property protection, competitive advantages, or
will not bJ challenged by third parties, or that the patents of others will not have an adverse effect on our ability
to do business. In addition, we cannot assure you that others will not independently develop similar products,
duplicate pur products or design around any patents that may be issued to us.
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We also rely on a combination of mask work protection, trademarks, copyrights, trade secret laws, employee
and third-party nondisclosure agreements and licensing arrangements to protect our intellectual property. Déspite
these efforts, we cannot assure you that others will not independently develop substantially equivalent
intellectual property or otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or intellectual property, disclose such
intellectual property or trade secrets, or that we can meaningfully protect our intetlectual property. Our faihire to
meaningfully protect our intellectual property could have a material adverse effect on our business, ﬁnal:ncial
condition and results of operations.

As a general matter, the semiconductor industry has experienced substantial litigation regarding patent and
other intellectual property rights. In December 1998, the Company filed a lawsuit in the United States District
Court for the District of Delaware seeking damages and an injunction against Trident Microsystems, Inc. The suit
alleged that Trident’s embedded DRAM graphics accelerators infringed certain patents held by the Company. In
January 1999, Trident filed a counter claim against the Company alleging an attempted monopolization in
violation of antitrust laws, arising from NeoMagic’s filing of the patent infringement action against Trident! The
Court ruled that there was no infringement by Trident. The Company filed an appeal in the United States Court
of Appeals, for the Federal Circuit. On April 17, 2002, the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit
affirmed the lower court’s judgment of non-infringement on one patent and vacated the court’s judgment of
non-infringement on another patent, thereby remanding it to the lower court for further proceedings. In
November 2002, the lower court heard oral arguments on cross-motions for summary judgment on the matter. In
May 2003, the lower court ruled in favor of Trident. In December 2003, the Company filed an appeal ih the
United States Court of Appeals, for the Federal Circuit. In August 2004, the Federal Circuit rejected the appeal
and affirmed the lower court’s decision of no infringement by the Trident products. On September 2, 2005 the
United States District Court for the District of Delaware approved the Trident request that its countercélaim

against NeoMagic filed in January 1999 be dismissed without prejudice. |
|

Any patent litigation, whether or not determined in our favor or settled by us, would at a minimum be costly
and could divert the efforts and attention of our management and technical personnel from productive tasks,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We
cannot assure you that current or future infringement claims by third parties or claims for indemnification by
customers or end users of our products resulting from infringement claims will not be asserted in the future or
that such assertions, if proven to be true, will not materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations. If any adverse ruling in any such matter occurs, we could be required to pay substantial
damages, which could include treble damages, to cease the manufacturing, use and sale of infringing produc:ts, 10
discontinue the use of certain processes, or to obtain a license under the intellectual property rights of the third
party claiming infringement. We cannot assure you, however, that a license would be available on reasoﬂlable
terms or at all. Any limitations in our ability to market our products, or delays and costs associated ;with
redesigning our products or payments of license fees to third parties, or any failure by us to develop or license a
substitute technology on commercially reasonable terms could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. *
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We Depend on Foreign Sales and Suppliers

|

Export sales have been a critical part of our business. Sales to customers located outside the United States
(including sales to the foreign operations of customers with headquarters in the United States and foreign
manufacturers that sell to United States-based OEMs) accounted for 77%, 60% and 919% of our product revenue
for fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. We expect that product revenue derived from foreign sales will
continue to represent a significant portion of our total product revenue. Letters of credit issued by customers have
supported a portion of our foreign sales. To date, our foreign sales have been denominated in United States
dollars. Increases in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the local currency of our customers could make our
products relatively more expensive than competitors’ products sold in the customer’s local currency.
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Foreign manufacturers have produced, and are expected to continue to produce for the foreseeable future, all
of our wafers. In addition, many of the assembly and test services we use are procured from foreign sources.
Wafers are priced in U.S. dollars under our purchase orders with our manufacturing suppliers.

Foreign sales and manufacturing operations are subject to a variety of risks, including fluctuations in
currency exchange rates, tariffs, import restrictions and other trade barriers, unexpected changes in regulatory
requirements, longer accounts receivable payment cycles, potentially adverse tax consequences and export
license requirements. In addition, we are subject 1o the risks inherent in conducting business internationally
including |foreign government regulation, political and economic instability, and unexpected changes in
diplomatic; and trade relationships. Moreover, the laws of certain foreign countries in which our products may be
developed! manufactured or sold, may not protect our intellectual property rights to the same extent as do the
laws of the United States, thus increasing the possibility of piracy of our products and intellectual property. We
cannot assure you that one or more of these risks will not have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our Financial Results Could Be Affected by Changes in Accounting Principles

Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States are subject to issuance and interpretation by
the Financjal Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
SEC, and various bodies formed to promulgate and interpret appropriate accounting principles. A change in these
principles or interpretations could have a significant effect on our reported financial results, and could affect the
reporting of transactions completed before the announcement of a change. For example, in December 2004,
FASB issuled SFAS 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” which replaces SFAS 123 and supersedes APB 25. As
required, we adopted SFAS 123(R} in our first quarter of fiscal 2007. SFAS 123(R) requires that compensation
costs relating 1o share-based payment transactions be recognized in the financial statements. The pro forma
disclosure |previcously permitted under SFAS 123 is no longer an acceptable alternative to recognition of expense
in the financial statements. The adoption of SFAS 123(R) increased the amount of loss that we reported for fiscal
2007.

Our Stock Price May Be Volatile

The market price of our Common Stock, like that of other semiconductor companies, has been and is likely
to continue to be, highly volatile. The market has from time to time experienced significant price and volume
fluctuation:s that may be unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. The market price of our
Common Stock could be subject to significant fluctuations in response to various factors, including sales of our
common stock, quarter-to-quarter variations in our anticipated or actual operating results, announcements of new
products, technological innovations or setbacks by us or our competitors, general conditions in the semiconductor
industry, unanticipated shifts in the markets for mobile phones and other handheld devices or changes in industry
standards, [losses of key customers, litigation commencement or developments, the impact of our financing
activities, including dilution to shareholders, changes in or the failure by us to meet estimates of our performance
by securities analysts, market conditions for high technology stocks in general, and other events or factors. In
future quarters, our operating results may be below the expectations of public market analysts or investors.

Item 1B, [UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

Item 2. [PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters, which is also our principal administrative, selling and marketing, customer
service, applications engineering and product development facility, is located in Santa Clara, California and
consists of lapproximately 45,000 square feet under a lease that will expire on April 30, 2010. We also lease 7,500
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square feet for research and development office space in Israel under an operating lease that expires in September
2007 and 16,000 square feet for research and development office space in India under an operating lease! that
expires in December 2008. On February 1, 2005, we entered into a sublease agreement to sub-lease 10,000
square feet in our Santa Clara facility for a two-year period starting on March 15, 2005. On December 15, 2006,
we amended this sublease agreement to extend the term for nineteen months and 15 days, changing the sublease
termination date from March 15, 2007 to October 31, 2008. We believe our existing facilities are adequate and
suitable for our current and near-term needs. We are not fully using our properties and thus have enough capacity
to add people if the need arises.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS |

None.

Itemd4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS |

None.




PART I1

™~
Itr/ '\MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
.

The Jompany’s common stock trades on the Nasdagq Global Market under the symbol “NMGC”. The high
and low closing sales prices set forth below are as reported on the Nasdaq Global Market (formerly known as the

Nasdag National Market).
Quarterly|Data
Fiscal 2007 1= 20d 3nd 4
Price range common stock:
oW Lo $438 $246 $247 $ 3.66
High | .o e $7.95 $5.16 $420 § 6.56
Fiscal 2006
Price range common stock:
Low b e e $230 S$1.80 $1.89 3% 3.60
3 (1 o $4.45 3305 $496 $10.23

We had 209 stockholders of record as of March 23, 2007. We have not paid any dividends on our commen
stock.

Dividends

NeoMagic has never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain all
available funds and any future earnings to fund the development and growth of our business and do not anticipate
declaring gr paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

Company Stock Price Performance

The information contained in this section shall not be deemed “filed” with the SEC, nor shall it be deemed
“soliciting [material.” It shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any other SEC filings.

The fpllowing graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return of the Company’s Common Stock
with The F\Iasdaq Composite Index (U.S.} and The Nasdaq Electronic Components Index. The comparison
assumes the investment of $100 on January 27, 2002. The comparisons in the graph are required by the Securities
and Exchange Commission and are not intended to forecast or be indicative of possible future performance of the
Company’s Common Stock.
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COMPARISON OF 5§ YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG NEOMAGIC CORPORATION, THE NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX
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Information as of January 28, 2007 regarding equity compensation plans is summarized in the following:

(C)
(A) (B) Number of Shares Remaining
Number of Shares to be Weighted Average Available for Future Isjuance
Issued Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Under Equity Compe?ation

Quistanding Options,  Outstanding Options, Plans (Excluding Shares
Plan Category Warrants and Rights ~ Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column A)
Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders .......... ... ..., 1,170,982 5.80 577,665 (1
Equity compensation plans not approved
by stockholders . ............... ... 1,085,591 7.73 77,396 (2
Total ... .o, 2,256,573 6.73 655,061

(1) Includes 286,024 shares available for future issuance under our 2003 Stock Option Plan, as amended,
generally used for grants to officers and directors. Also includes 291,641 shares available under our|2006
Employee Stock Purchase Plan. {

{2) Shares available under our 1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan are used for grants to employees other than
officers and directors except as provided within the plan. For a description of the 1998 Plan, see Note¢ 4 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part II of this Form 10-K, which informatjon is
incorporated by reference into this Item 5 of Part II of this Form 10-K. This plan was not previously
required to be approved by stockholders. Due to regulatory changes, going forward, all material changes to |
the plan require stockholder approval.




Item 6. |SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The fpllowing selected financial data is qualified in its entirety by and should be read in conjunction with
the more detailed consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere herein.

Five Year, Summary

Fiscal Years ended

January 28, January 29, January 30, January25, January 26,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands, except per share data)
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Product TEVENUE .. ... ... $ 572 $ 862 $ 2466 $ 1,888 $ 2,189
Licensingrevenue ............coovuivnvrnnernnnnns —_ 8,490 — — —
Totalrevenue ..........oovirenii 572 9,352 2,466 1,888 2,189
Cost of prcx?ucl TEVEMUE . ..ot e et e iiie e iiae ey 524 884 3.195 2,262 3,000
Cost of licensingrevenue ... ..................... — 2,861 — — —
Impairmentof certain acquired and licensed intangible
iR 771 1S — — 89 — 491
Total costofrevenue ... ... ... iuirivrnrnrans 524 3,745 3.284 2,262 3,491
Gross proﬁtt(loss) .............................. 48 5,607 (818) (374) {1,302)
Operating expenses:
Researth and development ............ ... ... 13,763 12,403 18,208 19,694 24,715
Sales, éeneral and administrative ... ......... 6,080 6,916 7,447 7.236 10,383
Gainonsaleof patents ...................... {1,044) (3,481) — —_ —
Specialcharge ..................... ..., — — — — 3,600
Impuirllncnl of certain acquired and licensed
intangible assets .. ... ... ...l — — 1.437 — 552
T?tal operating expenses . ................ 18,799 15,838 27.092 26,930 39,250
Loss from operations . .............. ... ...l (18,751) (10,231) (27.910) (27,304) (40,552)
Income, net'of expenses, from the sale of DVD
BSSEES f ottt — — — — 1,580
Interest income and other .................... 915 724 415 854 1,816
Interest EXPENSE .+ v vttt e e e (381) (2,569) (534) (282) (75)
Changef in fair value on revaluation of warrant
liability .. ... 1,835 — — — —
Loss before income taxes and cumulative effect of
change in|acc0unting principle .................. (16,382) (12,076) (28,02%9) (26,732) (37.231)
Income tax ?rovision (benefit) ...........iial., 137 2,770 196 43 {6,294)
Net loss before cumulative effect of change in
accounlin%g principle ... ... ... il (16,519) (9,306) (28,225) (26,775) {30,937)
Cumulative Effect of change in accounting principle ... — — — — (4,175)
Netloss ..l . i i ie et (16,5197 § (9,306)  $(28,225)  3(26,775)  $(35.112)
Basic and diluted net loss per share before cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle (1) ........ $ (169 § (132 3 (433 % 4371y % (536)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . .. — - — — (0.72)
Basic and diluted net loss per share (1) .............. $ (165 § (132) § 433 % 437y § (6.08)
Weighted common shares outstanding (1) ........... 10,015 7.074 6,524 6,130 5,774
Weighted common shates outstanding assuming
dilution (L) ....... ... ... . 10,015 7,074 6,524 6,130 5,774
2607 2006 2005 2004 2003
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents . ....................... $ 16,468 $ 26,695 5 8,944 $ 12,342 $ 37428
Short-term investmentS .. ......ovvtvenerereverans 4,014 _ 16,082 30.240 29,657
Working caﬁital ................................ 13,402 22,068 18.526 35,807 59,608
Total assets | ................................... 24,090 30,494 30,714 50,861 80,948
Long-term opligations ........................... 803 773 5,074 799 2,521
Total stockhtl)lders' EQUILY . o v s 14,677 24,114 17,960 41,827 67,887

(1) See NJ)te 1 and Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item 7, MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

When used in this discussion, the words "expects,” "anticipates," "believes” and similar expressiony are
intended to dentify forward-looking statements. Such statements reflect management's current imemionJ and
expectations. However, actual events and results could vary significantly based on a variety of factors including,
but not timited to: customer acceptance of new NeoMagic products, the market acceptance of handheld devices
developed and marketed by customers that use our products, our ability to execute product and technology
development plans on schedule, and our ability to access advanced manufacturing technologies in sufficient
capacity without significant cash pre-payments or investment. Examples of forward-looking statements in¢lude
statements about our expected revenues, our competitive advantage in our markets, the potential market for our
products, our expected production timelines, our customer base and our need for additional financing beyond the
next 12 months. These statements are subject to significant risks and uncertainties, including those set [forth
below under Item 1A of Part I of this Form 10-K, that could cause actual results to differ materially from fhose
projected. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date hereof. We expressly disclaim any
obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements
contained herein, to reflect any changes in our expectations with regard thereto or any changes in events,
conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.

NOTE: For a more complete understanding of our financial condition and results of operations, and some of
the risks that could affect future results, see Item 1A of Part [ of this Form 10-K. This section should also be read
in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes.

Overview

We deliver semiconductor chips and software that provide solutions to enable new multimedia applications
for handheld devices. Our solutions offer low power consumption, small form-factor and high performance
processing. As part of our complete system solution, we deliver a suite of middleware and sample applications
for imaging, video and audio functionality, and we provide multiple operating system ports with customized
drivers for our products. Our product portfolio includes semiconductor solutions known as Applications
Processors as well as other System-On-Chips (SOCs). Our Applications Processors are sold under the
“MiMagic” brand name with a focus on enabling high performance multimedia within a low power consuniption
environment. In mobile phones, our Applications Processors are designed to work side-by-side with basé¢band
processors that are used for communications functionality. OQur SOC product dedicated for the mobile digital TV
market is marketed under the “NeoMobileTV™ brand name. Target customers for both our MiMagic produgt and
our NeoMobileTV product include manufacturers of mobile phones and handheld devices. The largest projected
market opportunity for our products is in the mobile phone market, where cur products enable multinedia
functionality.

Since April 2002, we have been working with The Consortium for Technology Licensing Ltd. to explore
opportunities to license or sell our patents. During the second quarter of fiscal 2007 and the first quarter ofifiscal
2006, we generated a $1.0 million and $3.5 million gain, respectively, from the sale of patents that related to
legacy products that NeoMagic no longer sells. During the third quarter of fiscal 2006, we announced a patent
licensing transaction with Sony Corporation where Sony paid us $8.5 million for a non-exclusive license to|all of
our pateats. In the patent licensing transaction with Sony, we only provided Sony with a license to our patents.
We did not provide Sony with any intellectual “know-how” or other confidential information that could help
Sony develop products that could be competitive with NeoMagic’s products. As of April 28, 2007, we wgre in
discussions with multiple companies that we believe have infringed on our embedded DRAM patentd. The
objective of our patent licensing business is to enter into patent licensing agreements with companies that have
infringed or are expected to infringe on our patents. In addition, we may decide to license or sell gertain
additional patents in the future. Licensing revenue was $8.5 million in fiscal 2006 representing 91% of our total
revenue, There was no licensing revenue in fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2005,
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Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in Janvary. Fiscal 2007 consisted of 52 weeks and ended on
January 28, 2007. Fiscal 2006 consisted of 52 weeks and ended on January 29, 2006. Fiscal 2005 consisted of 53
weeks and ended on January 30, 2005.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

NeoMagic's discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based upon its
consolidatled financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and
judgmentsl that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. On an on going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to
intangible {assets and long-lived assets, revenue recognition, inventories and income taxes. We base our estimates
on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the amount and timing of revenue
and expen:ses and the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ materially from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Fair Value of Equity Instruments

The valuation of certain items, including valuation of warrants and compensation expense related to stock
options granted, involves significant estimates with underlying assumptions judgmentally determined. The
valuation of warrants and stock options are based wpon a Black-Scholes valuation model, which requires
estimates ?f stock volatility and other assumptions. Even if the estimates are accurate, the model may not provide
the true fair value,

Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” we
evaluate the carrying value of our long-lived assets, consisting primarily of property, plant and equipment, in the
fourth quarter of each fiscal year, and whenever certain events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. Such events or circumstances include, but are not
limited to, a significant decline in the market value of the assets, significant reductions in projected future cash
flows or gross margins, or macroeconomic factors, including a prolonged economic downturn. In assessing the
recoverability of long-lived assets, we compare the carrying value to the undiscounted future cash flows the
assets are expected to generate. If the total of the undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount
of the assets, we will be required to write down such assets based on the excess of the carrying amount over the
fair value of the assets. Fair value is generally determined by calculating the discounted future cash flows using a
discount rate based upon the weighted average cost of capital. Significant judgments and assumptions are
required in the forecast of future operating results used in the preparation of the estimated future cash flows,
including Igros:; profit margins, long-term forecasts of the amount and timing of overall market growth and our
percentage of that market, groupings of assets, discount rates and terminal growth rates. In addition, significant
estimates and assumptions are required in the determination of the fair value of our tangible long-lived assets,
including replacement cost, economic obsolescence, and the value that could be realized in liquidation. Changes
in these estimates could have a material adverse effect on the assessment of our long-lived assets, thereby
requiring us to write down or write off long-lived assets.

We continue 1o periodically evaluate our long-lived assets for impairment in accordance with SFAS 144 and
acknowledge it is possible that such evaluation might result in future adjustments for impairment. Such an
impairment might adversely affect our operating results.

Revenue Recognition

We derive our revenue from two principal sources: product sales and license fees for patents.
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We recognize revenue from non-distributor product sales when the products are shipped to the custamer,
title has transferred, and no obligations remain. In addition, we require the following criteria to be met before
recognizing revenue: (i) execution of a written customer order, (i) shipment of the product, (iii) fee is fixed or
determinable, and (iv) collectibility of the proceeds is probable. Our shipment terms are FOB shipping point.

For products shipped to distributors, we defer recognition of product revenue until the distributors sell our
products to their customers. On occasion, however, we may sell products with “end of life” status tg our
distributors under special arrangements without any price protection or return privileges, for which we recognize
revenue upon transfer of title, typically upon shipment,

At the end of each accounting period, we determine certain factors, including sales returns and allowances,
that could affect the amount of revenue recorded for the period. Sales returns provisions include considerations
for known but unprocessed sales returns and estimates for unknown returns based on our historical experiences.

We recognize non-refundable fees for licensing our patents in the period when all of the following
conditions are met: (i) we enter into a licensing agreement with a licensee that has been executed by both parties,
(i) delivery has occurred and we have no further obligations regarding the licensing agreement, (iii) the fee is
fixed and determinable, and (iv) collectibility of the proceeds is probable.

Inventory Valuation

Qur inventory valuation policy stipulates that at the end of each reporting period we write down or write off
our inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventory. The amount of the write-down or wrill:—off
is equal to the difference between the cost of the inventory and the estimated market value of the inventory hased
upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual market condittons are less favorable|than
those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs or write-offs muy be required. Additionally, as
we introduce product enhancements and new products, demand for our existing products in inventory [may
decrease, requiring additional inventory write-downs.

Deferred Taxes and Tax Accruals

We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely thap not
to be realized. Based on the uncertainty of future pre-tax income, we have fully reserved our deferred tax agsets.
If we determine that we would be able to realize some or all of our deferred tax assets in the future, an
adjustment to the deferred tax assets would increase income in the period when such determination was made.

We have also provided accruals for certain tax liabilities based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to
which, additional taxes will be due. If payment of these amounts ultimately proves to be unnecessary, or less|than
currently assessed, the resulting reversal of such accruals would result in tax benefits being recorded in the period
when the accruals are no longer deemed necessary. Conversely, if our estimate of tax liabilities is more than the
amount ultimately assessed, further charges would result.

Results of Operations
Product Revenue

Product revenue was $0.6 million, $0.9 million and $2.5 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The decrease in product revenue in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 is due to decreased shipments 0# our
MiMagic 3 and MiMagic 5 applications processors, partiaily offset by increased shipments of our MiMagic 6+
applications processor. The large decrease in product revenue in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 is due to
decreased shipments of our MiMagic 3 applications processor. We expect that the percentage of our net sales
represented by any one product or type of product may change significantly from period to period when| new
products are introduced and existing products reach the end of their product life cycles.
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Sales to customers located outside the United States (including sales to the foreign operations of customers
with headquarters in the United States, and foreign manufacturers that sell to United States-based OEMs)
accounted for 77%, 60% and 91% of product revenue in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. We expect that
export sa}es will continue to represent a significant portien of product revenue. All sales transactions were
denominated in United States dollars. The following is a summary of our product revenue by major geographic
area:

January 28, January 29,  January 30,

Year Ended 2007 2006 2005
Japan . o 0% 5% 12%
TaiwI 13 33% 26% 47%
HongKong .. ... 0% 0% 25%
KOTCA . . o oot 15% 0% 0%
Singlapore ......................................... 13% 4% 0%
URIed STALES « e et 23% 40% 9%
BOZIANA « . .o oo et 13% 15% 7%
SWEUEI ..\t e oot 3% 10% 0%

The following customers accounted for more than 10% of product revenue:

January 28, January 29, January 30,

Mﬂ_e_d 2007 2006 2005
Edot%q Technology Co.** ... .. ... ... . it 34% 21% 33%
ExadigmInc. ... i e * 32% *
Prentier Microelectronics Europe LTD** ... ........... 12% 15% *
Silic%)n Media, Inc.** .. ... .. L * * 8%
ESS [Technology International, Inc. ..................... * * 26%
Prerr}ier Compoenents Distribution** . ................... 21% * *
Silic?n Alliance Int.** ... ... ... ... .. . e * * 13%

|
*  represents less than 10% of product revenue
**  custgmer is a distributor

Licensing Revenue

On September 1, 2005, we granted Sony Corporation of Tokyo, Japan a worldwide, non-exclusive license to
all of our patents. In accordance with the agreement, we received revenue of $8.5 million. Among the patents that
were licensed to Sony Corperation are those that relate to the use of embedded dynamic random-access-memory
{DRAM) technology and on-chip memeries in semiconductor integrated circuits. Revenue from Sony accounted
for 100% |of our license revenue and 91% of our total revenue in fiscal 2006. There was no licensing revenue in
fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2005.

During the negotiations that led to the agreement with Sony, NeoMagic was represented by The Consortium
for Technlology Licensing, Ltd., of Nissequogue, New York (“The Consortium™). NeoMagic and The Consortium
continue {0 explore other opportunities to generate additional revenue from NeoMagic’s patents. However, we
cannot assure you that we will be successful in doing so.

Gross Profit (Loss)

Gross profit (loss) was $48 thousand, $5.6 million and $(0.8) million in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively, Cost of revenue includes stock-based compensation of $20,000 in fiscal 2007 and amortization of
deferred compensation of $8,000 in fiscal 2005. There was no amortization of deferred compensation in fiscal
2006. Decrease in gross profit from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007 is primarily due to the absence of any licensing
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revenue in fiscal 2007 and the higher margins attributable to license revenue, Fiscal 2007 gross profit was favorably
impacted by the sale of $37,000 of inventory previously written off, partially offset by charges to write-off excess
inventory in of $12,000. Gross profit for fiscal 2006 reflects licensing revenue of $8.5 million partially offset by the
cost of licensing revenue of $2.9 miltion, which includes legal and other expenses and a commission payment to the
Consortium of approximately $2.8 million. Gross profit on license revenues was 66.3% of license revenue in fiscal
2006, Overall gross profit for fiscal 2006 was unfavorably impacted by charges of $0.2 million to write-off eXcess
inventory primarily for our MiMagic 5 applications processor and favorably impacted by the sale of $0.1 miilion of
inventory previously written off. The negative margins in fiscal 2005 were largely due to the write-off of excess
MiMagic 3 inventory of approximately $0.4 million. In addition, fiscal 2005 gross loss included $0.1 millign of
amortization of licensed intellectual property as well as a $0.1 million impairment charge for licensed intellectual

property.

In the future, our gross margin percentages may be affected by the mix of product revenue and licensing
revenue, increased competition and related decline in unit average product selling prices (particularly with
respect to older generation products), changes in the mix of products sold, timing of volume shipments of |new
products, the availability and cost of products from our suppliers, inventory write-offs, and manufacturing yields
(particularly on new products).

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses include compensation and associated costs relating to research| and
development personnel, amortization of intangible assets and prototyping costs, which are comprised of photomask
costs and pre-production wafer costs. Research and development expenses were $13.8 million, $12.4 million{ and
$18.2 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively. These expenses include stock based compensatign of
$0.9 million, $0.3 miltion and $0.2 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. We have made, and intend to
continue to make, significant investments in research and development to remain competitive by developing new and
enhanced products to serve our identified markets. The increase in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006 of $1.4 millibn is
primarily related to increased stock-based compensation costs of $0.6 million as a result of the adoption of
SFAS 123(R) in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. In addition, the increase in fiscal 2007 is due to increased mask cogts of
$0.4 million, increased labor costs of $0.2 million and increased patent-related expenses of $0.2 million. The decfease
in fiscal 2006 from fiscal 2005 of $5.8 million is primarily related to lower labor costs of $2.5 million due to lpwer
headcount, decreased amortization of intellectual property of $1.0 million, decreased mask costs of $0.6 million, lbwer
software license and maintenance costs of $0.5 million, and lower allocated costs of $0.7 million primarily relatgd to
reduced headcount.

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses

Sales, general and administrative expenses were $6.1 million, $6.2 million, and $7.4 million in fiscal 2007, 2006,
and 2005, respectively. These expenses include stock-based compensation of $0.5 million, $0.2 million, and
$0.1 million in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. Sales, general and administrative expenses decreased in {iscal
2007 primarily due to decreased labor costs of $0.3 million due to reduced headcount, decreased professional service
costs of $0.4 million, decreased audit and tax costs of $0.2 million and decreased cost of boards used to demongstrate
NeoMagic products of $0.1 million partially offset by increased stock-based compensation costs of $0.3 million as a
result of the adoption of SFAS 123(R) in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. Sales, general and administrative expenses
decreased in fiscal 2006 primarily due to decreased labor costs of $0.7 million resulting from reduced headcount and
lower financial auditing costs partially offset by increased professional service costs of $0.6 million.

Gain on Sale of Patents

In the second quarter of fiscal 2007, NeoMagic completed the sale of four of our patents to Samsung
Electronics Co. Ltd. for net proceeds of approximately $1.0 million after payment of expenses related to the
negotiation of the patent purchase agreement. The Company has no ongoing obligations under the patent sale
agreement.
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In the first quarter of fiscal 2006, NeoMagic completed the sale of selected patents to Faust
Communications, LLC, a private company, for net proceeds of approximately $3.5 million after payment of
expenses of approximately $1.0 million. The Company has no ongoing obligations associated with the sale of
these patents.

There were no patent sales in fiscal 2005.

The patents sold in the second quarter of fiscal 2007 and the first quarter of fiscal 2006 relate to products no
longer sold by NeoMagic and not to products that NeoMagic currently sells or plans to sell. NeoMagic retains a
worldwide, non-exclusive license under the patents sold.

The sales do not include several of NeoMagic's important patents covering embedded DRAM technology or
any of the unique array processing technology used in NeoMagic’s MiMagic 6+ and NeoMobileTV products.
During the patent sales negotiations, NeoMagic was represented by The Consortium, a company whose CEO
served or:]Ethe board of NeoMagic until December 2004. On March 28, 2005, NeoMagic entered into an amended
and restaled Patent Licensing Agreement with the Consortium governing the relationship between the two
parties.

Impairment of Certain Acquired and Licensed Intangible Assets

In aceordance with SFAS 144, we assess the recoverability of our long-lived assets in the fourth quarter of
each fiscal year, and whenever there are indicators of impairment. We compare projected undiscounted net cash
flows assbciated with those assets against their respective carrying amounts to determine whether impairment
exists. Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of those assets.

During fiscal 2005, we determined that certain licensed inteliectual property was impaired and recorded an
impairment charge of $1.5 million, of which $0.1 million was charged to cost of sales. The impairment was
caused by a decline in the related sales forecasts of products associated with the licensed intellectual property.

Stock Compensation

Stock compensation expense was $1.5 millien, $0.5 million and $0.4 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2003,
respectively. Stock compensation expense recorded in cost of revenues, research and development expenses and
sales, general and administrative expenses for fiscal 2007 is the amortization of the fair value of share-based
payments|made to employees, members of our board of directors and other service providers in the form of stock
options and purchases under the employee stock purchase plan, as we adopted the provision of SFAS No. 123(R)
on the ﬁr%t day of fiscal 2007. The fair value of stock options granted and rights granted to purchase our common
stock under the employee stock purchase plan is recognized as expense over the employee requisite service
period.

We Iected to adopt the modified prospective method as provided by SFAS No. 123(R). Accordingly, for
fiscal 2007 we accounted for stock compensation under SFAS No. 123(R), while for fiscal 2006 and 20035, we
accounted for stock compensation under Accounting Principles Board (“APB’) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Isséled to Employees.” In fiscal 2006 and 2003, we recorded amortization of deferred stock compensation
of $0.5 million and $0.4 million, respectively, for deferred compensation recorded for the difference between the
fair value|of common stock at the date of grant and the option exercise price. Under SFAS No. 123(R), however,
we recor(%ed compensation expense for all share-based payments made to employees based on the fair value at
the date 0( the grant. Therefore, stock compensation for fiscal 2007 was not comparable to the prior-year periods.

Interest Income and Other

We eiam interest on our cash and short-term investments. Interest income and other was $0.9 million, $0.7 million
and $0.4 |million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006 and the
increase in fiscal 2006 from fiscal 2005 are primarily due to increased interest rates.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense was $0.4 million, $2.6 million, and $0.5 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The decrease in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006 is primarily due to interest expense recorded in fiscal
2006 related to our Mandatorily Redeemable Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. Interest expense recorded in

fiscal 2007 represents interest on our capital leases (See Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemd
and offering costs associated with our December 6, 2006 financing of $273,000 that were allocated to

nts)
the

warrants (See Note 10- Warrant Liability of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). The increase in fiscal

2006 is due to interest expense of $2.0 million for accretion related to our Mandatorily Redeemable Serig
Convertible Preferred Stock and interest expense recorded for the previously unrecognized debt discount u
the conversion of Mandatorily Redeemable Series B Preferred Stock in December 2005. In addition, we recof

s B
pon
ded

interest expense of $0.3 million for amortization of deferred financing costs related to our Mandatorily
Redeemable Series B Preferred Stock and for expensing the previously unrecognized deferred financing costs

upon the conversion our Mandatorily Redeemable Series B Preferred Stock in December 2005.

The total offering costs of $974,000 were allocated between the warrants and the common stock based on

their respective fair values, Offering costs of $273,000 were allocated to the warrants and reported as inte
expense in the statement of operations for fiscal 2007.

Change in Fair Value on Revaluation of Warrant Liability

rest

The company recorded a gain of $1.8 million in fiscal 2007 for the change in fair value on revaluation of its
warrant liability associated with its December 6, 2006 issuance of common stock and warrants. The changg in

fair value of the warrant liability is a non-cash charge determined by the difference in fair value from
December 6, 2006 issuance date to the year-end date of January 28, 2007. The fair value of the warrant liab
will be revalued each period with the resulting change reported in other income (expense). We calculate the

the
lity
fair

value of the warrants outstanding using the Black-Scholes model (See Note 10- Warrant Liability of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements).

Income Taxes

Not withstanding the pre-tax loss of $16.4 million in fiscal 2007, we recorded a tax provision of $137 thousand,
which consisted of foreign income taxes, accrued interest and penalties on state and foreign tax liabilities, and an
increase in tax reserves. Qur effective tax (benefit) rate was 0.84% in fiscal 2007, (22.94%) in fiscal 2006, and 0.7% in

fiscal 2005, In fiscal 2007, the tax rate differed from the statutory rate due primarily to an increase in our valug
allowance. Realization of our deferred tax assets, which have a full valuation allowance, depends on us generd
sufficient taxable income in future years to obtain benefit from the reversal of temporary differences and from
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Due to the uncertainty of the timing and amount of such realization,
management has concluded that a full valuation allowance is required as of January 28, 2007.

The earnings from foreign operations in India are currently tax exempt pursuant to a tax holiday effec
through 2008. The incentive provides for certain tax relief if certain conditions are met. We believe that
continued to be in compliance with these conditions at January 28, 2007.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments were $20.5 million, $26.7 million, and $25 millio
of the end of fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The decrease in cash, cash equivalents, and short-t
investments from January 29, 2006 to January 28, 2007 stems primarily from our operating loss, partially of

by the December 2006 sale and issuance of common stock shares and warrants for net proceeds of $10.5 mil]

and from the gain on the sale of patents of $1.0 million. The increase in cash, cash equivalents, and short-t
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investments from January 30, 2005 to January 29, 2006 stems primarily from the December 2005 sale and
issuance of common stock shares and warrants for net proceeds of $8.4 million. In addition, our operating loss
for fiscal 2006 was partially offset by net licensing revenue of $5.6 million and the gain on the sale of patents of
$3.5 millign.

Cashland cash equivalents used in operating activities was $16.7 million, $9.9 million and $22.3 million in
fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The cash used in operating activities in fiscal 2007 was primarily due to
the net loss of $16.5 million, the change in fair value on revaluation of warrant liability, the gain on the sale of
patents of $1.0 million, and increases in inventory of $0.9 million to build up MiMagic 6+ inventory in advance
of expect*d orders, partially offset by non-cash depreciation of $1.6 million and non-cash stock-based
compensatlion of $1.5 million. The cash used in operating activities in fiscal 2006 was primarily due to net loss of
$9.3 mllhon the gain on sale of patents of $3.5 million and decrease in income laxes payable of $2.8 million,
partially o ffset by non-cash depreciation, amortization and accretion of $3.7 million, and increases in accounts
payable and other liabilities of $0.8 million. The cash used in operating activities in fiscal 2005 was primarily
due to the [$28.2 million net loss, offset in part by non-cash depreciation and amortization of $4.0 million and an
impairment charge for certain licensed intellectual property of $1.5 million.

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities was $(3.0) million, $19.2 million and $14.0 in fiscal 2007,
2006 and 2003, respectively. Net cash used in investing activities in fiscal 2007 is primarily due to net purchases of
short-term investments of $4.0 million, partially offset by proceeds from the sale of patents of $1.0 million. Net cash
provided b'y investing activities in fiscal 2006 is primarily due to net maturities of short-term investments of
$16.1 million and proceeds from the sale of patents of $3.5 million. Net cash provided by investing activities in fiscal
2005 is primarily due to net maturities of shorl-term investments of $14.2 million. Continued operation of our business
may requine higher levels of capital equipment purchases, technology investments, foundry investments and other
payments to secure manufacturing capacity. The timing and amount of future investments will depend primarily on the
level of our future revenues.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $9.5 million, $8.5 miition and $4.8 million in fiscal 2007,
2006 and 2005 respectively. In December 2006, we closed the sale and issuance of 2,500,000 shares of our
comman slock and warrants to purchase 1,250,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $5.20 per
share for zlm aggregate offering price of $11.5 million. Net proceeds after deducting transaction costs were
$10.5 million, The issuance and sale of the shares and warrants was registered under a shelf Registration
Statement.| The net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal 2007 is primarily due to the net proceeds from
this financing of $10.5 million, partially offset by payments on capital lease obligations of $1.5 million. In
December 2005, we closed the sale and issuance in a private placement of 1,500,000 shares of our common stock
and warrants to purchase 749,996 shares (the “2005 Warrants) of our common stock at an exercise price of
$9.00 per dhare for an aggregate offering price of $9 million. Net proceeds after deducting transaction costs were
38.4 milli'l n. In connection with the December 2006 public offering described above, the anti-dilution
adjustments in the 2005 Warrants were triggered. As a result, the 2005 Warrants are now exercisable for
863,199 shares at an exercise price of $7.82 per share. The net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal
2006 is dde to the net proceeds from this financing of $8.4 million and the proceeds from the issuance of
common stock under employee plans of $1.6 million partially offset by payments on capital lease obligations of
$1.5 millio:n. In fiscal 2005, we issued 35,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A Warrants
for the purlchase of 321,739 shares of common stock at $8.20 per share (the “2004 Warrants) and Series B
Warrants o purchase 200,000 shares of common stock at $8.00 per share in a private placement for net proceeds
of $4.9 milllion. The net proceeds were used to fund operating activities. The Preferred Stock was converted into
869,565 shares of our common stock in December 2005. The Series B Warrants to purchase 200,000 shares of
common stiock expired unexercised in December 2004. In connection with the December 2005 private financing
described above the anti-dilution adjustments in the 2004 Warrants were triggered. As a result, the 2004
Warrants became exercisable for 335,607 shares at an exercise price of $7.86 per share. In connection with the
December |2006 public offering described above, the anti-dilution adjustments in the 2004 Warrants were
triggered again. As a result, the 2004 Warrants are now exercisable for 366,249 shares at an exercise price of
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$7.20 per share. See Note 8 Mandatorily Redeemable Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information. The net cash provided by financing activitigs in
fiscal 2005 is due to proceeds from the issuance of Mandatorily Redeemable Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock of $4.9 million and proceeds from the issuance of common stock under employee plans of $1.7 million,
partially offset by payments on capital tease obligations of $1.8 million.

At January 28, 2007, our principal sources of liquidity included cash, cash equivalents and shortiterm
investments of $20.5 million. We believe our current cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments! will
satisfy our projected cash requirements through at least the next 12 months. However, we expect we will negd to
raise additional capital within the next 12 months to fund future operating activities beyond the next 12 months
and are actively pursuing potential additional equity financing. If we experience a material shortfall versug our
plan for fiscal 2008, we expect to take all appropriate actions to ensure the continuing operation of our busjness
and to mitigate any negative impact on our cash position. We believe we can take actions to achieve further
reductions in our operating expenses, if necessary. We also believe that we can take actions to generate cash by
selling or licensing intellectua! property, seeking funding from strategic partners, and seeking further equity or
debt financing from financial scurces. We cannot assure you that additional financing will be available on
acceptable terms or at all. Beyond fiscal 2008, the adequacy of our resources wiil depend largely on our abiljty to
complete additional financing and our success in achieving positive operating cash flows and profitability.

QOur lease for our headquarters in Santa Clara, California expires in April 2010. We lease offices in Israel
and India under operating leases that expire in September 2007 for Israel and in December 2008 for India. On
December 13, 2006, we amended a sublease agreement to extend the term for the sub-lease of 10,000 squarg feet
of our Santa Clara facility to a third party for nineteen months and 15 days, changing the termination from
March 15, 2007 to October 31, 2008 and increasing the monthly rent from $12,000 per month to $16,50D per
month.

We lease software licenses under capital leases. Refer to Note 7, Obligations under Capital Leases, of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our contractual obligations at January 28, 2007, and the effect such obligations
are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow (in thousands).

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 There After  Total

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Operatingleases * . ... ....... ... ... ... .... $1,174 %1121 $1,100 $277 $— - 88,672
Capital leases ............... ... ......... 933 354 354 — — — 1,641
Non-cancelable purchase orders . ............ 257 — — — — — 257
Total contractual cash obligations ........... $2364 $1475 $1454 3277 $— 3 $5,570

*  Net of sublease income for sub-leasing 10,000 square feet in the Company’s Santa Clara facility |for a
two-year period starting on March 15, 2005 for $12,000 per month and for a period of 19 months apd 15
days starting on March 16, 2007 for $16,500 per month.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of Januvary 28, 2007, we had no off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a) (@) of
Regulation S-K.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The information regarding recent accounting pronouncements set forth in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated
financial Statements is herby incorporated by reference into this {tem 7 of part 11.

Impact of Currency Exchange Rates

In fiscal 2007, all of our payments made to our suppliers and all of our payments received from our
customers| were denominated in U.5. dollars. We have in the past and may in the future enter into foreign
currency forward contracts to minimize short-term foreign currency fluctuation exposures related to firm
purchase commitments. We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes. Our
accounting policies for these instruments are based on our designation of such instruments as hedging
transactions. The criteria we use for designating an instrument as a hedge include its effectiveness in risk
reduction and one-to-one matching of derivative instruments to underlying transactions.

Notwithstanding the measures we have adopted, due to the unpredictability and volatility of currency

exchange frates and currency controls, we cannot assure you that we will not experience currency losses in the
future, nor can we predict the effect of exchange rate fluctuations upen future operating results.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Currency Fluctuations

In the past, we purchased wafers in Japanese yen and used foreign currency forward exchange contracty

and

options to minimize short-term foreign currency fluctuation exposures related to these purchases. The Company
does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes. We did not have any foreign

currency forward contracts in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005,

Interest Rate Risk and Investment Portfolio

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal and liquidity while at the
time maximizing yields, without significantly increasing risk. To achieve this objective, we place
investments in instruments that meet high credit rating standards as specified in our investment policy.
investment policy also specifies limits on the type, concentration and maturity period of our investments.
investment policy requires that we only invest in U.S. dollar denominated investments. In addition, a §
portion of our cash balance is held in Israel and India currencies. Foreign currency risk is immaterial due t¢

ame

our
Our
Our
mall
the

small amount of foreign currency holdings. We do not use derivative financial instruments in our investment

portfolio. Our cash equivalents and short-term investments are exposed to financial market risk duj
fluctuations in interest rates, which may affect our interest income,

e to

The table below summarizes our investment portfolio. The table includes cash and cash equivalents, short-
lerm investments, and related average interest rates. Principal (notional) amounts as of January 28, 2007| and
January 29, 2006 maturing in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, respectively are as follows:

Fair Value
January 28, January 29,
(in thousands, except percentages) 2007 2006
Taxable Taxgble
Cash and cash equivalents ... ... ... .. ittt $16,468 $26,695

Weighted average Interest rate . ... ... ...ttt in i, 4.92% 4.88%
Short-term INVESIMENTS . . ..\ ottt ettt ettt e et ettt ettt taa e iae e 4,014 —

Weighted average INtErestrale ... ... ...ttt iieennnanen 5.34% —
Total cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments . ......................... $20,482 526,695

Interest earned on non-taxable investments is subject to preferential tax treatment under the Intgrnal
Revenue Code. We did not have any non-taxable investments as of January 28, 2007 and January 29, 2006.

Our cash equivalents and short-term investments are exposed to financial market risk due to fluctuations in
interest rates, which may affect our interest income. At January 28, 2007, our cash and cash equivalents earned

interest at an average rate of 5.0%. Due to the short-term nature of our investment portfolio, operating results or
cash flows are vulnerable to sudden changes in market interest rates. Assuming a decline of 10% in the market
interest rates at January 28, 2007, with consistent cash balances, interest income would be adversely affected by

approximately $28,000 per quarter, We do not use our investment portfolio for trading or other specul
purposes.
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NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

January 28, Janvary 29, January 30,
Fiscal Year Ended 2007 2006 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)
ProduCt TEVEIMUE . .. ... it ie et tr e s $§ 572 § 862 § 2466
LIcensing revenue .. ... ... . .. e — 8,490 —
BT Y I8 =3 11 572 9,352 2,466
Costof productrevenue (1) ........ ... ... .. . ... . i, 524 884 3195
Cost of licensing reVenue .............c..uirieeiiennrninnnnnnnn. — 2,861 —
Impairment of certain acquired and licensed intangible assets ........... — — 89
Total coSt Of EVERUE .. ... oottt e ettt 524 3,745 3,284
Gross profit (Jos8) ... ..o e 48 5,607 818)
Operating expenses:
Research and development (2) ...... ... ... ... .. ... ... ...... 13,763 12,403 18,208
Sales, general and administrative (3} ............ .. ... ... ....... 6,080 6,916 7,447
Gainonsaleof patents,net . . ......... .. .. .. il (1,044) (3,481 —
Impairment of certain acquired and licensed intangible assets ....... — — 1,437
Total operating expenses . .. ... ... it 18,799 15,838 27,092
Lossfromoperations ....... ... .ot (18,751) (10,231) (27.910)
Interestincome and other .......... .. .. ittt inennn. 915 724 415
INtErest BXPENSE . ..\ ottt e e (381) (2,569) (534)
Change in fair value on revaluation of warrant liability .. ........... 1,835 — —
Loss before IBCOMmMe Lakes ... ..ottt i it et et (16,382 (12,076) (28,029)
Income tax provision (benefit) ....... ... ... .. il 137 (2,770) 196
[ 21 3 3(16,519) % (9,306) $(28,225)
Basic and diluted net loss pershare ........... ... ... ... . . iiion. $ (165 % (1.32) $ (4.33)
Weighted common shares outstanding . .. ......... ... ... ... ... ..., 10,015 7,074 éi,524
Weighted common shares outstanding assuming dilution ............... 10,015 7,074 ©,524

(1) Includes $20, $0, and $8 in stock-based compensation in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.
(2) Includes $896, $314, and $240 in stock-based compensation in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectivel
(3) Includes $542, $186 and $126 in stock-based compensation in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2003, respectively

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Jamary 28, January 29,
As of 2007 2006
{in thousands, except share and per
share amounts)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cashland cashequivalents .. .. ....... ... ... ... ... s $ 16468 $ 26,695
Short-terminvestments .. ...ttt 4,014 —
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $0 at
January 28, 2007 and January 29,2006 ...... .. ... ... ol 65 9
IV eOTY « . e e e e e e, 1,068 171
Prepaid and other current assets . .......... . . ... . it 397 800
] Otal CUTTENE ASSEES . ..ottt t ittt it e ee e eans 22,012 27,675
Property, plant and equipment, net . ......... ... it 1,494 2,368
Long:term prepatd @Ssels ... ... ... it i 162 36
Otheriassets ... ... i e 422 415
Total a88etS . ..o e e § 24,090 $ 30,494
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities;
Accountspayable . ... . e e $ 1,662 $ 1,735
Compensation and related benefits .. .......... .. ... ... .. .. .. ... 1,017 1,024
Incometaxes payable ....... ... 1,112 1,059
Current portion of capital lease obligations .......................... 866 1,525
Warram lability ... 3,853 —
Other' BCCIUALS oot 100 264
Total current liabilities ........... .0 it 8,610 5,607
Capital lease Oblgations . ... . i e e 655 624
Other longHerm Habiliies « . .. ..o v vttt e 148 149
Commnmems and contingencies (Note 11)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.001 par value:
Authorized shares—2,000,000
Issued and outstanding shares — none at January 28, 2007 and January 29,
2006 — —
Common stock, $.001 par value: Authorized shares—100,600,000
Issued and outstanding shares — 12,271,499 at January 28, 2007 and
9 517,730 at January 29,2006 . ... ... ... 39 36
Addllllonal paid-in-capital ....... ... .. . i 116,850 110,302
Deferred stock compensation . ....... .. ... . i il _ (531)
AccurPulated other comprehensive 10ss . ........ ... i, (2) (2)
Accumulated deficit ... ... . (102,210) (85,691)
otal stockholders’ equity . ... ... L e e 14,677 24,114
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity ........................ $ 24,090 $ 30,494
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NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
January 28, January 29, January 30,
Years Ended 2007 2006 zgﬁs
(in thousands)
Operating activities
Nt IO8S © ittt e e e e e $(16,519) $ (9,306) S$(2¥225)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation . ....... ..ot e 1,595 1.667 2,059
Amortization and ACCTEtION . . . .. . ...ttt e — 2,029 1,969
Gainonsaleof patents .......... ..., (1,044) (3.481) —
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment ................ — — (D
Change in fair value on revaluation of warrant liability ............. (1,835 — —
Offering costs from financing allocated to warrants and charged to
INTETESE EXPEMSE . . . . vttt ittt et et e e e 273
Stock-based compensation .. ...........ii i 1,458 500 374
Impairment of certain acquired and licensed intangible assets ....... — — 1,526
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable ... ... ... . e e (56) 3 372
Inventory ......... it (897 205 (274)
Prepaid and othercurrent assets .. .................. .. ..... 484 (10) 213
Long-term prepaid and otherassets ........................ 28 422 22
Accountspayable .. ... .. ... 3 651 (260)
Compensation and related benefits ... ...................... N 7 (240)
Income taxespayable .............. ... ... ... ... iis. 53 (2,792) 176
Other accruals and other long-term liabilities ... .......... ... (165) 188 22
Net cash used in operating activities ............... .. ... ... ... ..., (16,705) (9,917)  (22,267)
Investing activities
Proceeds fromsaleof patents . ....... ... ... .. Lo 1,044 3,481 —_
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment .............. — — 6
Purchases of property, plant, equipment and intangibles ............ (65) (200) (116)
Purchase of long-term investment ............. ... ... v — (200) —
Purchases of short-term investments . .............. ... ievun.. (6,470) (63,096) (30,809)
Maturities of short-term investments ................c.oitvrennn. 2,456 79,192 44 959
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .................... (3,035 19,177 14,040
Financing activities
Payments on capital lease obligations ................ ... ... ... (1,526) (1,457) (1.807)
Net proceeds from common stock with warrants financing . ......... 10,476 8,350 —
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of repurchases .... 563 1,598 1,701
Net proceeds from issuance of mandatorily redeemable Series B
convertible preferred stock and warrants to purchase common
SEOCK Lttt e e e e e — —_— 1,935
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . ................... 9,513 8,491 1,829
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. ................. (10,227) 17,751 (B,398)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ....................... 26,695 8,944 12,342
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ........... ... ... . it 516468 $26695 § B944
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Accumulated
Additional  Deferred Other Total
Mk_ Paid-In- Stock Comprehensive Accumulated Stockhotders’
Shares Amount Capital Compensution Income (Loss) Deficit Equity
{in thousands, except shore data)
Balance at Janvary 25,2004 .................. 6.373,240 § 32 3 90496 § (535) 5 $ (48160) $41.827
[ssuance ofjcommon stock under stock option
Plan .. 116,683 — 988 — — — 988
Issuance of|common stock under employee stock
purchasefplan ............. ... ... ..., 147,261 1 712 — — — 713 .
[ssuance of jcommon stock under stock award )
plan ..o e 13,555 — — — — — —
Addition to/deferred compensation for stock '
OPHOMS .| v v v e ie e aineas — - 1,493 (1.493) — — —

Reduction gf unamortized deferred compensation
on untvested options due to employee

ErmMINALONS . ...t e e (1,397 — (434) 434 — _ —_
Amortizatian of deferred stock compensation.. . . .. — — — 34 — — 34
Stock compensation for non-employee stock

OPLOMNS 4 ottt eiie e eie it ineaeaannnn — — 60 - — — 60

Series A an(li B warrants to purchase common stock
issued in Fonncclion with sale of mandatorily
redeemaqle preferred stack, net of transaction

COSIS vl e iniar it in i — — 2,291 — — — 2,291
Components of comprehensive loss:
Netloss ..o — — — — — (28,225)  (28,225)
Change in unrealized loss on investments . . .. — — — — (8) - (8)
Total comprehensive loss ................ - = — — — — (28.233)
Balance a Jlunuary 30,2005 ...l 6646342 5 33§ 95606  $(1,280) $(14) $ (76,385) $ 17,960
Issnance of common steck under stock option
plan ...l 363,609 — 1,295 — - - 1,295
[ssuance of :¢0mmon stock under employee stock
purchaseplan ............ ... .. ... .. 138214 — 303 — — — 303
Reduction of unamortized deferred compensation
on unvested options due 10 employee
tenninatiq'ns ............................. — —_— (348) 348 —_ —_ —
Amortization of deferred stock compensation . .. .. — —_ 34 401 — — 435
Stock cbmpen:;ation for non-employee stock
OPUOMS ...t iiiaans e — — 65 — — —_ 65
Conversion of mandatorily redeemable preferred
stock intojcommen stock .. ... L 869,565 1 4,999 — — — S5.000
Proceeds from issuance of common stock with
detachable warrants, net of transaction costs of
$650 .. 1,500,000 2 8,348 — —_ — 8,350
Componentslof comprehensive loss:
Netlosg ... i — — — — — (9.306) {9.306)
Changejin unrealized gain on investments . . . — — — — 12 — 12
Total comprehensiveloss ................ i — — — — — {9,294)
Balance at January 29,2006 .................. 9517730 $ 36 $110,302 $ (531) 5@ $ (856910 $24.114 .
Issuance of common stock under stock option 3
plan ... . 91,869 — 159 - - - 159 =
Issuance of common stock under employee stock =
purchase pllan ............................ 161,500 — 404 — — —_ 404 =~
Stock-based pompensation .. .........0e.. e, - = 1,458 — — — 1,458 =
Reversal of deferred compensation balance upon ]
adoption of FAS IZ3R ..................... — — {331 531 — — — -
Proceeds from issuance of common stock with
detachable) warrants, net of transaction costs of
3974 ... L ............................. 2,500,000 3 10,473 —_ — — 10,476
Fair value of warrant liability ................. — — (5.688) — —_ —_ (5.688)
Transaction costs allocated to warrants , ..., ..... — —_ 273 e — _ 273
Companents of comprehensive 1ogs:
Netloss) ... i — _ — — —_ {16,519) (16,519)
Change in unrealized gain on investments . .. — — — — —_ - —
Total comprehensiveloss ................ - = — — — = (16,519}
Balance at Japuary 28,2007 ......... ... ... 12271499 § 39 $116850 § — 5 () $(102,210) $ 14,677

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business

NeoMagic Corporation designs, develops and markets high-performance semiconductor solutions, known as
Applications Processors, for sale to manufacturers of mobile phones and handheld devices. NeoMagic
Corporation was incorporated in California in May 1993, The Company was subsequently reincorporated in
Delaware in February 1997.

The Company incurred significant net losses and negative cash flows from operations during each of jthe
past several fiscal years and had working capital of $13.4 million at January 28, 2007, down from $22.1 million
at January 29, 2006. At Januvary 28, 2007, the Company’s principal sources of liquidity included cash, cash
equivalents and short-term investments of $20.5 million. While a forecast of future events is inherently uncertgin,
the Company believes its current cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments will satisfy its projected cash
requirements through at least the next twelve months. If the Company experiences a material shortfall versug its
plan for fiscal 2008, it expects to take all appropriate actions to ensure the continuing operation of its business
and to mitigate any negative impact on its cash position. The Company believes it can take actions to achieve
further reductions in its operating expenses, if necessary. The Company also believes that it can take actions to
generate cash by selling or licensing intellectual property, seeking funding from strategic partners, and seeking
further equity or debt financing from financial sources. We cannot assure you that additional financing wil] be
available on acceptable terms or at all. Beyond fiscal 2008, the adequacy of the Company’s resources will depend
largely on its ability to complete additional financing and its success in re-establishing profitable operations and
positive operating cash flows.

Basis of Presentation

For all periods presented, share and per share information in these consolidated financial statements |and
notes have been adjusted to reflect the Company’s 1-for-5 reverse stock split effective after the close of market
on August 12, 2005.

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in January. Fiscal 2007 consisted of 52 weeks and ended
on January 28, 2007, Fiscal 2006 consisted of 52 weeks and ended on January 29, 2006. Fiscal 2005 consisted of
53 weeks and ended on January 30, 2005.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NeoMagic and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
NeoMagic is not involved with any variable interest entities, as defined by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 46(R). Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Accounts
denominated in non-United States currencies have been remeasured using the United States dollar as) the
functional currency.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management 10 make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Significant estimates include those relating to determination of net realizable value of
inventories, realizability of deferred tax assets, as well as the assessment of impairment of goodwill, intangjbles
and other long-lived assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates. :

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenue from two principal sources: product sales and license fees for patents.
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NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The Company recognizes revenue from non-distributor product sales when the products are shipped 10 the
customer, title has transferred, and no obligations remain. In addition, the Company requires the following
criteria to pe met before recognizing revenue: (i) execution of a written customer order, (ii) fee is fixed or
determinable, and (iii) collectibility of the proceeds is probable. The Company’s shipment terms are FOB
shipping paint.

With respect to products shipped to distributors, the Company defers recognition of product revenue until
the distributors sell its products to their customers. On occasion, however, the Company may sell products with
“end of !ifeJ}’] status to its distributors under special arrangements without any price protection or return privileges
for which the Company recognizes revenue upon transfer of title, typically upon shipment and other criteria
noted above are met.

At the end of each accounting period, the Company makes a determination of certain factors including sales
returns and allowances, that could affect the amount of revenue recorded for the period. Sales returns provisions
include coniderations for known but unprocessed sales returns and estimates for unknown returns based on our
historical experiences.

The Company recognizes non-refundable fees for licensing our patents in the period when all of the
following conditions are met: (i) the Company enters into a licensing agreement with a licensee that has been

executed by
the licensing

Cash, Cash

both parties, (ii) delivery has occurred and the Company has no further obligations with respect to
agreement, (iii) the fee is fixed and determinable, and (iv) collectibility of the proceeds is probable.

Equivalents and Short-term Investments

All highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or jess are considered cash

equivalents.
as short-term

Investments with an original maturity of greater than 90 days, but less than one year, are classified
investments.

Investments in marketable equity securities and debt securities are classified as held-to-maturity when the

Company ha

s the positive intent and ability to hold the securities to maturity. Held-to-maturity securities are

stated at amortized cost with corresponding premiums or discounts amortized to interest income over the life of

the investme

nt. Securities not classified as held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale and are reported at

fair market jvalue. Unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities are included, net of tax, in
stockholders' equity until their disposition. Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged to be other
than temporary on available-for-sale securities are included in interest income and other. The cost of securities
sold is based on the specific identification method.
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NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

All cash equivalents and short-term investments are classified as available-for-sale and are recorded at fair
market value. All available-for-sale securities have maturity dates of less than one year from the balance sheet
dates. For all classifications of securities, cost approximates fair market value as of January 28, 2007 and

January 29, 2006, and consists of the following (in thousands):

Gross
Amortized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain (Loss) Value
January 28, 2007
Cash and cash equivalents:
Money market funds . ....... ... . ...l $ 107 5— $1 107
Commercial paper . ... i e 14,562 —_ 14,562
Bank accounts ... . e e e 1,799 —_ 1,799
TOta] . . e $16,468 $— $16,468
Short-term investments:
Certificate of deposit .. ........ ... .. $ 1,505 $ () $(1,504
Commercial paper .. ... ... ... 987 — 987
U.S. GOVernment ageNCIes . ..o oo vv et ree e e s e eeens 1,524 (1) 1,523
ot . e $ 4,016 g @ $; 4,014
Gross
Amortized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain (Loss) Value
January 29, 2006
Cash and cash equivalents:
Money market funds ... ... ... .. e $ 1,345 $— $[1,345
Commercial Paper . ... ...t e 23,698 (2) 23,696
U.S. Government AZencies ..........couurunvneinennineaenannnn 994 — 994
Bank acCounIs ... ... 660 — 660
T $26,097 $ (2 $p6,695
Inventory
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out
method. The Company writes down the inventory value for estimated excess and obsolete inventory, based on
management's assessment of future demand and market conditions. If actual future demand or market conditions
are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required|
. January 28, Janmuary 2%,
Inventory consists of: 2007 006
(in thousangs}
Raw Materials . ..ot i e e e e e $ 254 b 1
WOTK I PIOCESS . ot ittt ittt et e e ettt ae e 239 11
Finished goods ... ... .. e e 575 159
s 1 R U $1,068 5171

Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets, consisting primarily of property, plant
and equipment in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, and whenever certain events or changes in circumstances
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NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. Such events or circumstances include,
but are not limited to, a significant decline in the Company’s market value, significant reductions in projected
future cash flows or gross margins, or macroeconomic factors, including a prolonged economic downturn. In
assessing|the recoverability of long-lived assets, the Company compares the carrying value to the undiscounted
future cas|h flows the assets are expected to generate, If the total of the undiscounted future cash flows is less than
the carrying amount of the assets, the Company will be required to write down such assets based on the excess of
the carrying amount over the fair value of the assets. Fair value is generally determined by calculating the
discounted future cash flows using a discount rate based upon the Company’s weighted average cost of capital.
Significa I judgments and assumptions are required in the forecast of future operating results used in the
preparation of the estimated future cash flows, including gross profit margins, long-term forecasts of the amount
and liminl; of overall market growth and our percentage of that market, groupings of assets. discount rates and
terminal growth rates. Tn addition, significant estimates and assumptions are required in the determination of the
fair value|of the Company’s tangible long-lived assets, including replacement cost, economic obsolescence, and
the value that could be realized in liquidation. Changes in these estimates could have a material adverse effect on
the assessinent of the Company’s long-lived assets, thereby requiring the Company to write down the assets,

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation and amortization are provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the respective
assets, generally three to five years or, in the case of property under capital leases, over the lesser of the useful
life of the assets or lease term.

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):

January 28, January 29,

Fiscal Year Ended 2007 2006
Property, plant and equipment: .
Com uter equipment and software .. ... ... .. e $11,499  $11,152
Fumiq.lre AN FIXIUTES . 1,728 1,716
Machinery and equipment . ...... ... ... 1,500 1,515
Total L. 14,727 14,383
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . ........................... (13,233) (12,015
Property, plant and equipment, net .......... .. .. o 5 1495 § 2368
Other Assets

Other assets at January 28, 2007 and January 29, 2006 include an investment in Neonode Inc. (“Neonode™)
of $200,000, and long term-lease deposits for our leased facilities. The investment in Neonode represents less
than 1.5% of Neonode's outstanding commeon stock. Neonode is a private company that has sold mobile phones
that incorpc‘ralc NeoMagic's products.

Warranty

The Company generally sells products with a limited warranty of product quality and a limited
indemniﬁcaltion of customers against intellectual property infringement claims related to the Company’s
products. The Company accrues for known warranty and indemnification issues if a loss is probable and can be
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NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

reasonably estimated, and accrues for estimated but unidentified issues based on historical activity. The accrual
and the related expense for known issues were not significant as of and for the years ended January 28, 2007 and |
January 29, 2006. Due to product testing, the short time between product shipment and the detection|and
correction of product failures, and a low historical rate of payments on indemnification claims, the accrual based
on historical activity and the related expense were not significant for fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company sells its products to manufacturers of mobile phones and other handheld devices.|The
Company performs continuing credit evaluations of its customers and, generally, does not require collateral.
Letters of credit may be required from its customers in certain circurnstances.

Net Loss per Share

Net loss per share represents the weighted average common shares outstanding during the period and
excludes any dilutive effects of options, warrants, and convertible securities. The dilutive effects of options,
warrants and convertible securities are included in diluted earnings per share in profitable periods, but are |
excluded in loss periods. !

Comprehensive Loss |
Unrealized gains or losses on the Company’s available-for-sale securities are included in comprehensive
loss and reported separately in stockholders’ equity.

Net comprehensive loss includes the Company’s net loss, as well as accurnulated other comprehensive loss
on available-for-sale securities. Net comprehensive loss for each of the three years ended January 28,
' 2007, January 29, 2006 and January 30, 2005 is as follows (in thousands):

January 28, January 29, J anutory 30,

Year ended 2007 2006 2005

= 1 [ - U O $(16,519)  3(9,306) $(28,225)
Net change in unrealized loss on available for sale securities ............ — 12 (8)
Netcomprehensive loss . ... ... i $(16,519)  $(9,294)  $(2§,233)

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss was $2,000 at Janvary 28, 2007 and January 29, (2006,
Accumulated other comprehensive loss consists entirely of unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are charged to expense when incurred.

Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company’s shipping terms are FOB shipping point and our customers are responsible for paying all
shipping and handling costs directly to the shipping company.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expenses were immaterial in fiscal 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.
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NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Stock Compensation

Effective January 30, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123(R)”}, which requires the Company to measure the cost of
employeeservices received in exchange for all equity awards granted under its stock option plans and employee
stock purdhase plans based on the fair market value of the award as of the grant date. SFAS 123(R) supersedes
Statement| of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation and
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 25"). The
Company has adopted SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective application method of adoption that requires
the Company to record compensation cost related to unvested stock awards as of January 30, 2006 by
recognizing the unamortized grant date fair value of these awards over the remaining service periods of those
awards with no change in historical reported earnings. Awards granted after January 30, 2006 are valued at fair
value in accordance with provisions of SFAS 123(R} and recognized on a ratable basis over the service periods
of each award. The Company estimated forfeiture rates for the three and nine months ended January 28, 2007
based on itls historical experience.

Before fiscal 2007, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation in accordance with APB 25 using
the intrinsic value method, which did not require that compensation cost be recognized for the Company’s stock
awards proivided the exercise price was established at 100% of the common stock fair market value on the date of
grant. Before fiscal 2007, the Company provided pro forma disclosure amounts in accordance with SFAS
No. 148, *Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatinn—Transition and Disclosure” (SFAS No. 148), as if the fair
value method defined by SFAS No. 123 had been applied to its stock-based compensation,

The following table illustrates the pro forma effect on net loss and loss per share if the Company had
applied the fair valve recognition method in accordance with SFAS 123 (in thousands, except per share data):

Jamuary 29, January 30,

Year Ended 2006 2005
Net oss, as[reported . ... ..ot $ (9.306) $(28,225)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net loss, net of

related tax effects .. ... ... 500 374
Less: Total istock-bascd compensation expense determined under the fair value method

for all awards, net of related tax effects . ....... ... . {5,131 (3,959)
Proforma net 1oss .. ... ..o (13,937)  (31,810)
Reported basic and diluied loss pershare . ........ ... ... i $ (132 $ (4.33)
Pro forma basic and diluted losspershare ............. ... $ (197 % (4.88)

The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing
model.

On October 28. 2005, the Company accelerated the vesting of unvested and “out-of-the-money” stock
options with| exercise prices equal to or greater than $10.00 per share previously awarded to its employees,
including its|executive officers and its directors, under the Company’s equity compensation plans. Options to
purchase 221,240 shares of the Company's common stock became exercisable immediately. The weighted
average exercise price of the options subject to the acceleration was $14.06 per share.
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The purpose of the acceleration was to enable the Company te avoid recognizing compensation expd

associated with these options in future periods in its consolidated statements of operations, upon adoptio

FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (R), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123 (R

SFAS 123 (R) was effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2007, and requires
compensation expense associated with stock options be recognized in the statement of operations, rather than
footnote disclosure in the Company's consolidated financial statements. The pre-tax charge to be avo
amounts to approximately $1.8 million over the course of the original vesting periods, which on avera
approximately 1.6 years from the effective date of acceleration. The acceleration of the vesting of these op

ENSse
n of
1)),
that
asa
ded
e is

ions

did not result in a charge based on generally accepted accounting principles. The Company believes that because

the accelerated options had exercise prices in excess of the current market value of the Company’s co
stock, the options had limited economic value and are not fully achieving their original objective of ince
compensation and employee retention,

on
tive

At January 28, 2007, the Company had several stock-based employee compensation plans, including 2|sL:c)c:k
cial

option plans and employee stock purchase plans. See Note 4 of the Notes to the Consolidated Fin
Statements for description of the plans operated by the Company.

Financial Instruments

The Company's financial instruments consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, shorttterm
investments, accounts receivable, employee receivables, capital leases and accounts payable. The Company
believes all of the financial instruments' recorded values approximate current values because of the short-term

nature of these instruments.

Segment Information

The Company has one operating segment by which management evaluates performance and allocates

resources.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”}) issued SFAS No. 153, “Accojinting

for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140.” SFAS Np.

amends SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” and SFAS Na.

“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” SFAS No.

155
140,
155

resolves issues addressed in Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. DI, Application of Statement ]33 to
Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets. SFAS No. 155 permits fair value remeasurement fpr any
hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurtation,

clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of SFAS Np.

133,

establishes a requirement to evaluate interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests that are
freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring
bifurcation, clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives
and amends SFAS No. 140 to eliminate the prohibition on a qualifying special-purpese entity from holding a
derivative financial instrument that pertains to a beneficial interest other than another derivative fipancial
instrument. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of the
Company’s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006, with earlier adoption permitted. We(do not

anticipate that this SFAS will have any material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
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Effective February 3, 2006, the FASB decided to move forward with the issuance of a final FSP
FAS 123R-4, Classification of Options and Similar Instruments Issued as Employee Compensation that Allow
for Cash Slettlement upon the Occurrence of a Contingent Event. The guidance in this FSP FAS 123R-4 amends
paragraphs‘ 32 and A229 of SFAS [23(R) to incorporate the concept articulated in footnote 16 of SFAS 123(R).
That is, a cash settlement feature that can be exercised only upon the occurrence of a contingent event that is
outside the employee’s control does not meet the condition in paragraphs 32 and A229 until it becomes probable
that the evei:nt will occur. Originally under SFAS 123(R), a provision in a share-based payment plan that required
an entity t({ settle outstanding options in cash upon the occurrence of any contingent event required classification
and accounting for the share based payment as a liability. This caused an issue under certain awards that require
or permit, at the holder’s election, cash settlement of the option or similar instrument upon (a) a change in control
or other li&uidily event of the entity or (b) death or disability of the holder. With this new FSP, these types of
cash settlement features will not require liability accounting so long as the feature can be exercised only upon the
occurrence|of a contingent event that is outside the employee’s control {such as an initial public offering) until it
becomes probable that event will occur. The guidance in this FSP shall be applied upon initial adoption of SFAS
123(R). Arl entity that adopted SFAS 123(R) before the issuance of the FSP shall apply the guidance in the FSP
in the first reporting period beginning after February 2006. Early application of FSP FAS 123R-4 is permitted in
periods forjwhich financial statements have not yet been issued. We do not anticipate that this FAS will have any
material imr)act on our financial condition or results of operations.

In Ma{ch 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156 (“SFAS 156™), “Accounting for Servicing of Financial
Assets—An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 140.” Among other requirements, SFAS 136 requires a
company 1o recognize a servicing asset or servicing lability when it undertakes an obligation to service a
financial agset by entering into a servicing contract under certain situations. Under SFAS 156, an election can
also be made for subsequent fair value measurement of servicing assets and servicing liabilities by class, thus
simplifying|the accounting and provide for income statement recognition of potential offsetting changes in the
fair value of servicing assets, servicing liabilities and related derivative instruments. SFAS No. 156 is effective
for fiscal y ars beginning after September 15, 2006. We do not anticipate that this SFAS will have any material
impact on our financial condition or results of operattons.

In Ju])I 2006, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes-an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48"), which is a change in accounting for income
taxes, FIN |48 specifies how tax benefits for uncertain tax positions are to be recognized, measured, and
derecognized in financial statements; requires certain disclosures of uncertain tax matters; specifies how reserves
for uncertain tax positions should be classified on the balance sheet; and provides transition and interim period
guidance, among other provisions. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We do
not anticipaée that this FASB will have any material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 (“SFAS 1577), “Fair Value Measurements.” Among
other requirlements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value and establishes a framework for measuring fair value and
also expandg disclosure about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 is effective for
the first fiscal year beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
SFAS No. 157 on its financial position and results of operations.

In September 2006, the SEC issued SAB No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements
When Quar{lifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements” (“SAB 108”), which provides
interpretive guidance on how the effects of the carryover or reversal of prior year misstatements should be
constdered ii‘l quantifying a current year misstatement. The guidance is applicable for fiscal years ending after
November 13, 2006. We do not anticipate that this SAB will have any material impact on our financial condition
or results of operations.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pe
and Other Postretirement Plans” (“FAS 158”). FAS 158 requires companies to fully recognize the oblig:
associated with single-employer defined benefit pension, retiree healthcare and other postretirement plans i
financial statements. As we do not have defined benefit pensions or other postretirement plans, FAS 15§
have no impact on our financial statements or results of operations.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. FAS 13-2, “Accounting for a Chan

nsion
itions
their
8 will

ge or

Projected Change in the Timing of Cash Flows Relating to Income Taxes Generated by a Leveraged Lease
Transaction,” which provides guidance on how a change or a potential change in the timing of cash flows rellating

to income taxes generated by a leveraged lease transaction affects the accounting by a lessor for the lease

This

staff position was adopted by the Company on Januvary 1, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact
P Y ary pany L P

of adopting this FSP; however, the Company does not expect the adoption of this provision to have a m
effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

terial

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities”. The objective of this statement is to improve financial reporting by providing entities with
the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities

differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal

years

beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS 159, but ddes not
expect adoption to have a material impact on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash

flows.

2. LOSS PER SHARE

Per share information is as follows:

January 28, January 29, Janpary 30,
Year Ended 2007 2006 2005

{in thousands, except per share|data)

Numerator:
[0 (0 3 O $(16,519)  $(9,306) $(28,225)
Denominator:
Denominator for basic and diluted loss per share—weighted-average
outstanding shares . ... ... ... ... i 10,015 7,074 6,524
Basic and diluted loss pershare .......... ... ... i, $ (63 $(1.32) $|43D

For fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, basic loss per share equals diluted toss per share due to the net lo

ss for

the year. During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company excluded options, warrants and conyertible
instruments to purchase 2,271,014, 2,168,601 and 2,200,492 shares of common stock, respectively, from the

diluted loss per share computation because the effect was anti-dilutive for these fiscal years.




3. INCOME TAXES

Loss

following:

Year Ended 2007 2006

Income Qoss) before taxes

NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

before taxes and the provision (benefit) for income taxes in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2003 consists of the

Janvary 28, January29, January 30,
2005

(in thousands}

UL S e $(16,139)  $(12,589) $(26,953)

Foréign .................................................. (243) 513 (1,076)
Total loss before taxes . ... ... .. $(16,382) $(12,076) $(28.029)
Provision (benefit) for taxes
Current:

U.S.| ..................................................... 3 36 3 26§ 27

Foreign ... e 101 (2,796) 169
Total provision (benefit) forincometaxes ........................... $ 137 $27710) $ 196

The Company’s income tax provision (benefit) differs from the federal statutory rate of 35% due 1o the
following'

January 28, January 29, Janoary 30,
Year Endec' 2007 2006 2005
(in thousands except percentages)

Pre-tax JOBS .. .o e $(16,382) $(12,076) $(28.029)
Federal statutory rate ... oo 35% 35% 35%
Expected Peneﬁt ............................................... (5,734) (4,227 (9,810)
Foreign mees .................................................. 82 25 169
LB (Y= T AR 53 (2,795) _
Accretionof interest on debentures .. ........ .. . ... . i, — 710 —
Net operafling loss not currently benefited ........................... 5,698 3,530 9,607
Non-deductible amortization of deferred compensation ................ — — 91
Other ... L oo 38 (3) 139
Provision (benefit) forincome taxes ..., $ 137 5Q2770) $§ 196
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount§ of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Signifi¢ant
components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as fotlows:

January 28, January 29,
Year Ended 2007 006

(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforward ............ ... . .. o oo $ 38,024  $32436
Research and development credit ........ ... ..ot 9,846 8,865
ACQUISTHON COSLS . . . L. et i e e 1,907 53
Reservesandaccruals .. ... ... . i i 1,210 553
Capitalized research and development . ......................... 2,369 2,906
L0 T3 579 1918
Total deferred tax assets . . ...ttt e 53,935 46,731
Valuation allOWANCE . . . . o . ot e et e e et e e e e e $(53,935)  $(46,731)

Netdeferred 18X A85615 . ...ttt it ittt e e s s —_ —

Realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent on the Company generating sufficient taxable income in
future years to obtain benefit from the reversal of temporary differences and from net operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards. At January 28, 2007, the Company has provided a valuation allowance of $53.9 million
equal to its total deferred tax assets due to uncertainties surrounding their realization. The valuation allowance
increased by $7.2 million, $4.6 million and $18.9 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

As of January 28, 2007, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for federal income tax purposes
of approximately $95.3 million. The federal net operating loss will expire in fiscal years beginning in 2023! The
Company also had research and development credit carryforwards for federal income tax purposgs of
approximately $4.5 million, which expire in fiscal years beginning in 2019, In addition, the Company had net
operating losses and research and development tax credits for state income tax purposes of approximately
$81 million and $5.3 million, respectively. The state net operating loss will expire in the years beginning in 2013,
and state research and development tax credits will not expire. Utilization of the Company’s federal net opegating
loss and research credit carryforwards may be subject to an annual limitation due to the "change of ownergship”
provisions of the Tax Reform Act of 1986. The annual limitation may result in the expiration of net opefating
loss and research credit carryforwards before utilization.

Deferred income tax assets pertaining to net operating losses decreased by $6.6 million due to a chaige in
presentation in accordance with SFAS 123(R). These deferred income tax assets resulted from the exercfse of
employee stock options in prior years and represent excess tax benefits as determined under APB No. 23. The
deferred income tax assets for excess tax benefits had a full valvation allowance against them in prior years.
SFAS 123(R) prohibits recognition of a deferred income tax asset for an excess tax benefit that has no{ been
realized through a reduction in income taxes payable. The Company has netted the deferred income tax assets for
net operating losses and the related valuation allowance for the excess tax determined under APB No. 25. While
SFAS 123(R) applies for the Company’s year ended January 28, 2007, the Company’s deferred taxes and the
valuation allowance as of January 29, 2006 have been adjusted to conform to the fiscal 2007 presentation.

Incoime taxes payable balances on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are represented by accruals recorded by
the Company for income tax liabilities. Income tax liabilities are recorded in accordance with the SFAS 5 driteria

of being estimable and probable.
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The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Jobs Act”), enacted on October 22, 2004, provides for a
temporary|85% dividends-received deduction on certain foreign earnings repatriated during a one-year period.
The deduc'tion would result in an approximate 5.25% federal tax rate on the repatriated earnings. To qualify for
the deduction, the eamings must be reinvested in the United States pursuant to a domestic reinvestment plan
established by a company’s chief executive officer and approved by its board of directors, Certain other criteria
in the Jobs Act must be satisfied as well. However, as the Company is currently in a net operating loss position, it
has opted not to currenily reinvest in the United States, as the temporary deduction is provided outside the scope
of existing net operating losses and would create an additional tax liability in the United States. The time for
obtaining this benefit has expired.

The earnings from foreign operations in India are currently tax exempt pursuant to a tax holiday effective
through 2008. The incentive provides for certain tax relief if certain conditions arc met. The Company believes
that it continued to be in compliance with these conditions at January 28, 2007.

The Gompany realized a benefit of approximately $3.1 million in fiscal 2006, which was primarily
attributable; to a percentage of the potential tax liability, including interest, for NeoMagic Cayman’s deferred
income. A of January 29, 2006, the statute of limitations expired and the Cayman entity was liquidated;
therefore, 1he reserve was released. NeoMagic also increased tax reserves by approximately $53,000 and
$335,000 in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively, to accrue for potential interest and penalties on outstanding state
and foreign|reserves.

4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Warrants

The Cpmpany granted warrants in connection with the securities purchase agreement entered into with
Satellite Strategic Finance Associates, LLC in August 2004. The warrants were to purchase (i) 200,000 shares of
NeoMagic common stock at an exercise price of $8.00 per share, exercisable until 90 days after the date that the
registration staternent was filed by the Company covering the securities and declared effective by the Securities
and Exchange Commission, and (ii) 321,739 shares of common stock at $8.20 per share, exercisable until
August 20, {2009 (the “2004 Warrants”), The Securities and Exchange Commission declared the Company’s
filing effective September 24, 2004 and the warrants for the purchase of 200,000 shares expired unexercised on
December 26, 2004. On December 16, 2005, NeoMagic closed the sale and issuance of shares of its Common
Stock and whrrants to purchase Common Stock (described below), which triggered the anti-dilution provisions in
the 2004 Warrants. An adjustment was made to increase the number of shares subject to the 2004 Warrants to
335,607 shares of common stock and to decrease the purchase price to $7.86 per share. On December 6, 2006,
NeoMagic closed the sale and issuance of shares of its Common Stock and warrants to purchase Common Stock
(described below), which triggered the anti-dilution provisions in the 2004 Warrants. An adjustment was made to
increase the [number of shares subject to the 2004 Warrants to 366,249 shares of common stock and to decrease
the purchase price to $7.20 per share. As of January 28, 2007, none of the 366,249 2004 Warrants had been
exercised. See Note 8 Mandatorily Redeemable Series B Preferred Stock, for additional information.

On December 16, 2005, NeoMagic closed the sale and issuance 1o various investors of (i) 1,500,000 shares
of its Common Stock, $.001 par value (the "2005 Shares"), and (ii) warrants to purchase 749,996 shares of
Common Stack at an exercise price of $9.00 per share (the "2005 Warrants"). The Company sold and issued the
2005 Shares and the 2005 Warrants for an aggregate offering price of $9 million. After deducting offering costs,
net cash proéeeds received by the Company were $8.4 million.
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Stock at an exercise price of $9.00 per share. No 2005 Warrant was exercisable until six months afte
issuance date of such 2005 Warrant. The 2005 Warrants provide for adjustments to the exercise price and nu
of shares for which the 2005 Warrants may be exercised in certain circumstances, including stock splits, §

The 2005 Warrants provide that each holder of a Warrant may exercise its Warrant for shares of Conron

the
ber
tock

dividends, certain distributions and reclassifications, and dilutive issuances, subject to a minimum price of $7.79.

On December 6, 2006, NeoMagic closed the sale and issuance of shares of its Common Stock and warrarn

s to

purchase Common Stock (described below), which triggered the anti-dilution provisions in the 2005 Warrants.

An adjustment was made to increase the number of shares subject to the warrants to 863,199 shares of con

mon

stock and to decrease the purchase price to $7.82 per share. As of January 28, 2007, none of the 2005 Warrants

had been exercised.

On December 6, 2006, NeoMagic closed the sale and issuance to various investors of (i) 2,500,000 shates of
its Common Stock, $.001 par value (the "2006 Shares"), and (ii) warrants to purchase 1,250,000 shargs of
Common Stock at an exercise price of $5.20 per share (the "2006 Warrants"). The Company sold and issued the
2006 Shares and the 2006 Warrants for an aggregate offering price of $11.5 million. After deducting offering

costs, net cash proceeds received by the Company were $10.5 million.

The 2006 Warrants provide that each holder of a 2006 Warrant may exercise its 2006 Warrant for shares of
Common Stock at an exercise price of $5.20 per share. No 2006 Warrant is exercisable until six months after the
issuance date of such 2006 Warrant. The 2006 Warrants provide for adjustments to the exercise price and nymber
of shares for which the 2006 Warrants may be exercised in certain circumstances, including stock splits, [stock
dividends, certain distributions and reclassifications, and dilutive issuances, subject to a minimum price of £4.58

per share.

Preferred Stock

In fiscal 2000, the Board of Directors approved an amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation toallow
the issuance of up to 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock and to determine the price, rights, preferénces,
privileges and restrictions, including voting rights of those shares without any further vote or action l:ry the

stockholders.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company’s net loss for the year ended January 28, 2007 was $16.5 mitlion. The Company recognized

stock-based compensation expense under SFAS 123(R) for the year ended January 28, 2007 of $1.5 mji
Compensation expense is not less than the amount incurred by vested shares. Compensation expense reldt
stock-based compensation of service provider stock options for the year ended January 28, 2007 was
million. Compensation expense related to stock-based compensation under the Employee Stock Purchase

llion.
ed to
$1.2
Plan

for the year ended January 28, 2007 was $0.3 million. The Company's net loss for the year ended January 28,
2007was $1.5 million greater than it would have been if the Company had continued to account for sharerbased
compensation under APB Opinion No. 25. The Company's net loss per common share, basic and diluted, for the
year-ended January 28, 2007 was $(0.15) greater than it would have been if the Company had contined to

account for share-based compensation under APB Opinion No. 25.

Net cash proceeds from the sales of common stock under employee stock purchase and stock option

plans

for the year ended January 28, 2007 and January 29, 2006 were $563 thousand and $1.6 million, respectively. No
income tax benefit was realized from the sales of common stock under employee stock purchase and stock|option
plans during the year ended Janvary 28, 2007 and January 29, 2006, respectively. In accordance withl SFAS

123(R), the Company presenis excess tax benefits from the exercise of stock options, if any, as financing
flows rather than operating cash flows.
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Determining Fair Value

Valuation and amortization method—The Company estimates the fair value using a Black-Scholes option
pricing formula and a single option award approach. This fair value is then amortized ratably over the requisite
service periods of the awards, which is generally the vesting period.

Expected term—The Company’s expected term represents the period that the Company’s stock-based
awards aﬁe expected to be outstanding. During second quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company completed an
historical review of the expected term. The expected term for the second, third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2007
is based :upon this historical review. The Company believes that this method meets the requirements for
SFAS 123(R). During first quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company applicd the provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption
of SFAS 123(R) by calculating the expected term as the average of the vesting period and original contractual
term. This method could be used until December 31, 2007 for “plain-vanilla” share opticns. The Company
believes that this method met the requirements for SFAS 123(R) for its first quarter of fiscal 2007.

Expected Volatility—The Company’s expected volatility for the year ended January 28, 2007 is computed
based on the Company’s historical stock price volatility. The Company believes historical volatility to be the best
estimate of future volatility and noted no unusual events that might indicate that historical volatility would not be
representative of future volatility.

Risk-Free Interest Rate—The risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes option valuation method is
based on the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remaining term equal
to the expected term of the option,

Expected Dividend—The dividend yield reflects that the Company has not paid any dividends and has no
intention tq pay dividends in the foreseeable future,

Estimated Forfeiture—The estimated forfeiture rate was based on an analysis of the Company’s historical

forfeiture r'ates. The estimated average forfeiture rate for the year ended January 28, 2007 was 40.67% based on
historical forfeiture experience.

In the lyear ended January 28, 2007, January 29, 2006 and January 30, 2005, respectively, the fair value of
each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model and the
ratable attribution approach using a dividend yield of 0% and the following weighted average assumptions:

Employee Option Plan Employee Stock Purchase Plan
January 28, January 29, Januvary30, January28, January29, January 30,
M 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interestrates ,........... 4.8% 4.0% 32% 3.67% 4.1% 21%
Volatility ... 1.01 81 91 1.00 1.27 80
Expected life of option in years .. ... 4.28 4.81 3.34 1.03 75 1.66

Stock Plans

At January 28, 2007, the Company had several stock-based employee compensation plans, including stock
option plan i and employee stock purchase plans. Stock options may be issued to directors, officers, employees
and consultants (“Service Providers”) under the Company’s 2003 Stock Option Plan, Amended 1998 Stock
Option Plan} and 1993 Stock Option Plan. The stock options generally vest over a four-year period, have a
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maturity of ten years from the issuance date, and an exercise price equal to the closing price on the NASDAQ of
the common stock on the date of grant. Generally, unvested options are forfeited 30 to 90 days from the d
Service Provider ceases to be a Service Provider, or in the case of death or disability for a period of up t

registered common stock were reserved for issuance under the 2003 Stock Option Plan, Amended 1998
Option Pian, and 1993 Stock Option Plan, respectively.

stock options and stock purchase rights to employees, consultants and directors. Incentive stock options may be
granted only to employees. The Company has a total of 1,363,605 shares reserved under the 2003 Plan for future
issuance. The 2003 Plan terminates in 2013. The Board of Directors determines vesting provisions for $tock
purchase rights and options granted under the 2003 Plan. Stock options expire no later than ten years fro
date of grant. Generally stock options vest over four years when granted to new employees. In the ev
voluntary or involuntary termination of employment with the Company for any reason, with or without cause, all
unvested options are forfeited and all vested options must be exercised within a 90-day period, or as set fofth in
the option agreement, or they are forfeited. Certain of the options and stock purchase rights are exercisable
immediately upon grant. However, common shares issued on exercise of options before vesting are subject to
repurchase by the Company. As of January 28, 2007, no shares of common stock were subject to this repurchase
provision. Other options granted under the 2003 Plan are exercisable during their term in accordance with the
vesting schedules set forth in the option agreement. The number of shares reserved under the 2003 Plan is sybject
to an automatic increase for unexercised forfeited shares subject to options issued under the 1993 Plan. As of
January 28, 2007, the maximum number of options outstanding and unexercised in the 1993 Plan was 93.40}.

Under the 1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (the “1998 Plan™), the Board of Directors may |grant
nonstatutory stock options to employees, consultants and officers upon their initial employment. The Company
has a total of 1,162,987 shares reserved under the 1998 Plan for future issuance. Unless terminated sooner, the
1998 Plan will terminate automatically in June 2008.

On December 22, 2005, the Company entered into an amendment to the 1998 Plan to permit holders of
certain stock options to voluntarily make irrevocable advance elections to reduce the exercise period for such
stock options. These advance elections could qualify certain stock options for exemptions from the poteptially
unfavorable tax effects imposed by Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code, and the proposed regulations
issued thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A”). Specifically, the 1998 Plan was amended to authorize and
provide the framework necessary for the implementation of a short-term deferral exercise election; that is, ¢ertain
eligible stock option holders were permitted to elect to exercise stock options that vest in a given calendar year
by no later than March 15th of the following year. If an option holder made this election, the stock pption
agreement underlying the eligible stock options subject to the election was automatically amended to the [extent
necessary to implement the election.

Under the 1993 Stock Plan (the "1993 Plan"), the Board of Directors may grant incentive stock options,
nonstatutory stock options and stock purchase rights to employees, consultants and directors. The Company has a
total of 93,401 shares reserved under the 1993 Plan for future issuance pursuant to outstanding options. The 1993
Plan terminated as to future grants in September 2003. The Board of Directors determined vesting provisipns for
stock purchase rights and options granted under the 1993 Plan. Stock options expire no later than ten years from
the date of grant. Generally stock options vest over four years when granted to new employees. In the event of
voluntary or involuntary termination of employment with the Company for any reason, with or without capse, all
unvested options are forfeited and all vested options must be exercised within a 90-day period, or as set forth in
the option agreement, or they are forfeited. Certain of the options and stock purchase rights are exe cisable

50




NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

immediately upon grant. However, common shares issued on exercise of options before vesting are subject to
repurchase by the Company. As of January 28, 2007, no shares of common stock were subject to this repurchase
provision,| Other options granted under the 1993 Plan are exercisable during their term in accordance with the
vesting schedu]es set forth in the option agreement. Unexercised forfeited shares are transferable o the 2003 Plan
as prov:de]d within the 2003 Plan.

On Qctober 28, 2005, the Company accelerated the vesting of unvested and “out-of-the-money” stock
options with exercise prices equal to or greater than $10.00 per share previously awarded to its employees,
including jits executive officers and its directors, under the Company’s equity compensation plans. Options 1o
purchase 221,240 shares of the Company’s common stock became exercisable immediately. The weighted
average exercise price of the options subject to the acceleration was $14.06 per share.

The purpose of the acceleration was to enable the Company to avoid recognizing compensation expense
associated {with these options in future pertods in its consolidated statements of operations, upon adoption of SFAS
123(R}). SEAS 123(R) is effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2007, and requires that
compensation expense associated with stock options be recognized in the statement of operations, rather than as a
footnote dilsclosure in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The pre-tax charge to be avoided amounts
to approximately $1.8 million over the course of the original vesting periods, which on average is approximately 1.6
years from the effective date of acceleration. The acceleration of the vesting of these options did not result in a
charge based on generally accepted accounting principles. The Company believes that because the accelerated
options have exercise prices in excess of the current market value of the Company’s common stock, the options
have limited economic value and are not fully achieving their original objective of incentive compensation and
employee ritention.

A summary of the Company's stock option activity under the three plans, and related information for the
three years|ended January 28, 2007 follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Number of  Average  Remaining

Shares Exercise  Contractual Aggregate
Qutstanding  Price Per Term Intrinsic
(Options) Share (in Years) Value
Balance at ,I anuary 25,2004 .. ... .. 2,306,048 $13.30
Granteld ........................................ 752,253 6.55
Exercif;ed ...................................... (116,683) 845
Cance]led ....................................... (483,728) 12.75
Balance at January 30,2005 .. ... ... ... . oL, 2,457,890 §I11.55
Granted . ... . e e 715,536 2.21
Exercised ...... ... ... . . e (363,626) 3.56
Canceled . ... ... .. .. .. . e (987,702) 13.29
Balance at January 29,2006 .. ....... ... ... . o e 1,822,098 § 8.52
Oranted] . ... e e 1,198,185 5.86
Exercided ...... ... .. . . . .. (91.869) 1.74
Forfeitures and cancellations ....................... (671,841) 10.75
Balance at January 28,2007 . ... ... . ... ... 2,256,573 $ 6.73 ﬂ $1,172,918
Vested and expected to vest at January 28,2007 ............ 1,414,113 $ 7.72 ﬂ $ 747,982
Exercisable at January 28,2007 ............... ... ... ... 879,866 § 9.21 5.68 $ 514347
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The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based on the
Company’s closing stock price of $4.34 per share at January 28, 2007, which would have been received by
option holders had all option holders exercised their options that were in-the-money as of that date. The fotal
number of in-the-money options exercisable as of January 28, 2007 was approximately 228 thousand. |The
aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended January 28, 2007 was $265 thousand.

The exercise prices for options outstanding and exercisable as of January 28, 2007 and their weighted
average Temaining contractual lives were as follows:

Qutstanding Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining  Average Avtﬁ‘age
Shares Contractual  Exercise Number Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Per Share . Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
(in thousands) (in years) (in thousands)
$1.35—=333 ... . . 512 7.22 $ 2.08 217 3 p.00
$3.34—5.10 . ... 528 4.58 $ 4.80 163 3 480
S5 11—T.18 ... e 757 5.56 $ 6.53 41 $ 6.34
$7.19—12980 . ... ... 149 5.99 511.61 148 31163
$1291—16.00 ... ... 225 5.25 $14.83 225 $14.83
$16.01 a0 OVEr ...\t eeeneeuannnnn 86 500  $18.40 8 $18.40
2,257 568  $ 673 880  $p21

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (collectively, “E§PP)
permits eligible employees to purchase common stock through payroll deductions of up to 10% of the
employee’s compensation. The price of common stock to be purchased under ESPP is 85% of the lower of the
fair market value of the common stock at the beginning of the offering period or at the end of the relevant
purchase period. To cover the exercise of vested options, the Company issues new shares from its authorizdd but
unissued share pool. At January 28, 2007, approximately 291,641 and 0 shares were available for future purchase
under the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, respectively.

The 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan is intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Internal Reyenue
Code and has consccutive and overlapping 24-month offering periods that begin every six months.|Each
24-month offering period includes four six-month purchase periods, during which payroll deductions are
accumulated and at the end of which, shares of common stock are purchased with a participant's accumulated
payroll deductions. The 2006 Purchase Plan is set to expire in July 2016. The 2006 Plan is subject fto an
automatic increase for unexercised forfeited shares issued in the 1997 Plan.

-
=
=
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The 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan is intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue
Code and has consecutive and overlapping 24-month offering periods that begin every six months.| Each
24-month offering period includes four six-month purchase periods, during which payroll deductions are
accumulated and at the end of which, shares of common stock are purchased with a participant's accumulated
payroll deductions. The 1997 Plan terminated in March 2007. Unissued shares were transferred to the 2006
Empleyee Stock Purchase Plan.

In fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, 161,900, 138,214 and 147,261 shares, respectively, of common stock at an
average price of $2.50, $2.20 and $4.80 per share, respectively, were issued under the 1997 Employee}Stock
Purchase Plan. There were 291,641 and O shares available for future purchase under the 2006 Employee| Stock
Purchase Plan and 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, respectively, at January 28, 2007.
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Stock-Based Compensation Expense

The | following table shows total stock-based compensation expense included in the accompanying
Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements for the year-ended January 28, 2007, January 29, 2006 and
January 30, 2005.

January 28, Janvary 29, Janoary 30,
2

007 2006 2005

{in thousands)
Costofrevenue ... ... ...ttt $ 20 S— 8
Research and development ................ ... ... .... 896 314 240
Sales| general and administrative .. ..................... 542 186 126
Income tax benefit ...... ... ... ... i — — —
Total] oo $1,458 $500 374

Total| compensation cost related to unvested stock-based awards gramted to employees under the stock
option plans but not yet recognized as of January 28, 2007 was approximately $2.3 million after estimated
forfeitures! The cost will be recognized on a straight-line basis over an estimated weighted average period of
approximately 3.17 years for stock options and will be adjusted if necessary in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Total |compensation cost retated to options to purchase common shares under the ESPP but not yet
recognized)as of January 28, 2007 was approximately $661 thousand. This cost will be recognized on a straight-
line basis over a weighted-average period of approximately 2 years,

Before January 30, 2006, the Company elected to foltow the intrinsic value method in accounting for its
employee stock awards. Under the intrinsic value method, when the exercise price of the Company's employee
stock options was equal to the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation was
recognized,

Had compensation costs been determined based upon the fair value at the grant date for awards under these plans,
the Company’s fiscal 2006 net loss and loss per share would have increased by approximately $4.6 million, or
$0.65 per share. The Company’s fiscal 2005 net loss and loss per share would have increased by approximately
$3.6 million, or $0.55 per share. For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is
amortized over the option’s vesting period and stock purchased under the 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan is
amortized over the six-month purchase period.

There were no options granted during fiscal 2007 or fiscal 2006 with an exercise price less than the market
price at the hate of grant. The weighted average fair value of options granted during fiscal 2005 with an exercise
price less than the market price at the date of grant was $3.80 per share. The weighted average fair value of
options granlted during fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005 with exercise prices equal to the market price at the date of
grant is $5.86, $2.21, and $9.65 per share, respectively.

Deferred Stock Compensation

In connection with the grant of certain stock options to employees in fiscal 2005, the Company recorded
deferred stock compensation of $1,493,000 for the difference between the fair value of common stock at the date
of grant and the option exercise price. These amounts are presented as a credit to additional paid-in capital with
an offsetiing|debit to deferred stock compensation included in stockholders' equity and are amortized over the
vesting period of the related options. In fiscal 2006 and 2005, $348,000 and $434,000, respectively, was recorded
as a reduction to deferred stock compensation to reflect the unamortized portion of deferred stock compensation
related to the|cancellation of unvested options upon employee terminations.
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5. SAVINGS PLAN

The Company maintains a savings plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Under the plan,
employees may contribute up to 60% of their pre-tax salaries per year, but not more than the statutory limits.
Before January 1, 2003, the Company contributed $0.30 for every dollar the employee contributed to the plan up
to the first 6% of earnings. The Company stopped the employer match as of January 1, 2003. The Company
made no matching contributions to employees in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005.

6. IMPAIRMENT CHARGES FOR INTANGIBLE ASSETS
There were no intangible assets outstanding as of January 28, 2007 and January 29, 2006, respectively.

Amortization expense for other intangible assets was $0, $0 and $1,642 thousand in fiscal 2007, 200§ and
2005, respectively.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 the Company determined that ceriain licensed intellectual property
was impaired and recorded an impairment charge of $1.5 million, of which $0.1 million was charged to cqgst of
sales for licensed intellectual property that related to products currently in production. The impairment was
caused by a decline in the related sales forecasts of products associated with the licensed intellectual property.
The impairment charge recorded represents the amount by which the carrying amount of the licensed intelldctual
property exceeded its fair value, which was determined based on the Company’s estimated discounted future
cash flows identifiable to the licensed intellectual property.

7. OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES

In fiscal 2003, the Company entered into capital leases for software licenses used in the design of
semiconductors. In March 2004 and October 2004, the Company entered into new capital lease agreements
adding additional software and extending the terms of two of the Company’s existing leases. In January 20Q7, the
Company entered into a new capital lease to replace an expiring lease. Obligations under capital leases reppesent
the present value of future payments under the lease agreements. Property, plant and equipment include the
following amounts for leases that have been capitalized:

January 28, January 29,
006

Year Ended 2007

{in thousandi)
Property, plant and equipment under capital lease . ............... ..o $ 4,899 $ 4,243
Accumulated depreciation . . ... .ttt (3,623) (2,229
Net property, plant and equipment under capital lease . . .............oooin 31,274 $p.014

Amounts capitalized under leases are being amortized over a three-year period and included as part of
depreciation expense.
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Future minimum payments under the capital leases consist of the following as of January 28, 2007:

(in thousands)

2008I ...................................................................... $ 933
2009| ...................................................................... 354
20'|0I ...................................................................... 354
Total minimum lease payments . .. ... ...t e e 1,641
Less:amount representing iterest . ... ...ttt e (120)
Present vaiue of net minimum lease payments ........... e 1,521
Less:|current portion . . .. ...t e e e {866)
LODEHErM POILION .. ... ot ittt ettt et e et et § 655

8. MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE SERIES B CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

On August 20, 2004, the Company issued 5,000 shares of Mandatorily Redeemable Series B Convertible
Preferred |Stock {the “Series B Preferred Stock”), Series A Warrants for the purchase of 321,739 shares of
common stock at $8.20 per share, and Series B Warrants for the purchase of 200,000 shares of cornmon stock at
$8.00 per s%hare for an aggregate cash purchase price of $5,000,000. After deducting certain transaction costs of
$65,000, net cash proceeds received by the Company were $4.935,000. In addition, the Company incurred
out-of-pocket expenses of approximately $392,000 related to the financing. The Series B Preferred Stock was
convertible at the option of the investor into 869,565 shares of the Company’s Common Stock at a conversion
price of $5i75 per share, and was subject to certain anti-dilution provisions. The Series B Preferred Stock would
have matured on Awvgust 20, 2007. The Series B Preferred Stock was redeemable by the Company for a
mandatory payment of $5 million three years from the issue date of August 20, 2004 if the conversion option had
not been exercised. The Series B Preferred Stock had liquidation preferences over the Company’s Common
Stock and had no voting rights. Furthermore, while the Preferred Stock remained outstanding, provisions of the
Preferred Stock limited our ability to issue any security with seniority to or parity with the Preferred Stock, In
addition, there were restrictions on dividend payments as long as the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
remained optstanding. The holder converted all of the Preferred Stock into 869,565 shares of the Company’s
Common S{IOCR in December 2005. The Series A Warrants to purchase common stock are exercisable for five
years from the date of issuance. The Sertes B Warrants to purchase common stock were only exercisable until 90
days after the date that the registration statement relating to the common shares underlying the securities issued
in this transaction was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission. On September 24, 2004,
this registr%nion statement was declared effective and the Series B Warrants expired unexercised on
December 26, 2004,

In acc?rdance with SFAS 150, the Company classified the estimated fair value of the Mandatorily
Redeemable Series B Convertible Preferred Stock as a liability. The Company estimated the fair values of the
Series B Preferred Stock and the Series A and B Warrants and allocated the net proceeds of $4,935,000 based on
relative fair lvalues in accordance with EITF 00-27 “Application to EITF Issue No. 98-5 to Certain Convertible
Instruments’] (“EITF 00-27") and calculated the intrinsic value of the conversion option embedded within the
convertible Lreferred stock using the effective conversion price of $5.75 per common share. The intrinsic value
of the beneficial conversion option calculated was $1,203,000 and the fair value allocated to the Series A and
Series B w::l.rrams was $1,153,000. The fair value allocated to the warrants and the intrinsic value of the
beneficial cdnversion option were recorded as credits to additional paid-in capital in stockholders’ equity on the
consolidated{balance sheet with an offsetting amount of $2,356,000 treated as a discount and a reduction in the
$5 million liability recorded for the Mandatorily Redeemable Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. The discount

35

z
£

~
)
=

3

-




-
E
=%
=

x

=.
=
£
=

-

NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

was amortized using the effective interest rate method in accordance with EITF 00-27. The net recorded lial
of $2,644.000 for the Mandatorily Redeemable Series B Convertible Preferred Stock was accreting 1g

ility
the

redemption value of $5 million through charges to interest expense over the three-year period until mandatory

redemption. The holder converted all of the Series B Preferred Stock into 869,565 shares of the Comp3

ny’s

Common Stock in December 2005. The Company recognized the remaining unamortized debt discount as
interest expense upon conversion in accordance with EITF 00-27. The Company reclassified the remaining $5

million liability recorded for the Mandatorily Redeemable Series B Convertible Preferred Stock to Com

mon

Stock and Paid-in-Capital upon conversion. The Company accreted and recognized interest expensg on

conversion totaling $2.0 million in fiscal 2006. The Company accreted interest expense of $327,000 during
2005.

iscal

The Company’s out-of-pocket expenses of approximately $392.000 related to the financing were recorded

as deferred financing costs on the consolidated balance sheets with $131,000 recorded in current assets
Company recognized the unamortized deferred financing costs as interest expense upon conversion.

The
The

Company recorded amortization of deferred financing costs and recognized interest expense on convg rsion

totaling $337.,000 in fiscal 2006. The Company recorded amortization of the deferred financing costs to int
expense of $54,000 during fiscal 2005.

9, EQUITY FINANCING

erest

On December 16, 2005, NeoMagic closed the sale and issuance of (i) 1,500,000 shares of its Common

Stock, $.001 par value (the “2005 Shares™), and (ii) warrants to purchase 749,996 shares of Common Stock
exercise price of $9.00 per share (the “2005 Warrants™). The Company sold and issued the 2005 Shares ap

at an
d the

2005 Warrants for an aggregate offering price of $9 million. After deducting offering costs, net cash prgceeds

received by the Company were $8.4 million.

The 2005 Warrants provide that each holder of a 2005 Warrant may exercise its 2005 Warrant for shares of

Common Stock at an exercise price of $9.00 per share. Each 2005 Warrant was not exercisable until Ju
2006. The 2005 Warrants provide for adjustments to the exercise price and number of shares for which the

e 16,
2005

Warrants may be exercised in certain circumstances, including stock splits, stock dividends, certain distribjtions,

reclassifications and, subject to a minimum price of $7.79 per share.

The proceeds were allocated between the 2005 Shares and the 2005 Warrants based on their respectiv
values. The 2005 Warrants were classified as equity in accordance with EITF No. 00-19, “Accountin

e fair
g for

Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to and Potentially Settled in 2 Company’s Own Stock™ (“EITF 0D-19").

As both the 2005 Shares and 2005 Warrants are equity instruments, the proceeds from the issuance

allocated on the relative fair value method; however, the Company is aggregating them for financial rZE()rting

purposes. This financing transaction is shown on the Statement of Stockholders’ Equity as Procee
issuance of common stock with detachable warrants for the year-ended January 29, 2006.

were

from

Investor agreements associated with the December 16, 2005 financing required NeoMagic to register the

2005 Shares and 2005 Warrants for resale with the SEC. The registration statement for the 2005 Shares and
Warrants was declared effective on January 25, 2006. The investor agreements also require Neol\/ﬂ

2005

agic to

maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement. If the registration statement does not remain effective,

NeoMagic could be required to pay liquidated damages to investors that participated in the December 15,
financing, capped at a maximum of 12% of the subscription amount paid by the investors.
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10. WARRANT LIABILITY

©n December 6, 2006, NeoMagic closed the sale and issuance of (i) 2,500,000 shares of s Common Stock,
$.001 | par value (the " 2006 Shares"), and (ii) warrants to purchase 1,250,000 shares of Common Stock at an
exercite price of $5.20 per share (the "2006 Warrants"). The Company sold and issued the 2006 Shares and the
2006 Warrants for an aggregate offering price before deducting any expenses of $11,450,000. After deducting
offering costs, net cash proceeds received by the Company were $10.5 million. The issuance and sale of the 2006
Shares and the 2006 Warrants was registered under a shelf Registration Statement on Form S-3, which was
declarcltd effective on October 31, 2006 (the “Primary 5-37).

The 2006 Warrants provide that each holder of a 2006 Warrant may exercise its 2006 Warrant for shares of
Commlpn Stock at an exercise price of $5.20 per share. No 2006 Warrant is exercisable until one year after its
initial issuance, unless the Primary S-3 continues to be effective, in which case they can be exercised beginning
six mo?ths afier their initial issuance. Whether the Primary S-3 continues io be effective depends on whether the
Company meets the eligibility requirements of Form 8-3 with respect to primary offerings as of the time of filing
its Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2007. The 2006 Warrants provide for adjustments to the
exercise price and number of shares for which the 2006 Warrants may be exercised in certain circumstances,
includiﬁg stock splits, stock dividends, certain distributions, reclassifications and, subject to a minimum price of
$4.58, dilutive issuances (i.e., price based anti-dilution adjustments).

The 2006 Warrants were classified as a liability in accordance with EITF No. 00-19, “Accounting for
Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to and Poentially Settled in a Company’s Own Stock” (“EITF 00-19™).
If the Primary S-3 continues to be effective, the Company would be obligated to net share or physically settle the
contract|only by delivering registered shares. Under EITF 00-19, if the Company must settle the contract by
delivering registered shares, it is assumed that the Company will be required to net-cash settle the contract. Asa
result the 2006 Warrants are required to be classified as a liability. The fair value of the 2006 Warrants was
estimated to be $5.7 million at the date of issue using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the following
assumptibns: risk-free interest rate of 4.53%; no dividend yield; an expected life of 5 years; and a volatility factor
of 94.9%,. The Company is required to revalue the 2006 Warrants at the end of each reporting period with the
change in value reported on the statement of operations as a “change in fair value on revaluation of warrant
liability”|in the period in which the change occurred. For fiscat 2007, the Company recognized a gain on the
change in fair value on revaluation of warrant liability of $1.8 million. Since the warrants are classified as a
liability, the proceeds allocated to equity were the gross proceeds of $11,450,000 less the fair value of the
warrants le 35,688,000 and less the offering costs allocated to the warrants of $273,000. The total offering costs
of $974,000 were allocated between the 2006 Warrants and the common stock based on their respective fair
values, Offering costs of $273,000 were allocated to the 2006 Warrants and reported as interest expense in the
statement|of operations for fiscal 2007.
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments

In May 1996, the Company moved its principal headquarters to a new facility in Santa Clara, California
under a non-cancelable operating lease that expired in April 2003. In January 1998, the Company entered int¢ 3
second non-cancelable operating lease for an adjacent building, which became its new corporate headquarters
This lease had a co-terminus provision with the original lease that expired in April 2003. In March 2002, th
Company extended the term for 45,000 square feet under this lease for another seven years with a terminatio
date of April 2010. The Company leases offices in Israel and India under operating leases that expire Septembef
2007 and December 2008, respectively. Future minimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows:

{in thousands)

FISCAl 2008® . o\ttt et e e s $1,174
Fiscal 2000%F . i e i e e 1,12]
Fiscal 2000 oottt e et e i e et 1,100
Fiscal 2000 ..ttt e e e e e 277
FISCal 2002 o0t e b e e —_

TREEEAIIET « v ottt ettt e e —

Total Minimum lease PAYMENES . ...\ .oonttuen o et $3,672

*  Net of sublease income for sub-leasing 10,000 square feet in the Company’s Santa Clara facility for a
two-year period starting on March 15, 2005 for $12,000 per month and for a period of 19 months and 15
days starting on March 16, 2007 for $16,500 per month.

Net rent expense under operating leases was $1,074,000, $1,069,000 and $1,196,000 in fiscal 2007, 2006
and 2003, respectively.

12. SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS AND EXPORT SALES

Sales to customers located outside the United States (including sales to the foreign operations of custonjers
with headquarters in the United States, and foreign manufacturers that setl to United States-based OEMs)
accounted for 77%, 60% and 91% of product revenue in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company
expects that export sales will continue to represent a significant portion of product revenue, although [the
Company cannot assure you that export sales as a percentage of product revenue will remain at current levels.[All
sales transactions were denominated in United States dollars. The following is a summary of the Compa ny's
product revenue by major geographic area:

Year Ended
January 28, January 29, January 30,
2007 006 2005
JAPAN o i e 0% 5% 12%
TalWaN - ettt e 33% 26% 47%
HongKong ... iiiiannns 0% 0% 25%
KOTBA « ot ettt e e et et e 15% 0% 0%
SINgAPOre . ... ... i 13% 4% 0%
United StALES . .ottt e e e i e 23% 40% 9%
England ........coviniiiiii i 13% 15% 7%
Sweden ...t 3% 10% 0%
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The following customers accounted for more than 10% of product revenue:

Year Ended
January 28, January29, Jancary 30,
2007 2006 2005
Edom Technology Co.** . .. ... .. ... . . . . . 34% 21% 33%
ExadigmInc, ...... e e e e e e e e * 32% *
Premier Microelectronics Europe LTD** ... ... ... ... ......... 12% 15% *
Silicon|Media, Inc.** ... . .. e * * 8%
' ESS Technology Intemnational, Inc. .. ....... ... ... ............... * * 26%
Premier Components Distribution®* ... ... ... .. .. .o oo 21% * *
*

Silicon 1|Amance | R * 13%

|
*  represents less than 10% of product revenue
**  customer is a distributor

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Paul Richman served as a member of the NeoMagic Board of Directors from April 2002 through December
2004. As of December 2004, Mr. Richman was no longer a related party. During this time, Mr. Richman also
served as CEQ of The Consortium for Technology Licensing, Ltd. {"The Consortium”). In April 2002, The
Consortitm began performing services for NeoMagic as its exclusive patent licensing agent. In conjunction with
these services, Mr. Richman was reimbursed for the expenses he incurred and paid approximately $9,000 and
$4,000 dl'lring fiscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively. Mr. Richman no longer serves as a Board member of the
Company; however, NeoMagic continues to work with The Consortium as the Company's exclusive patent
licensing agent and completed a patent sale with The Consortium in April 2005 and a patent licensing agreement
in September 2005 for which NeoMagic paid $3.8 million of fees to the Consortium, which is not a related party
at this time,

14. CASH FLOW STATEMENT
o
Januvary 28, January 29, January 30, E
Years Ended 2007 2006 2605 =
\‘ {(in thousands) ;
Supplemental schedules of cash flow information Cash paid during the year -%
for: =
Interest .. L e 5124 $229 $146
TAKES PAIG .+« o+ v e e et e e $ 29 $ 25 $ 21

During| the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company entered into a new capital lease in the amount of
$0.9 million; replacing an existing lease set to expire. During fiscal 2005, the Company entered into new capital lease
agreements in the amount of $4.8 million. These new capital leases replaced two of the Company’s capital leases
entered into in fiscal 2003 by adding additional software and extending the terms of the leases,

In December 20003, the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock was converted by the holder into 869,565
shares of the{Company’s Common Stock.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
NeoMagic Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NeoMagic Corporation and subsidiaries
as of January 28, 2007 and January 29, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations an
comprehensive loss, stockholders” equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period end
January 28, 2007. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at accompanyi
ltem 15¢a)(2). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurange
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform pn
audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of intergal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s interpal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, jon
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall finangial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

1n our opinion, the consolidated financial staiements referred to above present fairly, in all material respegts,
the financial position of NeoMagic Corporation and subsidiaries as of January 28, 2007 and January 29, 2006,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended January 28,
2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 30, 2006, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share-Based Payments. ﬁ

/s/ Stonefield Josephson, Inc.

San Francisco, California
April 27, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Boarld of Directors and Shareholders of
NeoMagic Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows of (NeoMagic Corporation for the year ended January 30, 2005. Qur audits also included the financial
slalemenﬁ schedule for the year ended January 30, 2005 listed in the Index at Item 15 (a). These financial
statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (Ullli[ed States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whéther the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated results of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows of NeoMagic Corporation for the year
ended Jam:.lary 30, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedule for the year ended January 30, 2005, when considered in relation to the
basic finapcial statements taken as a whole, present fairly in all material respects the information set forth
therein.

fsf Ernst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
April 22, 2005
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NeoMagic Corporation

Selected Quarterly Data

Quarter

Fiscal 2007 1=

2nd

Jed

F: (L]

(unaudited, in thousands except per
share data)

PrOdUCL TEVEIIUE .« o v vt v ettt e et e e et man et oe e es i iiea e araan s $ 8 $ 177 $ 192 S5 |[117
Licensingrevenue ..... ... ... .. i s - — — —_
TOtAL FEVEIIUE .« o o o v et it ettt s vt me e et am ettt aea s ea e eas 86 177 192 117
Cost Of PrOdUCITEVENUE . o . ..ottt i e n e ne s 86 115 197 126
Cost Of ICENSINE FBVEMUE . . ..o vttt e i e na s ine e aaaae e — — — —
Total COSLOF TEVENUE ..\ttt ae i et et ir e e i it anns 86 115 197 126
Gross profit (I0S8) ...« v v e v e —_ 62 {5) {9
Operating expenses:
Research and development . ........ ..ot v iiiiiniiannnns 3,284 3,831 3,171 3471
Sales, general and administrative . .. .. ... oo 1,940 1,706 1,23 198
Gainonsale of PAENS . ... ..ottt e — (1,044) —
Total Operaling eXPenses . . ... .vuve et iirrnreen e 5,224 4,493 4,407 1,675
Loss fFom OPerations ... ... ouuue ot i (5.224) (4431) (4412) (4,684)
Interest income and Other . . .. .o vt e 270 234 180 231
INEETESL EXPENSE . .\t vttt n vt et eane e o s e s m et aa e (37) 29 (23) (292)
Change in fair value on revaluation of warrant liability ................... — — — 1,835
Loss Defore iNCOME LAXES « .o v vttt nn s enas (4,991 (4,226) (4,255} 2,910)
[NCOTIE (X EXPERISE oot r ettt e et ie ettt anas 16 14 13 94
INEL L85 vttt et e e e e e et et e e $(5.007y $(4,240) $(4,268) 3(3,004)
Basicnet loss pershare (1) ... ... o oo $ (0.53) $ (044 $ (044) §$ (02T
Diluted net loss pershare (1) .. ... o $(0.53) §(044) § (044 ${02T)
Weighted commeon shares outstanding (1) . ... ..o 9,521 9,57% 9,630 11,329
Weighted average common shares outstanding assuming dilution (1) ............ 9,521 9.579 9,630 11,329
Fiscal 2006 1 2nd 3rd 4t
PrOQUCE TEVEIIUE & o ot tre v s et oo et ee e om e mm oo iana e e $ 299 $ 301 § 158 %) 104
LICENSING TEVEMUE .. ..\t vtitr e it et e e a e — — 8,490 —
TOIAl FEVEIUE . o\ o vttt e v et ee e et ae bt ranara e maa e e e 299 301 8,648 104
COoSt Of ProdUCt TEVEIMUE .« .. . oo et e e e e i e e ma i 332 304 147 101
Cost of liCenSINE TEVENUE . . . ... ettt rar e — — 2,861 —
Total COStOf TBVENUE . . .. .. it ie e i ittt 332 304 3,008 101
Gross profit (JOSS) . <. . r it i e (33 (3) 5,640 3
Operating expenses:
Research and development .......... ..ot 3.083 3.147 2,980 3,193
Sales, general and administrative . .. ... . e 1,790 1,310 1,767 2,049
Gainonsale of PAtents . ... . i e (3,481) — —_ —
Total OPEraling eXPeNSES . ... vv v v vr e nemrneusionanennanasanennns 1,392 4,457 4,747 5,242
Income (1os8) from OPErations . . ... ov ittt ee i e (1,425) (4,460) 893 (5,239)
Interestincome and OLher . ..o . i it 117 177 192 238
T 1o 1 1 < (288) (132) (256) [(1,893)
Income (loss) before iNCOME tAXES . ... vv it (1,596) {(4.415) 829 (6,894)
Income tax expense (benefit) . ... ... . 49 50 50 (2,919)
INELINCOME (JOSS) . o v vt e et ettt et a i m e $(1,645) $(4.465) § 779 $(3,975)
Basicnet loss pershare (1} ... oo $ (250 %8 (6T) § 012§ (048)
Diluted net loss pershare {1} .. ... ..o o ot $ (25) % (67§ 011 $% (0.48)
Weighted common shares outstanding (1) ... ... 6,647 6,694 6,740 8,217
Weighted average common shares outstanding assuming dilution {1} ............ 6,647 6,694 6,882 8,217

(13 See Note | and 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item 9, | CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not|applicable.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, under the supervision of our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15{e) and Rule {5d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, Bajed on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer have concluded that

our discldsure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, there were no changes in our internal controls over financial

reporting that occurred that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls
over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that
our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all error and all fraud, A control system, no
matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control
system's objectives will be met. The design of any system of controls is based in part on certain assumptions
about the llikclihood of future events, and we cannot assure you that any design will succeed in achieving its
stated goal\ under all potential future conditions.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART I

Certain information required by Part III is incorporated by reference to the Company's definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the solicitation of proyies
for the Company’s 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement™).

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

The information required by this item with respect to directors is contained in the section entitled “Election
of Directors” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. The required information
concerning executive officers of the Company is contained in the section entitled “Management” in Item | of
Part I of this Form 10-K and is incorporated into this Item 10 of Part I1I by reference. The information about the
Audit Committee and any Audit Committee financial experts required by this ltem is contained in the section
titted “Board Mectings and Committees” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 405 of Regulation S-K calls for disclosure of any known late filing or failure by an insider 1o file a
report required by Section 16 of the Exchange Act. This disclosure is contained in the section entitled “Section
16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by

reference.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for all directors, officers and employees to govern their professional and
ethical conduct. The Code of Ethics is posted on our website at hitp://www.neomagic.com. The Company| will
post any amendments to or waivers of the Code of Ethics on the website.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this section relating to executive compensation and transactions is contained in
the sections titled “Election of Directors,” “Director Compensation,” “Executive Compensation,” “Compensation
Commitiee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” in the Broxy
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. In addition, the section in the Proxy Statement fitled
“Compensation Committee Report” is incorporated by reference into this Item, but shall not be degmed
incorporated by reference into any other SEC filings, shall not be deemed “soliciting material” and shall ot be

deemed “filed” with the SEC.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by this section is contained in the section entitled “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

The equity compensation plan table is contained in Item 5 of Part II of this Form 10-K and is incorpprated
into this ltem 12 of Part IH by reference.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by this section is contained in the sections titled “Certain Relationships and
Related Party Transactions” and “Board Meetings and Committees™ in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated

herein by reference.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this section is contained in the section entitled “Principal Accounting Fees and
Services” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

1. | Financial Statements.
See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in part II, kem 8.

2. |Financial Statement Schedule.

See “Schedule II- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts™ on Page 70 of this Form 10-K.
3. |Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the index to exhibits immediately foltowing the signature pages are filed or
incorporated by reference as a part of this report.

(b) Exhibits.
See Item 15(a)(3).

{c) Financial Statement Schedule.

See Item 15(a)(2).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized, on April 30, 2007.

‘ NEOMAGIC CORPORATION
By: /s/ H.ROBERT NEWMAN

H. ROBERT NEWMAN
Acting Chief Financial Officer (Acting Principal
Financial Officer)

Date: April 30, 2007

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of the undersigned hereby constitutes Jand
appoints Douglas R. Young and H. Robert Newman, jointly and severally, as his or her true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact and agents, each with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and on his or
her behalf to sign, execute and file this Form 10-K and any or all amendments (including, without limitation,
post-effective amendments) to this Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and any ang all
documents required to be filed with respect therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission orf any
regulatory authority, granting unto such attorneys-in-fact and agents full power and authority to do and perform
each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith and about the premises in
order to effectuate the same as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do if persopally
present, hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attormeys-in-fact and agents, or his or her substitufe or

substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done.

| Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
! by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Name Title D_a_tf
/s/ DOUGLAS R. YOUNG President, Chief Executive Officer and April 30, 2007
Douglas R. Young Director (Principal Executive
Officer)
/s/ H. ROBERT NEWMAN Acting Chief Financial Officer April 30, 2007
- H. Robert Newman {(Acting Principal Financial Officer
= and Acting Principal Accounting
=%
C Officer)
>
E /s/ SYED ZAIDI Vice President Corporate Engineering April 30, 2007
= Syed Zaidi and Chief Operating Officer,
<’ Director
/sf ANIL GUPTA Director April 30, 20(11)7
Anil Gupta
/s{ CARL STORK Director April 30, 2007
Carl Stork
/s/ STEVE VALENZUELA Director April 30, 20p7
Steve Valenzuela
fsf BRETT MOYER Director April 30, 2007
Brett Moyer
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The following Exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this Report:

Number

Description

L.1(16)

31010
3.20m
4.1(5)

42(8)

4.3(18)

4.4(7)
4.5(7)
4.6(7)

4.7(4)

4.8(7)

4.9(11})

4,100t 1)
4.11{16)
10.1(1)

10.2(2)

10.3(1)
10.4(1)

10.5(1)
10.6(12)
10.7(7)
10.8(4)

10.9(8)

Placement Agency Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2006, between the Company and A.G.
Edwards & Sons, Inc.

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.
Bylaws.

Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated December 19, 2002, between the Company and
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.

Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of August 20, 2004, between the Company and
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.

Amendment No. 3 to Rights Agreement, dated as of April 6, 2007, between the Company and
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.

Series A Warrant to Sateilite Strategic Finance Associates, LL.C, dated August 20, 2004.
Series B Warrant to Satellite Strategic Finance Associates, LLC, dated August 20, 2004,

Registration Rights Agreement dated August 19, 2004 by and between the Company and Satellite
Strategic Finance Associates, LLC.

Certificate of Designation of Rights, Preferences and Privileges of Series A Participating Preferred
Stock.

Amended and Restated Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock dated August 20, 2004,

Registration Rights Agreement dated December 13, 2005 by and between the Company and
named Private Investors.

Warrant to Registration Rights Agreement dated December 13, 2005,
Form of Warraat.

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into by the Company with each of its directors and
executive officers,

Lease Agreement, dated as of October 9, 1997, between the Company and A&P Family
Iinvestments, as landlord for the leased premises located at 3250 Jay Sireet.

Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Pilan and related agreements,

Lease Agreement, dated as of February 3, 1996, between the Company and A&P Family
Investments, as landlord.

1997 Employee Stock Purchase Pian, with exhibit.
1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan amended December 22, 2005.
2003 Stock Option Plan.

Amendment No. |, dated as of February 26, 2002, between the Company and A&¥P Family
Investments, as landlord for the leased premises located at 3250 Jay Street.

Securities Purchase Agreement dated August 19, 2004 by and between the Company and Satellite
Strategic Finance Associates, LLC.
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Number Description

10.10(8) Amended and Restated Patent Licensing Agreement dated March 28, 2005 by and between the
Company and The Consortium for Technology Licensing, Ltd.

10.11(8) Patent Purchase Agreement dated April 6, 2005 by and between the Company and Faust
Communications, LLC.

10.12(9) Settlement Agreement and Release dated May 31, 2005 between the Company and Prakhsh
Agarwal.

10.13(10) Patent License Agreement dated September 1, 2005 between the Company and Sony
Corporation.

10.14(11) Securities Purchase Agreement dated December 13, 2005 by and between the Company and
named Private Investors.

10.15(12) Form of Retention Bonus Agreement, dated as of January 13, 2006.

10.16(13) Employment Agreement dated May 1, 2006 between NeoMagic Corporation and Douglas R.
Young.

10.17(13) Employment Agreement dated May 1, 2006 between NeoMagic Corporation and Scott Sullinger.
10.18(14) 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
10.19¢(15) Form of Bonus Agreement.

10.20(15) Patent Sale Agreement dated June 22, 2006 by and between NeoMagic Corporation and Samsung
Electronics Co. Lid.

10.21(16) Form of Subscription Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2006, between the Company and the
investor signatories thereto.

21.1 NeoMagic Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of Stonefield Josephson, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

23.2 Consent of Ernst & Young, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24.1 Power of Attorney {see signature page on page 66)

311 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14

and 15d-14 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

312 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules [3a-i4
and 15d-14 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as afopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

322 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s registration statement on Form 5-1, registration no. 333-20031.
(2) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the period ended October 26, 1997.
(3) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 27, 2002.
(4) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-A filed December 23, 2002.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed December 23, 2002.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s S-8 registration statement filed September 22,2003,
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(7) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed August 20, 2004.

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-A/A filed August 23, 2004.

(9) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31, 2005.
(10) Inclnporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 30, 2005.
(11) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed December 16, 2005.

(12) Incarporated by reference to the Company's Form 8-K filed January 19, 2006.

(13) Incarporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed May 4, 2006.

(14) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement file pursuant to section 14A of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 on May 26, 2006.

(15) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 30, 2006,
(16) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed December 1, 2006.

(17) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed April 12, 2007.

(18} Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-A/A filed April 12, 2007.
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SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
YEARS ENDED JANUARY 28, 2007, JANUARY 29, 2006 AND JANUARY 30, 2005

(In thousands)
Additions 4
Balarice at  Charged to Balgnce
Beginning  Costs and at End
of Year Expense Deductions  of Year
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year ended January 30,2005 .. ... .. $— $— $— $+
Year ended January 29,2006 ... ... $— $— $— $+
Year ended January 28,2007 ... il $— $— 5— $+
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University of Maryland
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